AGENDA

Committee

Date and Time

- County Hall
\¥ l diff
) RN
(/ Tel: (029) 2087 2000
-.gil- ‘ 3 Neuadd y Sir
CARDIFF E?f&dfﬁﬁv
CAERDYDD

Ffén: (029) 2087 2000

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 6 DECEMBER 2016, 4.30 PM

of Meeting
Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL
Membership Councillor Richard Cook (Chair)
Councillors Boyle, Chaundy, Gordon, Joyce, Murphy, Dianne Rees and
Lynda Thorne
Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), Carol Cobert (Church
in Wales representative), Karen Dell'’Armi (Parent Governor
Representative) and Hayley Smith (Parent Governor Representative)
Time
approx.
1 Apologies for Absence 4.30 pm
To receive apologies for absence.
2 Declarations of Interest
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.
3 Minutes 4.35 pm

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 8
November 2016 (to follow)

4 Central South Education Consortium (Pages 1 - 38)

This report provides the Committee with a briefing on the Consortium’s
progress in addressing the recommendations of its Estyn Inspection
Report published earlier this year.

(a) Hannah Woodhouse, Managing Director, will present the report and
be available to answer questions;

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have
saved the Authority approx. £8.00 in printing costs



(b) Questions from Committee Members

Quarter 2 Performance - Education and Cardiff 2020. A revised
vision for Education and Learning in Cardiff - Performance
Baseline September 2016 (Pages 39 - 92)

This report provides the committee with a copy of the Directorates
Corporate Performance for Quarter 2 and the Performance Baseline
performance position against desired outcomes and key goals of the
Strategy.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member, Education) has been
invited to make a statement;

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) will
introduce the report and be available to answer questions;

(c) Questions from Members.
Effectiveness of School Governors (Pages 93 - 110)

This report provides the Committee with a progress report on the
implementations of the actions agreed to address the Committee’s
recommendations following its inquiry in 2015.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member, Education) has been
invited to make a statement;

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) and
Jackie Turner (Assistant Director of Education and Lifelong
learning) will introduce the report and be available to answer
questions;

(c) Questions from Committee Members.

Draft Cabinet Report - Families First transition arrangement and
programme update (Pages 111 - 176)

This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to review and
comment on the draft Cabinet papers on the proposed interim
arrangements for the transition period, which includes varying some
existing contacts in order to extend their initial contract terms,
decommissioning some of the services and potentially commissioning
pilot/alternative arrangements during the transition period.

(a) Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member, Early Years, Children &
Families and Deputy Leader) has been invited to comment on the
draft Cabinet Report;

(b) Tony Young (Director, Social Services), Angela Bourge
(Operational Manager Strategy, Performance and Resources), and
Ceri George (Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and

5.05 pm

5.35 pm

5.50 pm



10

11

Partnerships) will comment on the report and be available to
answer questions;

(c) Questions from Committee Members.

Quarter 2 Performance Management Information - Children's
Services (Pages 177 - 212)

This report enables the Committee to monitor the performance of the
service and question the service area’s progress in meeting its agreed
targets.

(a) Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member, Early Years, Children &
Families and Deputy Leader) has been invited to make a statement;

(b) Tony Young (Director, Social Services) will introduce the report and
be available to answer questions;

(c) Questions from Committee Members.
Correspondence Report (Pages 213 - 220)

To provide the Committee with a summary report of letters sent to
Cabinet Members and the responses received.

(a) Martyn Hutchings, Principal Scrutiny Officer to briefly introduce the
report;

Discussion on follow up on any responses received.
Way Forward
Date of next meeting

The date of the next meeting of the Children and Young People
Scrutiny Committee is 10 January 2017 at 2.30 in Committee Room 4.

Davina Fiore

Director Governance & Legal Services

Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2016

Contact: Mandy Farnham,

029 2087 2618, Mandy.Farnham@cardiff.gov.uk

6.10 pm

6.50 pm

7.00 pm

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
6 DECEMBER 2016

CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM - ESTYN INSPECTION REPORT RESPONSE
UPDATE

Reason for the Report

1. To enable the Committee to receive a briefing on the Central South Education
Consortium’s Estyn Inspection report, published in May 2016, together with the

progress being made in responding the inspection’s recommendations.

2. To brief the Committee on the Consortium’s plans for the future and to further

develop a self-improving system for schools across the Consortium’s area.
Background

3. Estyn inspected the Consortium in February / March 2016, under their new
framework for Consortia published the previous autumn. It was the first of Wales’
four education consortia to be inspected. The inspection took two weeks and
involved nine inspectors. More than 50 head teachers and governors were
interviewed as were all Council Leaders and Cabinet Members, chief executives,
directors, Section 151 Officers, the senior team of the Consortium and many staff.
The inspection was supported by a survey, undertaken in January, of all head

teachers and governors, to which more than 50% of schools responded.

4. The Estyn report, copy attached at Appendix A, was published on 26 May 2016
and copied to all Committee Members on 27 May 2016. The report made five
judgements within its framework with a context section on performance and
outcomes. The judgements were:

o Quality of school improvement service Adequate

o Leadership Good

Page 1



. Improving Quality Good
o Strategic Partnerships Good

o Resource management Adequate

5. The report recognised a number of areas of strength, in particular the increased
consistency and quality of challenge advisers and categorization processes, the
clarity of vision and strategy within the self-improving school system strategy work,
the strength of engagement with head teachers and authorities, and the effective
use of resources. The report also made four recommendations:

e Ensure that school improvement services address the variability of performance
across schools and local authorities, particularly at key stage 4;

e Improve the accuracy of the evaluation of schools by challenge advisers in
order to ensure a greater focus on improving teaching and leadership;

e Strengthen the procedures for monitoring and evaluating the impact of school
improvement work;

e Evaluate progress against the regional consortium’s operational plans more

effectively.
Issues

6. The Consortium developed a summary of the actions against each of the
recommendations in its 2016/17 business plan. The plan is being used to evaluate
and demonstrate progress against the recommendations in a future Estyn revisit.
Progress would also be monitored monthly with reports to the Advisory Board and

Joint Committee each term.

7. The Central South Consortium Joint Committee received an update against
recommendations by Estyn at its meeting on 20 September 2016, copy attached at
Appendix B. This report provided a progress narrative against each
recommendation, together with details of what is being planned as well as the key

actions and progress to September 2016.

8. Hannah Woodhouse, Managing Director of the Central South Consortium, has been

invited to attend the meeting to provide a verbal update on the Consortium’s

Page 2



progress in addressing the recommendations as well as an overview of the
Consortium’s ambitions for the region and some details on further developing a self-

improving system.

Scope of Scrutiny

This report will provide the Committee with an opportunity to review and respond to
the progress being made by the Consortium, in addressing Estyn’s

recommendations.

This report will also provide the Committee with an opportunity to gain an
understanding of the plans for this year and the development of a self-improving

system for schools across the Consortium.

Way Forward

11.

13.

At the meeting, Hannah Woodhouse, managing director of the Central South
Consortium will be in attendance to present the verbal progress report on Estyn’s

recommendations and answer any questions Members may have.

Members may also wish to note the information contained in the report and
presentation and determine whether there are any issues or comments which

they would like to pass on to the managing director of the Consortium.

Legal Implications

10.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or
without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes
to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement

Page 3



imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on
behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural
requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and
properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the

circumstances.

Financial Implications

11. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in
relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any
modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to
Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those

recommendations.

Recommendations

The Committee is recommended to:

I. Consider the information provided in the verbal briefing from the managing

director of the Central South Consortium and associated documents;

Il. Consider whether they have any observations, comments or recommendations
they wish to make to the managing director of the Consortium, the chairman of
the Joint Committee, the Cabinet Member for Education and the Director of

Education and Lifelong Learning.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services
30 November 2016

Page 4



Vo Estyn

Arolygineth £ May ddysg a Hyffo
Her Majesty’s Inspector or Educatio d g in Wal e

WALES AUDIT OFFICE
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

A report on the quality of the school improvement
services provided by the Central South Consortium

Central South Consortium
Ty Dysgu
Cefn Coed
Nantgarw
Treforest
CF15 7Q0Q

February 2016

by

Estyn, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education
and Training in Wales

Page 5



Every possible care has been taken to ensure that the information in this document is
accurate at the time of going to press. Any enquiries or comments regarding this
document/publication should be addressed to:

Publication Section

Estyn

Anchor Court

Keen Road

Cardiff

CF24 5JW or by email to publications@estyn.gov.wales

This and other Estyn publications are available on our website: www.estyn.gov.wales

This document has been translated by Trosol (English to Welsh).

© Crown Copyright 2016: This report may be re-used free of charge in any
format or medium provided that it is re-used accurately and not used in a
misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright
and the title of the report specified.

Publication date: 27/05/2016

Page 6



mailto:publications@estyn.gov.wales
http://www.estyn.gov.wales/

A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

Context

Regional profile

Central South Consortium provides school improvement services for a region of five
local authorities: Bridgend, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale
of Glamorgan.

The number of pupils of compulsory school age in the region in 2015 was 111,121.
This represents 31% of all pupils in Wales. There are 398 maintained schools in the
region, 25% of all maintained schools in Wales (PLASC, 2015).

In 2015, 20.7% of pupils in the region are eligible for free school meals. This is
above the Wales average and only 0.1 percentage point below that of the region with
the highest proportion of pupils eligible for free school meals.

In the region, 11% of people aged three and over say that they can speak Welsh
compared to the Wales average of 19% (2011 Census, ONS).

As of 31 December 2015, ethnic minorities account for 7% of the population in the
region, and this is just above the Wales average.

As of 31 March 2015, 2,015 children in the region are looked after by a local authority
and this represents 36% of looked-after children in Wales.

Performance profile

There has been strong improvement in the outcomes for pupils in the main indicators
for performance in all the key stages over the last three years across the five local
authorities served by the central south consortium. However, since September 2012,
only a minority of secondary schools inspected have been judged good or better for
their standards. This is a marginally lower proportion compared to the rest of Wales.

In 2015, over half of the schools in the region are in the higher 50% when their
performance is compared to that of similar schools for all the main indicators in the
Foundation Phase and key stages 2, 3 and 4. This is the only region where this is
the case. Overall, performance in this region has improved at a faster rate than in
the other regions over the last three years, although for several indicators this has
been from a low base.

Over the last three years, performance in the Foundation Phase indicator and key
stage 2 core subject indicator has increased at the fastest rate in Wales. When
inspected, a higher proportion of primary schools in central south Wales have been
judged good or better for their standards compared to those in the rest of Wales.

The proportion of pupils gaining the expected level in the core subject indicator at key
stage 3 has improved rapidly in central south Wales over the last three years, and at
a faster rate than the Wales average. In 2015, performance was close to being the
highest in Wales. The majority of schools in the region are in the higher 50% when
their performance is compared to that of similar schools.

Page 7




A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

The percentage of pupils achieving the level 2 threshold including a GCSE grade
A*-C in English or Welsh first language and mathematics has improved at a
particularly rapid pace over the last three years. Performance in every local authority
in the region met or exceeded the benchmark target set by the Welsh Government in
2015. Almost two-thirds of schools in the region are in the higher 50% compared to
similar schools, and only around one-sixth of schools are in the bottom 25% when
compared to similar schools. The performance of pupils eligible for free school
meals has improved at a faster rate than in the other regions over the last three
years, albeit from a very low base. The gap in performance between girls and boys
is the smallest for any of the four regions. However, boys’ performance across the
local authorities is far too variable.

At key stage 4, performance in the average capped wider points score has improved
well over the last three years. Performance in four of the five local authorities in the
region met or exceeded the benchmark target set by the Welsh Government in 2015.
Just over half the schools in the region are in the higher 50% when their performance
is compared to that of similar schools, and one-fifth of schools are in the bottom 25%
compared to similar schools.

Although performance in the level 1 threshold at key stage 4 has improved,
performance in the region has been the lowest in Wales for the last two years.
However, despite this, half of the secondary schools are in the higher 50% when their
performance is compared to that of similar schools.

The proportion of pupils achieving five A* or A grades or at GCSE or equivalent has
been above the Wales average for the last two years, having improved at the fastest
rate across the four regions. However, performance across the local authorities is
too variable.

Performance in English is particularly strong in the region. Performance at level 2 is
above the Wales average in 2015 and nearly two-thirds of secondary schools are in
the higher 50% when their performance is compared to that of similar schools.

Performance in mathematics is the weakest of the core subjects, although central
south Wales is the most improved region over the last three years.

Attendance has improved well in the region in recent years, increasing at a slightly
faster rate than the Wales average. Attendance rates in a majority of primary and
secondary schools place them in the higher 50% compared to similar schools in
Wales.

Page 8



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

Recommendations

R1 Ensure that school improvement services address the variability of performance
across schools and local authorities, particularly at key stage 4

R2 Improve the accuracy of the evaluations of schools by challenge advisers in
order to ensure a greater focus on improving teaching and leadership

R3 Strengthen the procedures for monitoring and evaluating the impact of school
improvement work

R4 Evaluate progress against the regional consortium’s operational plans more
effectively

Page 9




A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

Main findings

Support for School Improvement: Adequate

The consortium has a clear vision and strategy to improve schools that is understood
by most stakeholders and underpins the support for school improvement well.
Almost all schools across the region are engaging purposefully with school-to-school
working.

The consortium’s ‘Support and Challenge Framework’ provides useful guidance for
challenge advisers, local authority officers and schools. The framework outlines the
process for categorising schools clearly. It also indicates how challenge advisers
should work with schools in different categories of support. Following an evaluation,
the consortium has recently reviewed the framework to emphasise schools’
self-evaluation and improvement planning. They have also focused more sharply on
the improvement priorities for the region. This appropriately includes raising the
achievement of vulnerable groups of pupils.

Consortium leaders are developing the arrangements for collecting data to inform
school improvement processes and to improve their knowledge of schools well. This
includes collecting pupils’ performance data throughout the year, which allows the
consortium to track progress with greater accuracy in its schools. Many challenge
advisers use this data appropriately to challenge each school’s view of its standards
and capacity to improve, and to make informed decisions about the school’s support
needs.

The categorisation process is increasingly robust and fair, and identifies clearly those
aspects that require improvement. The process allows for a more open dialogue
between schools and the consortium and, overall, schools have a sound
understanding of what to expect. In the last two years there has been a reduction in
the proportion of schools requiring a higher degree of support. However, in a
minority of schools, there are still significant concerns.

Most challenge advisers’ reports on schools are based appropriately on first-hand
evidence, such as the scrutiny of pupils’ work and observations of teaching. The
consortium has suitable processes to quality assure the work of challenge advisers.
Senior challenge advisers make joint visits with challenge advisers and review the
guality of reports to schools. These activities have improved the consistency and
clarity of the reports provided to schools. However, in a few cases, challenge adviser
notes of visits to schools do not focus on the most important aspects requiring
improvement, such as the quality and consistency of teaching. In addition, in a few
instances, reports provided to Estyn in advance of an inspection do not reflect well
enough the findings of the inspection team, especially regarding the evaluation of
teaching and leadership.

In many schools, challenge advisers broker support appropriately and draw well on

the consortium’s provision for a wide range of school-to-school support and targeted
interventions.

Page 10




A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

The consortium works effectively with its local authority partners to share information
about the performance of schools across the region, and to identify schools causing
concern. Meetings to review the progress of schools in the highest categories of
support are regular and place an appropriate emphasis on the role of the
headteachers and governors to provide evidence of progress. Where there are
concerns about a school’s progress, the consortium acts swiftly to alert the local
authority and provides timely advice to support the local authority’s use of statutory
powers to intervene in the school.

Teacher assessment across the region is increasingly accurate. Generally, schools
are well-engaged and moderation processes have improved, helped by involvement
in the national verification programme. Challenge and strategic advisers support all
moderation events. The consortium has been proactive in including the Foundation
Phase in their verification processes, and this provides effective support for
practitioners.

To address national and regional priorities, the consortium has developed the role of
strategic advisers, who lead approaches to support schools in key areas. This
includes a regional strategy group to tackle poverty and disadvantage that is working
with a group of schools to identify, evaluate and develop effective practice across the
region. This work is well-planned, and has included commissioned research
resulting in a series of best practice case studies on improving outcomes for
disadvantaged pupils. This has helped to raise schools’ awareness of strategies to
tackle disadvantage.

The ‘Central South Wales Challenge’ is the consortium’s key strategy for school
improvement. It provides a wide range of professional learning opportunities for
schools across the region, at all levels of support, which reflect well the vision for a
self-improving school system. The strategy has four main activities; School
Improvement Groups (SIGs), ‘Pathfinders’, ‘Hubs’ and ‘Peer enquiry,” which together
form a coherent and well-designed approach to school-to-school-working.

All schools in the region belong to a SIG and most schools have engaged very
positively with this activity. The SIGs provide well-structured opportunities for
schools to work together on improvement priorities that are specific to their context,
and to share best practice. Engagement in this work has promoted productive
school-to-school working across the region.

Where more targeted school-to-school working is required, the consortium has paired
a number of schools in ‘Pathfinder’ partnerships through which effective schools
support those schools in need of improvement. This strategy has brought about
improvements in many of the schools involved.

‘Hub’ schools provide professional learning in specific priority areas, such as
teaching and leadership. There is a robust application process for schools to
become hubs to ensure that the lead school has the capacity to provide support.
This is a mutually beneficial process for both lead schools and those attending the
programmes. However, it is too early to judge the impact of this work.

Page 11



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

The consortium has rolled out two pilot cohorts of ‘peer enquiry’ in the region. This
involves two head teachers and a deputy head who are invited into a third school to
review self-evaluation and improvement planning, including lesson observation and
talking to learners and the senior leadership team. It is a method of building
leadership capacity and reflection and improving self-evaluation between peer head
teachers. The consortium has developed a clear methodology for its approach to
peer enquiry and there are early indications that is having a positive effect on
improving leadership capacity. However procedures for evaluating its impact are
underdeveloped.

These support opportunities have motivated teachers across the region to become
more active in and reflective on their own learning, and to support the development of
others. Although participation has been high, and teachers have welcomed these
opportunities for improvement, the procedures for monitoring and evaluating the
impact of this work on standards, teaching and leadership are underdeveloped. The
consortium is beginning to address this shortcoming.

There is a wide range of provision to improve literacy and numeracy in schools,
including core support for curriculum developments. It also addresses the needs of
specific groups of pupils, and provides valuable approaches to develop
school-to-school support to address the particular needs of individual schools.
Improvement in English has generally been good but the impact on pupils’ standards
in mathematics has been more limited. Overall, schools rely too heavily on
interventions in literacy and numeracy to improve outcomes rather than on the
development of teaching and leadership in these areas.

Following an extensive review of provision in the Foundation Phase, the consortium
established the Foundation Phase Alliance, a group of specialist schools and settings
for the Foundation Phase. The schools are committed to delivering professional
learning events to share their good practice. Case studies show examples of
improved practice. However, this work is at an early stage of development.

The consortium is developing a comprehensive suite of programmes to improve
leadership across the region. This includes a broad range of programmes for
headteachers at various stages of their careers to improve their practice, to gain the
skills to support other headteachers, or to lead more than one school. School
leaders show a strong commitment to developing a school-led self-improving system,
and there has been a high take-up of leadership programmes. The Central South
Wales Challenge (CSW) strategy group of headteachers provides a useful forum for
school leaders to discuss and develop the school-to-school working system.
Furthermore, there are valuable opportunities for teachers to develop their leadership
skills through the CSW Challenge, by leading school improvements in the SIGs and
in 'Hub’ schools. These development opportunities are beginning to build capacity
for improvement across the region, although it is too early to identify any sustained
impact on schools.

The recruitment of a regional lead officer for governor training has improved the
consortium’s capacity to work with local authorities to provide support for governors.

Page 12



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

Leadership: Good
Strategic leadership and management in the consortium are strong.

Senior leaders in the five local authorities and the senior management team in the
consortium have a clear shared strategic vision for the regional school improvement
service. These elected members and officers have worked effectively together to
develop this strategic vision and to put in place the appropriate governance structure
to drive this forward.

The consortium’s governance structure is set out clearly in the recently revised legal
agreement, which takes good account of the Welsh Government’s guidance on
implementing the National Model for School Improvement. This agreement confirms
that the consortium is a jointly provided school improvement service and establishes
an effective framework that allocates governance responsibilities and accountability
to a joint committee, an advisory board, strategic and operational management
groups and a host authority.

This agreement directs appropriate representation from each local authority at lead
director, chief executive, and lead member levels. Every local authority is
represented, and responsibilities are distributed between the five local authorities
with key posts rotating periodically. All of the five local authorities engage with the
governance structure well and have taken up their allotted representative posts and
duties.

The joint committee and the advisory board provide clear direction to the
consortium’s managing director and senior management team. These groups
provide the means by which the local authorities’ senior leaders exercise their
oversight of the work of the consortium. The consortium’s officers and the members
of these two groups understand their respective roles and responsibilities, and they
generally discharge these well. The consortium’s managing director and senior
management team are also supported well by other groups of stakeholders such as
the education directors’ strategic group, the headteachers’ steering group, and the
governors’ steering group.

The consortium has a clear and well-articulated vision for their self-improving schools
model. The vision has been communicated effectively through regular reports,
newsletters, briefings and its website and this has led to a high level of ‘buy-in’ by all
stakeholders. However, not all school governors and elected members understand
well enough the role of the consortium in raising pupils’ standards and the outcomes
it has achieved so far. The consortium is aware of this and is currently setting out in
more detail how its vision will develop over the medium term in line with national
expectations.

As well as working together well to develop the work of the consortium as a joint
school improvement service, the chief executives and directors of education of the
five local authorities are increasingly sharing other areas of common interest. This
has led to improvements in governor support, human resource services, and data
analysis. The five local authority chief executives have also recently commissioned a

Page 13



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

useful scoping exercise to identify other education services where joint working may
bring added value.

The consortium’s current business plan sets out well the strategic goals for the
consortium within a three-year vision, as well as its high level goals for the current
year. These take good account of both the Welsh Government’s school
improvement priorities and those for the region.

The consortium has worked well with the local authority scrutiny committees to
improve the impact of their oversight and challenge. There is now in place an agreed
cycle of visits by the managing director and chair of the joint committee to each
scrutiny committee. During these visits, the consortium presents a report setting out
clearly its evaluation of the outcomes from the work of the consortium for the local
authority’s schools and pupils. The consortium has also worked effectively with each
scrutiny committee to provide data and related information, as well as training, in
order to help the committee hold schools and officers to account for performance.
However, scrutiny chairs remain unclear about which aspects of the consortium’s
work they can and cannot scrutinise more directly.

Improving quality: Good

Over the last two years, the consortium has developed into a reflective organisation
that is committed to evaluating and improving its own practice and performance.
Senior leaders take good account of the views of a wide range of stakeholders and
adjust plans and processes when necessary to ensure these meet needs more
effectively. This is enabling leaders to secure increasingly accurate self-evaluation
arrangements and improvements to the current business planning processes.

Leaders and managers use a wide range of first-hand information well to inform the
self-evaluation process. This includes the careful analysis of data from consortium to
individual pupil level. As a result, the consortium has agreed a set of appropriate key
performance indicators against which it will measure progress over a three-year
cycle.

The current self-evaluation report provides a fair and balanced view of the
consortium’s overall performance. A wide range of stakeholders contribute to the
self-evaluation process and their views help to inform the final report. At the end of
each key question, the report provides a useful evaluative summary of the areas the
consortium identifies as in need of improvement.

Operational action plans for 2015-2016 reflect work streams required by the Welsh
Government and contain a brief outline of key milestones over the next three years.
The overarching business plan also includes annexes that set out how the
consortium tailors its work to support each local authority’s additional priorities.
These plans focus on important areas for improvement and include time scales and
costings but do not always identify clearly a lead individual to be held to account for
progress. Overall, the actions in the plans lack clarity and specific success criteria.
This makes it difficult for senior leaders to measure progress accurately. Senior
leaders monitor progress regularly against the actions and key priorities in the
operational plans through a colour-coded system, but this tends to focus on process

Page 14



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

rather than outcomes. Other arrangements to monitor the progress of the 2015-2016
operational plans are often too complicated and are unclear about what is being
measured.

For the 2016-2017 business planning process, leaders have taken good account of
the recommendations in the Estyn report of June 2015 ‘Improving Schools through
Regional Consortia’. The overarching business plan sets out clear performance
targets for schools for the next three years at each key stage. In addition, there are
precise targets to narrow the gap between the attainment of pupils eligible for free
school meals and other pupils and for raising attendance in primary and secondary
schools. These targets underpin effectively the three main improvement priorities in
the overarching business plan. The targets focus well on raising standards in literacy
and numeracy, supporting schools to become self-improving and ensuring that the
consortium is a high performing organisation. These improvement priorities form a
sound basis for the 2016-2017 operational action plans.

The operational plans link well to the consortium’s agreed key priorities and the
self-evaluation report. They contain explicit performance targets for a three-year
period. Each strategic activity details clear actions with specific success criteria and
timescales and a named responsible leader. There are appropriate costings to
support the implementation of actions but because budget level planning is built on a
single-year model dependent upon Welsh Government funding, these costings are
appropriate for a one-year period only. Good quality assurance procedures ensure
that all the plans contain the required information in a consistent format and meet
quality standards. These plans provide a sound foundation to move work forward
across the consortium.

There are appropriate procedures and processes to ensure that the consortium
identifies and deals with risks at different levels.

The consortium is strengthening its performance management arrangements for
individual members of staff. However, agreed objectives and identified success
criteria are not always precise enough to enable senior leaders to judge accurately
the quality of the work of their teams. There are appropriate arrangements in place
across the consortium to deal with underperformance through agreed informal and
formal processes.

Partnerships: Good

The consortium has successfully developed strong relationships with a range of
partners. This has led to a shared understanding of strategic priorities and a clear
commitment to working together to improve standards for all pupils.

The consortium has developed an effective partnership with its schools. This is
enabling it to move purposefully towards delivering its vision for a self-improving
school system.

There is a positive working relationship between consortium and local authority

senior managers. Directors, chief executives, senior officers and elected members
realise the benefits that can be gained from working within a wider region, and

Page 15



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

demonstrate a clear willingness to explore other opportunities for greater
collaboration both with the consortium and with each other.

The consortium is developing its partnership with governors through the development
of a governor steering group, governor briefings and mandatory data training. This is
helping governors to gain a better understanding of their role. The consortium has
started to involve experienced governors in school-to-school support through the
appointment of consultant governors.

The consortium is developing its partnership appropriately with a range of local
authority services. Close working with human resource (HR) departments and trade
unions across the five authorities has resulted in the development of shared
capability and performance management arrangements and this is improving the
support that schools receive.

The appointment of regional co-ordinators for HR, governance, attendance and
looked-after children is facilitating increased collaboration and sharing of good
practice between the five authorities. However, overall, this development is at an
early stage.

The consortium has appropriately recognised the need to develop closer working
between challenge advisers and inclusion staff to share information about vulnerable
groups of pupils. Across the region there are examples of useful collaboration
between these services in terms of joint meetings and visits to schools. A recently
formed inclusion strategy group is providing valuable opportunities for managers in
the five authorities to develop collaborative working and greater consistency across
the region. However, the collation and analysis of data about vulnerable pupils are at
an early stage of development.

Partnership with the diocesan authorities has improved, with regular meetings
between the diocesan education directors and consortium managers. This has led to
improved dialogue with senior officers about issues relating to faith schools.

There has been an improvement in the communication and working relationships
between consortium challenge advisers and Schools Challenge Cymru advisers.
This includes more effective sharing of data and reports as well as regular
attendance at meetings.

The consortium has developed a few useful links with external partners. For
example, links with higher education institutions have enabled the consortium to
develop a range of professional development opportunities for new and experienced
headteachers.

Collaboration with the other consortia has provided useful opportunities for sharing
good practice. Examples of these include the developments relating to Welsh
medium secondary education and the ‘Valleys Project’. However, it is too early to
evaluate the impact of this work.

Resource management: Adequate

The consortium has sound financial management processes in place, which allow for
budgets for core funding and grant expenditure to be set robustly and monitored

Pagen16



A report on the quality of the school improvement services provided by the Central South Consortium
— February 2016

carefully. Costs are kept under regular and tight review by consortium staff,
education directors and the joint committee. The consortium is managing the
challenges of grant allocation well. This is helped by solid relationships between
finance officers in the consortium and local authorities.

The link between the business planning process and spending decisions is
developing well. The consortium is making good use of data to allocate resources
against key priorities. As part of its priority of school-led support, the consortium
increased the proportion of grant funding delegated to schools from 2015-2016
compared with previous years. This proportion is higher than Welsh Government
requirements.

The local authority core funding to the consortium is lower than set out in the Welsh
Government’s National Model for Regional Working, although this is partly because
local authorities continue to provide certain services such as HR support. The
consortium has been proactive in identifying efficiencies by reducing both
administration costs and duplication of work and increasing external income from the
use of its office space. This has enabled the consortium to reduce the local authority
core funding by 5% for 2016-2017 and a further 5% for 2017-2018 without impacting
on core services. Plans are in place to review other areas for collaboration across
the region, such as governor support, further to reduce costs and improve the
effectiveness of the services.

The consortium has started to assess its value for money, although it recognises that
there is still further work to do to develop this process and demonstrate that the use
of resources is having the best possible impact on outcomes. The consortium has
used the results of its value for money reviews to reconfigure particular services such
as Foundation Phase support. This has led to a reduction in costs in this area.
However, it is too early to assess the impact of these changes to determine if they
have delivered better value for money.

Page 17



Appendix 1

The inspection team

Iwan Roberts Reporting Inspector
Sarah Lewis Team Inspector
Caroline Rees Team Inspector
Rhona Edwards Team Inspector
Mark Campion Team Inspector
Gerard Kerslake Team Inspector
Jassa Scott Team Inspector
Margaret Elisabeth Davies Team Inspector
Sophie Knott WAO

Sue Walker Nominee

Copies of the report

Copies of this report are available on the Estyn website (www.estyn.gov.wales)

Page 18



http://www.estyn.gov.wales/

Glossary of terms

National Curriculum
Expected National Curriculum levels

e By the end of the Foundation Phase, at the age of seven, pupils are expected to
reach Foundation Phase outcome 5 and the more able outcome 6.

e By the end of the key stage 2, at the age of eleven, learners are expected to
reach level 4 and the more able to reach level 5.

e By the end of the key stage 3, at the age of fourteen, learners are expected to
reach level 5 and the more able to reach level 6 or level 7.

Foundation Phase indicator (FPI)

Progress in learning through the Foundation Phase is indicated by outcomes (from
outcome 1 to outcome 6). The Foundation Phase indicator (FPI) relates to the
expected performance in three areas of learning in the Foundation Phase: literacy,
language and communication in English or Welsh first language; mathematical
development; personal and social development, wellbeing and cultural diversity
Pupils must achieve the expected outcome (outcome 5) in the three areas above to
gain the Foundation Phase indicator.

Core subject indicator in key stages 2, 3and 4

The core subject indicator relates to the expected performance in English or Welsh
first language, mathematics and science, the core subjects of the National
Curriculum. Learners must gain at least the expected level in either English or Welsh
first language together with mathematics and science to gain the core subject
indicator.

External examinations at key stage 4 or post-16

Core subject indicator — as above.

Level 1 qualification — the equivalent of a GCSE at grade D to G.

The Level 1 threshold — learners must have gained a volume of qualifications
equivalent to five GCSEs at grades D to G.

Level 2 qualification — the equivalent of a GCSE at grade A* to C.

The Level 2 threshold — learners must have gained a volume of qualifications
equivalent to five GCSEs at grade A* to C.

The Level 2 threshold including English or Welsh first language and

mathematics — learners must have gained level 2 qualifications in English or Welsh
first language and in mathematics as part of their threshold.

Page 19




Level 3 qualification — the equivalent of an A level at A* to C.

The Level 3 threshold — learners must have gained a volume of qualifications
equivalent to two A levels at grade A* to E.

The average wider points score includes all external qualifications approved for
use in Wales at the relevant age — for example at age 16 or 18. To calculate this, the
total points gained by all learners in the cohort is divided by the number of learners.

The capped average points score only includes the best eight results for each pupil
from all qualifications approved for use in Wales at age 16.

All-Wales Core Data sets

Schools and local authorities may refer to performance relative to their family of
schools. These families of schools have been created to enable schools to compare
their performance to similar schools across Wales. Families include schools with
similar proportions of pupils entitled to free school meals, living in 20% most deprived
areas of Wales, having special education needs at school action plus or statemented
and with English as an additional language acquisition less than competent.

Page 20



Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

Central South Consortium. JOINT COMMITTEE REPORT SEPTEMBER 2016 AGENDA ITEM 4

Date: 20" September June 2016

Issue: Update against recommendations by Estyn for Central South
Consortium

Summary

1.

Estyn and the Welsh Audit Office (WAO) undertook joint fieldwork into the
progress and effectiveness of consortia working from October 2014 — January
2015, and both published reports in the summer of 2015.

. Following the fieldwork, Estyn inspected all four consortia during the 2015/16

academic year. The Central South Consortium was inspected in March 2016 and
was the first to be inspected under a new Consortia inspection framework.

Since then, the remaining three consortia have been inspected. Annex B
provides a summary of all recommendations across the four consortia.

In October, the WAO will publish in October, a progress report against their initial
recommendations from the June 2015 report.

The Central South report was mostly positive recognising the scale of
improvement across schools within the Central South region since the
Consortium working began in Wales in 2012. It gave ‘good’ judgements for
leadership, self evaluation and improvement planning and partnerships.

Judgements for support for school improvement and resource management
remained ‘adequate’ which in Estyn terms means ‘strengths outweigh areas for
improvement’. There were four recommendations for the Consortium to take on
board ahead of a likely revisit by Estyn in the autumn of 2017.

The Joint Committee asked for an update against the recommendations each
time they meet. This report provides this update on progress since the report was
published for discussion.

Recommendation

8.

Members of the Joint Committee should:

a. Note the attached report setting out progress against the inspection report
and recommendations (Annex A);

b. Note the recommendations for all consortia (Annex B);

c. Note that the WAO will publish a follow up report to their intial thematic
review in October, for the Public Accounts Committee which reflects
progress of all four consortia.

Page 21
35



Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

Central South Consortium. JOINT COMMITTEE REPORT SEPTEMBER 2016 AGENDA ITEM 4

Background

9. Estyn inspected the Consortium in February/March 2016 under their new
framework for Consortia published the previous autumn. It was the first of the four
consortia to be inspected. All four consortia have since been inspected and had a
published reports (outcomes set out in Annex B).

10.The Welsh Audit Office have been conducting further fieldwork to follow their
report published in May 2015. The Auditor General will publish a follow up report
in October for the Public Accounts Committee.

11.The other three consortia have since also been subject to inspection. An analysis
of all four reports plus recommendations and judgements can be found at Annex
B.

12. Since the Central South report was published, school results in the central south
region reported in August indicated a fourth successive year of improvement
across the region, indicating that the region sits for the first time above the
national average at all five key stages with another year or rapid improvement at
GCSE and in mathematics in particular.

Progress against recommendations

13. There were also a number of areas for improvement in the four
recommendations within the report. These were to:

1. Ensure that school improvement services address the variability of
performance across schools and local authorities, particularly at key stage
4;

2. Improve the accuracy of the evaluations of schools by challenge advisers
in order to ensure a greater focus on improving teaching and leadership;

3. Strengthen the procedures for monitoring and evaluating the impact of
school improvement work; and

4. Evaluate progress against the regional consortium’s operational plans
more effectively.

14.In June, the Joint Committee received a report on actions planned against
each recommendation with expected impact.

15. Attached at Annex B is a progress report against these planned actions
indicating areas of progress and areas which are priorities for this term. These
sit within the business plan and are monitored monthly as part of our self
evaluation processes. The December report will include impact against
actions drawing from self evaluation processes based on validated data.

Page 22
36



Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016
Central South Consortium. JOINT COMMITTEE REPORT SEPTEMBER 2016 AGENDA ITEM 4

Attachments:
Annex A: Progress report against recommendations.

Annex B: Analysis of all four consortia inspections.

Hannah Woodhouse

20" September 2016

Page 23
37



Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

This page intentionally blank

Page 24
38



Gz abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

Annex A: Progress against recommendations (lifted from CSC business plan monitoring).

Recommendation

What are we planning?

Key actions/ progress to September 2016:
Note: evidence/ data concerning impact to date will be
presented in the December meeting

R1 Ensure that
school improvement
services address the
variability of
performance across
schools and local
authorities,
particularly at key
stage 4

v" Improving provision of pupil level data through the
establishment of a pupil level database.

v" Collecting schools’ self-evaluation reports,
improvement plans and targets much earlier in the
academic year so that we are able to identify at an
early stage whether the targets set will reduce
variability of performance between schools and
authorities.

v' Enabling challenge advisers to challenge
expectations and the targets set where they are not
high enough to ensure that:
¢ the variations against key indicators reduce;

e we see continuing improvement across the
region in all schools.

v" Collecting information about pupils’ progress
towards targets in secondary and primary schools
more readily through the year to help monitor
progress.

v" Developing and coordinating a strategy to improve
performance in secondary schools across the
region both pre- and post sixteen.

v Establishing an intervention strategy to achieve a
consistent approach across the region that will
secure improvement at pace in schools causing the
greatest concern, including use of the local
authority’s statutory powers.

v’ Strengthening the coordination of joint working with
local authorities’ inclusion services when supporting
schools requiring red or amber support.

v Continuing work to monitor and improve the

» Procurement process for development of pupil level

database agreed but timescale lengthened to spring term
2016 to reflect scale of task.

Inclusion data pack now established to provide improved
data for the analysis of performance by specific groups.
Submission of schools’ self-evaluation reports,
improvement plans and targets is more prompt than in
previous years but still a need to reinforce expectations to
ensure full compliance.

Full, experienced challenge adviser team in place
including SCC advisers working as part of team;
Arrangements being made for collection of in-year data
about pupils’ progress.

Draft secondary strategy being developed further in
response to feedback with emphasis given to capacity
building in partnership with schools with focuses on
improving leadership, teaching, management of curricular
change, improving pupils’ performance and intervention in
inverse proportion to success.

Secondary performance board established; arrangements
being made to discuss strategy and agree with
headteachers

Intervention strategy agreed and in place to provide
framework for schools causing concern, process in place
to identify schools which require formal and informal
intervention.

Inclusion working group now established. Have provided
input into development of inclusion data pack. Scope for
collaboration in areas of service provision discussed in
response to directors’ remit. Collaboration also in

39




9z abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

consistency of teacher assessment.

Taking action to raise standards further and improve
the quality of teaching and leadership in literacy and
English/ Welsh and mathematics.

Increasing the supply of secondary mathematics
teachers.

Working with schools to improve the outcomes
achieved by eFSM pupils, looked after children,
more able pupils, pupils with SEN or EAL and in so
doing narrowing the gaps overall on the basis of
improvement by all pupils.

responding to allocation of innovation grant by Welsh
Government in context of ALN Bill nationally.

» Development of national recruitment branding and
marketing campaign for core subjects in partnership with
other consortia for roll out in early 2017.

» Forward planning by assessment lead to provide further
professional development for assessment leaders in
schools, building on practice and recommendations from
2015-2016.

Priorities for this term:

e Complete procurement of provider for development of
pupil level database and begin development.

e Clarify with Welsh Government requirements concerning
future secondary performance measures so that
challenge advisers can scrutinise and challenge schools
targets effectively.

e Ensure secondary strategy reflects emphasis in the
region on building capacity to be self-improving.

e Ensure consistency and impact in intervention across
secondary schools, particularly where vulnerable groups
not making sufficient progress.

e Agree key work streams for inclusion working group
during 2016-2017.

’

R2 Improve the
accuracy of the
evaluations of
schools by challenge
advisers in order to
ensure a greater
focus on improving
teaching and
leadership

Reviewing and developing further the service’s
protocol, assessment criteria for writing reports and
exemplar materials to ensure consistency.

Making the evaluation of teaching and leadership
more explicit.

Ensuring this is a focus in the professional
development of senior challenge advisers,
challenge advisers and the strategic teams.
Linking this with the performance management
objectives of staff.

Intensifying action to quality assure written reports.

» Guidance concerning categorisation reports, pre-
inspection briefings and inspection follow up progress
reports revised and strengthened.

Service’s writing protocol revised to provide more specific
guidance

Written examples of all types of report provided to
promote consistency.

Expectations concerning evaluation of teaching and
leadership made explicit and included in examples.
Support and professional development for senior
challenge advisers provided through workshop in July

YV VvV V¥V

A\

40




/¢ abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

v" Continuing the practice where senior challenge
advisers accompany challenge advisers when
undertaking work in schools to assure quality and
promote consistency.

with former HMI to support quality assurance role.

Focus on expectations about writing, including evaluation
of teaching and leadership, in programme at start of term
for new and existing challenge advisers.

Arrangements put in place to quality assure
categorisation reports and consistency of outcomes
across the region.

Arrangements also made to continue practice where line
manager accompanies each challenge adviser at one
review, challenge and support meeting.

Initial planning to link with performance management
objectives.

Priorities for this term:

Ensure that guidance, quality assurance and support
achieve consistency across the categorisation process,
which is earlier than in previous years.

R3 Strengthen the
procedures for
monitoring and
evaluating the
impact of school
improvement work

v" Review and revise the Framework for Challenge
and Support to strengthen the impact of the
monitoring, evaluation and brokerage activity of
challenge advisers in order to meet the expectations
inherent in recommendation 1 above, namely:
¢ reducing the variations in performance between
schools and authorities;

e improving the performance of secondary
schools;

e improving the outcomes of specific groups
vulnerable to underachievement.

v" Using the regional analysis of needs that has been
completed to guide the work of the hubs, SIGs and
the intervention in red and amber support schools.

v Establishing baseline measures and success
criteria at the outset to support evaluation of the
impact of the support provided by:

e professional learning and curriculum hubs in the

The challenge framework has been updated to reflect the
further changes to national categorisation

Challenge advisers will now have access to improved
information about the achievement of specific groups to
inform their support and challenge.

The guidelines for the action to be taken by schools and
challenge advisers when there is an unexpected drop in
outcomes have been issued and are being used to
determine next steps in response to the analysis of
outcomes.

All programmes offered by hub schools are aligned to the
analysis of regional needs and follow an enquiry- led
approach.

Establishment of research and development board in
partnership with Cardiff University and work to develop
evidence of the impact of school-based improvement
work under way. Long table exercise conducted with
leads in five areas. Learning points for the organisation

41




gz abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

English and Welsh-medium sectors, including
the Foundation Phase Alliance;

lead practitioners;

SIGs;

pathfinder partnerships;

the leadership development programmes;
peer enquiry;

programmes to improve the quality of learning
and teaching

e consultant leaders and consultant governors.
Continuing work to assess the progress of red and
amber support schools against clear targets and
success criteria.

Implementing the research and evaluation strategy,
supported by researchers from Cardiff University,
integrating this with an annual plan for assessing
value for money against our key strategies.

being collated in a report. Aspects of the five identified
areas to be selected, a baseline established and impact
measured.

Recruitment of a number of teacher researchers
completed as part of the planned capacity with
appointment of a project officer planned for the current
half term.

As part of this work, a survey and sampling techniques
being established. A 20% survey of schools has been
commissioned to baseline proxy indicators of capacity
building in the system.

Evaluation of peer enquiry by HMI Ofsted completed.
Guidance and expectations for 2016-2017 strengthened.
Implementation of phase 3 following training later this
month.

A provisional view of schools likely to require amber or
red support in 2016-2017 has been established and this
will be confirmed through the categorisation process.
There is likely to be a further reduction of around 25%.
Arrangements are being made to broker support and
begin the process of monitoring and reporting progress as
soon as possible in the term.

Service’s self-evaluation report and associated process
being develop to ensure ownership and the creation of a
live document.

Priorities for this term

Carry out a more substantial review of the challenge
framework from the spring term 2017.

Deliver baseline indicators and confidence about research
and evaluation capacity to capture impact in the system
against each school to school strategy.

R4 Evaluate
progress against the

v" Providing internal challenge by continuing to

monitor progress against operational action plans

Monthly monitoring of progress against key actions and
expectations for position in each term established.

42




62 abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

regional
consortium’s
operational plans
more effectively.

monthly.

Refining the service’s performance dashboard to
evaluate noteworthy progress, barriers and risk and
action in response.

Ensuring that monitoring assesses progress against
termly milestones as well as key actions and
evaluates the extent to which improvement is
occurring as intended.

Providing external challenge through the meetings
of the advisory board and joint committee.
Implementing the service’s new system — CRONFA-
to improve information management.

» Performance dashboard reconfigured as intended. Now

provides better focus on barriers to progress and action to
be taken in response.

Advisory board provided with information and data to
support challenge role.

The new information management system has now gone
live. Training has been provided both for schools and staff
within the consortium

Priorities for this term:

Ensure that monitoring of progress draws not just on

evidence about completed actions but also emerging

evidence about impact and improvement as set out in
termly milestones as part of embedded SER.

43




Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

This page intentionally blank

Page 30
44



T¢ obed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

Annex B: Estyn Consortia reports. Sept 16

NB: This is analysis carried out by ERW Directors and does not repeat every aspect of all reports.

Strengths — Black

Areas for Improvement / Issues - Red

KQ CSC GwE EAS ERW
2.1: Support for School Improvement Adequate Adequate Good Good
. The consortium has a clear vision . Inspection outcomes also show . The EAS has a three-year strategy . In most cases, advisers challenge

and strategy to improve schools
that is understood by most
stakeholders.

. Almost all schools across the
region are engaging purposefully
with school-to-school working.

. The consortium has recently
reviewed the framework to
emphasise schools’ self-evaluation
and improvement planning

. In the last two years there has
been a reduction in the
proportion of schools requiring a
higher degree of support.
However, in a minority of schools,
there are still significant concerns.

. The Challenge and support
framework provides useful
guidance for challenge advisers
nad has been reviewed to focus
sharply on improvement priorities

. Activities have improved the
consistency and clarity of the
reports provided to schools and
arrangements for collecting data.

. However, in a few cases, challenge
adviser notes of visits to schools
do not focus on the most
important aspects requiring
improvement, such as the quality
and consistency of teaching.

. Meetings to review the progress
of schools in the highest
categories of support are regular

that schools are, in the main,
categorised appropriately.

. a high proportion of resource and
focus in the consortium was given
to improving schools categorised
as red and amber. This activity
resulted in improvements in many
of these schools. However, the
rate of improvement in other
schools slowed and the
consortium did not identify
shortcomings that resulted in
unexpectedly weak outcomes at
key stage 4 in 2015.
Inconsistencies in target-setting
and tracking projected outcomes
across the region’s secondary
schools meant the consortium did
not challenge under-performance
robustly enough. Although the
consortium has since provided
further guidance to schools on
how targets should be set, the
resulting targets agreed by
schools, local authorities and the
consortium result in regional
targets that are much higher than
the targets the consortium had
previously agreed in its business
plan, particularly in relation to the
performance of pupils eligible for
free school meals.

. However, data is not always used
effectively or appropriately

in place for implementing its
school-to-school support
programme.

(EIBs)Through these boards, the
EAS holds school leaders to
account for the progress being
made more robustly.

local authorities are provided with
sufficient information to support
their use of statutory powers to
intervene in these schools.

The EAS monitors many headline
performance indicators across the
region carefully and uses this
information well to inform
priorities in the business plan. As a
result, where there has been a
specific focus on improving
outcomes such as in English and
mathematics at GCSE, standards
have improved.

Challenge advisers and senior
leaders do not focus enough on
the full range of performance data
to ensure that all learners across
the region are challenged to make
good progress across a range of
learning areas.

However, in a few schools,
teacher assessment remains
unreliable.

The EAS provides a coherent
range of training and support
materials to raise standards in

school leaders robustly about the
school’s performance, provision
and leadership and agree
appropriate priorities for support
for the year ahead. As a result,
ERW categorises schools
appropriately. In a few cases,
challenge advisers are too
generous in their judgements
about schools and miss important
areas for improvement in the
school.

. In most cases, ERW provides local
authorities with enough
information to support their use
of statutory powers of
intervention in schools that are
causing concern. Schools causing
concern often make good
progress in the region. Although a
few secondary schools do not
make good progress, the reasons
for this are, in part, a matter for
the relevant local authorities to
address rather than the regional
school improvement service.

. ERW supports local authorities to
agree suitable statutory targets
for performance at the end of key
stages in every school. ERW does
not set other targets with all
schools. However, other specific
targets are often used effectively
with schools identified for

45




2 abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

and place an appropriate
emphasis on the role of the
headteachers and governors to
provide evidence of progress.
Where there are concerns about a
school’s progress, the consortium
acts swiftly to alert the local
authority and provides timely
advice to support the local
authority’s use of statutory
powers to intervene in the school.
The strategy has four main
activities; School Improvement
Groups (SIGs), ‘Pathfinders’,
‘Hubs’ and ‘Peer enquiry
However procedures for
evaluating its impact are
underdeveloped.

Overall, schools rely too heavily
on interventions in literacy and
numeracy to improve outcomes
rather than on the development
of teaching and leadership in
these areas.

The consortium is developing a
comprehensive suite of
programmes to improve
leadership across the region.

enough in evaluating programmes
and projects to support school
improvement.

However, challenge advisers’
evaluations in a few schools are
too generous or too vague and do
not evaluate leadership well
enough.

self-improving system’ where
leaders of education provide
‘mutual support and challenge to
raise standards in all schools’.
Headteachers are very positive
about this cultural change and
exemplify early benefits
anecdotally. There are examples
of robust, helpful challenge
between headteachers engaged in
the first year of this programme.
However, evaluations in peer
review reports tend to rely too
heavily on data without checking
this against first-hand evidence
such as lesson observations or
scrutiny of learners’ work.
Challenge advisers join discussions
between headteachers but do not
always carry out their quality
assurance role rigorously enough.
The consortium has been slow to
provide clear and consistent
challenge and support for schools
on reducing the impact of
deprivation on outcomes.

The consortium has developed a
comprehensive and coherent
range of programmes to develop
leadership in the region

local authorities have sufficient
intelligence to support the use of
their statutory powers of
intervention in schools causing
concern.

English and literacy. Schools
receive details of the support
available through the professional
learning offer. In addition, the EAS
has supported local authorities to
address particular priorities, for
example in working to improve
pupils’ standards in writing in
Blaenau Gwent, or pupils’ reading
in Torfaen.

However, success criteria for
aspects of the service offer are
not always clear or measurable
enough to enable the EAS to
evaluate the impact of actions.
However, although the
performance of pupils eligible for
free school meals has improved
slowly across the region at key
stage 4, it varies notably across
the five local authorities.

This enables headteachers from
successful, often high achieving,
schools to work together as a
small group and visit each other’s
schools.

The EAS provides strong support
for school governors.

intensive support.

most reports that ERW provides to
Estyn prior to school inspections
or monitoring visits show a sound
understanding of a school’s
strengths and areas for
improvement.

The consortium now has strong
quality assurance processes in
place for the work of its challenge
advisers and other school
improvement staff.

In most schools, ERW successfully
provides or brokers suitable
support to address areas for
improvement.

ERW uses its knowledge of good
practice well to broker a
significant amount of school-to-
school support, which usually
works successfully.

use of the Pupil Deprivation Grant.
However, ERW’s evaluation of the
impact of funding on learners’
standards is limited.

ERW has good systems for
recording information about their
work with, and evaluations of,
schools.

3.1 Leadership

Senior leader in authorities and in

Adequate

underpinned by a vision of a

Good

The membership of the board has

established a strong identity for
ERW.

46




cc abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

the senior management team
have a clear shared strategic
vision of the service and there is
appropriate governance in place.
The consortium has a clear and
well-articulated vision for their
self-improving schools model.
However, not all school governors
and elected members understand
well enough the role of the
consortium in raising pupils’
standards and the outcomes it has
achieved so far.

The joint committee and advisory
board provide clear direction to
the consortium’s managing
director and senior management
team.

The five local authority chief
executives have also recently
commissioned a useful scoping
exercise to identify other
education services where joint
working may bring added value.
The consortium has worked
effectively with each scrutiny
committee to provide data,
training in order to help the
committee hold schools and
officers to account for
performance.

However, scrutiny chairs remain
unclear about which aspects of
the consortium’s work they can
and cannot scrutinise more
directly.

self-improving system that is
generally well understood by the
majority of stakeholders.
However, the strategic overview
and accountability of joint working
within a range of partnerships is
not fully developed.

The management board provides
appropriate challenge to the
consortium’s officers in most
areas, although they do not
sufficiently challenge the quality
of the consortium’s self-
evaluation processes and reports.
There is a better balance between
challenge and support to schools
and there are indications that the
approach is having a positive
impact on improving outcomes in
schools categorised as red and
amber.

However, the arrangements
between the scrutiny committees
and GwE officers are not always
planned sufficiently in advance
and this brings unnecessary
pressure on officers to respond at
short notice.

stabilised, and the board is now
realising the benefits of operating
as a company. In particular, this
approach to providing a regional
service is enabling the board to
make decisions quickly and take
swift action to address issues.
The board holds the interim
managing director to account
increasingly effectively, although
formal performance management
arrangements for this role are not
currently in place.

EAS has tailored its work well to
support the context of each local
authority. Targets for
improvement in the plan do not
take enough account of wide
range of performance indicators in
order to fully measure progress in
areas for improvement, such as
the performance of vulnerable
learners and more able learners.
Leaders in the EAS and the local
authorities have developed
trusting relationships that allow
for effective mutual challenge of
each other’s work. This means
that barriers to the successful
delivery of the business plan are
addressed quickly.

she has streamlined
communication with schools and
brought additional clarity and
rigour to several aspects of the
daily work of staff.

As a consequence of this joint
working, there has been improved
support and challenge to schools
within the region, with more
consistent collection and analysis
of data and better evaluation of
provision and leadership in
schools.

However, the agendas, minutes
and reports for many of these
groups do not provide a clear
enough record of what has been
discussed, the actions agreed,
progress made, or the implications
of these to the work of ERW.This
means that decisions taken,
important changes, progress
against expected milestones, and
interim outcomes are not
recorded well enough, which
makes it difficult to monitor and
audit what is going on effectively.
Despite occasional lapses,
communication between ERW’s
senior leaders and local authority
senior leaders is usually good
enough to sustain effective
working relationships between all
leaders.

Each local authority’s education
department has its own strategic
planning documents .. and there
are many links with ERW’s
Regional Strategy and Business
Plan. In most local authority
education improvement plans, the
contribution of ERW is clearly laid
out. However, in a few plans this
is less clear, which makes it more
difficult to track how the
contribution of ERW will be
targeted and to evaluate the
potential impact of specific pieces
of work in these local authorities.
ERW takes appropriate account of

47




7€ obed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

local and national priorities in its
strategic planning and
workstreams, such as improving
literacy and numeracy, improving
pupil attendance, closing the
gender performance gap.
However, the quality of individual
strategy documents varies too
widely.

. ERW generally supports elected
members well in carrying out their
scrutiny functions. Local authority
portfolio holders do not have a
clear enough input to the
management or oversight of the
work of ERW despite their key
responsibility in their local
authority for the oversight of
education services.

3.2: Improving Quality

Good

. Over the last two years the
consortium has developed into a
reflective organisation that is
committed to evaluating and
improving its own practice and
performance.

. Senior leaders take good account
of a wider range of stakeholders
and adjust plans when necessary
to meet needs. This is enabling
leaders to secure increasingly
accurate self evaluation
arrangements and improvements
to the business planning process.

. These plans focus on important
areas for improvement and
include time scales and costings.

. The consortium is strengthening
its performance management
arrangements for individual
members of staff. However, in
2014/15 agreed objectives and
identified success criteria were
not always precise enough to
enable senior leaders to judge

Adequate

. They regularly consult with
schools and other partners to
gauge opinions, on the overall
quality of the school improvement
service.

. However, senior leaders do not
always use data at pupil level
effectively enough to inform their
judgements about strengths and
areas for improvement in all
performance outcomes, for
example in analysing the
outcomes of groups of pupils,
including vulnerable pupils, at a
regional level.

o However, the few evaluations that
have been conducted rely too
heavily on a narrow breadth of
evidence, tend to focus on process
rather than outcomes and are
generally too descriptive. This
hinders senior leaders’ abilities to
reflect on the overall effectiveness
of the initiatives.

. However, the self-evaluation

Service area leaders review
progress half-yearly. The best
examples of reviews are analytical
and identify clearly the impact of
actions in schools. A few
evaluations are not sharp or
specific enough. However, the
senior management team offers
appropriate challenge to team
leaders and supports them well to
improve their analyses.

To provide a more frequent check
on progress, self-evaluation is
enhanced by the use of the ‘FADE’
approach, in which the capital
letters stand for focus, analyse,
do, evaluate.

However, in a few areas, targets
for improvement do not focus
well enough on important areas
for improvement, such as raising
achievement in the capped points
score. This means that it is difficult
for leaders to monitor progress in
these areas.

The Joint Executive Group (JEG)

Adequate

. ERW has sound arrangements for
evaluating the effectiveness of its
school improvement services.

. There are strong procedures for
gathering evidence about the
quality and impact of support that
is provided to schools.

° However, evaluations lack
sufficient detail about the
performance of groups of pupils,
including vulnerable pupils, at a
regional level.

. The key regional priorities are
grouped into three relevant
strategic areas: leading learning;
teaching and learning; and
support for learning.

. However, the business plan and
related documentation do not set
out clearly enough how the
impact of ERW’s work is to be
evaluated and how progress
against ERW’s priorities will be
tracked and measured. This limits
ERW’s capacity to capture,

48




G¢e abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

accurately the quality of the work
of their teams, 2015/16 shows
improvement.

report is generally too descriptive
and lacks sufficiently robust
evaluation of the effectiveness of
the consortium’s work.

the priorities focus well on
supporting schools to become
self-improving and on ensuring
that the consortium is consistent
in its support and challenge of
schools in the region. However,
many of the priorities, their
associated milestones, and the
delivery actions within the
workstreams lack measurable
targets or clear success criteria.
This makes it difficult for senior
leaders to measure progress
within the region accurately
enough.

However, these risks are not
considered or evaluated
systematically by the Joint
Committee or other groups to
which they are assigned. As a
result, the consortium lacks
appropriate ownership of the risks
in order to work effectively to
mitigate their possible effect.

and the company board scrutinise
the delivery of the business plan
with increasing effectiveness and
an appropriate level of challenge.
Reports to the JEG and the
company board now identify risks
and make suitable reference to
the risk register. However, the
formal identification and
management of risk in the
company are at an early stage of
development.

. The service has also used external
surveys effectively to improve its
quality improvement procedures.

process, analyse, and report on
the information needed to review
how effectively it is improving
aspects of its service.

. ERW has suitable performance
management arrangements for its
central team of staff. They all have
relevant performance
management objectives.
However, in a few instances these
objectives are not linked clearly
enough to the ERW business plan.
This makes it difficult for senior
leaders to monitor individuals’
contributions to the overarching
goals.

3.3 Partnerships

Good

The consortium has successful
developed strong relationships
with a range of partners.

The consortium has started to
involve experienced governors in
school-to-school support through
the appointment of consultant
governors.

The consortium has appropriately
recognised the need to develop
closer working between challenge
advisers and inclusion staff to
share information about
vulnerable groups of pupils.

Adequate

However, the strategic role of the
regional networks and their
accountability to the Joint
Committee is not clear and the
future direction of aspects of their
work within the National Model
has not been fully identified.

the work undertaken by the
Special Educational Needs (SEN)
and Inclusion Network, systems
and processes are more consistent
across the region. For example,
there is a cohesive approach to
co-ordinating services

Good

. There are good arrangements for
sharing information between the
local authorities and the EAS. For
example, the useful monthly
meetings of local authority and
the EAS officers to discuss and
share information about specific
issues in schools enable
appropriate and timely support to
be provided to schools.

. The EAS works well with the local
authorities to support pupils with
additional learning needs (ALN)
and to promote social inclusion
and wellbeing.

. The collaborative working and the

Good

. Headteachers and local authority
officers contribute well in
influencing the strategic direction
and priorities of ERW.

. Governors generally have a good
understanding of data at governor
level due to the training provided
by ERW. They are however less
clear about the differences
between the support provided by
ERW and that provided by local
authorities.

. However, the role that the
diocesan authorities have in
shaping regional policy is less well
developed.

49




9¢ abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

recent joint planning of the
resource have led to economies of
scale in the delivery of training
across the region and the
establishment of common policies
and working practices.

3.4 Resource management

Adequate

. The consortium has sound
financial management processes
in place which allow for budgets
to be set robustly and monitored
carefully. Costs are kept under
regular and tight review.

. The consortium is making good
use of data to allocate resources
against key priorities.

. This has enabled the consortium
to reduce the local authority
core funding by 5% for 2016-2017
and a further 5% for 2017-2018
without impacting on core
services. Plans are in place to
review other areas for
collaboration across the region,
such as governor support, further
to reduce costs and improve the
effectiveness of the services.

Unsatisfactory

However, GWE has not fully
developed its financial analysis to
support the delivery of its three-
year business plan. GWE has yet to
develop a medium-term financial
plan or workforce plan aligned to
its business plan.

However around 11 per cent of
GWE’s core funding is retained by
the local authorities to deliver
governor advice and support,
regional ICT, and specialist HR
support through regional
networks. The delivery of the
Foundation Phase, 14-19 learning
pathways and Welsh in Education
strategic plans and Welsh in
Education grant are still delivered
by the local authorities and are
funded by the non-delegated
element of the Education
Improvement Grant.

GWE recognises that there is
further work required to align
grant allocations with its priorities,
although progress to date has
been limited.

GWE does not currently
systematically collate the
information gathered on schools’
use of grant funding and therefore
opportunities to share effective
practice and wider learning are
not fully exploited.

There is not a consistent view
across all stakeholders of how the
value for money of GwE’s

Good

. There are recent, clear
arrangements in place to
demonstrate how resources are
allocated to priorities and to
identify the resources used for
each element of the business plan
and its detailed appendices.

. the EAS and local authorities have
agreed to a reduction of 3% in
core funding for 2016-2017
alongside a reduction in grant
income.

. Whilst lacking a written workforce
strategy, the EAS has a reasonable
understanding of future workforce
needs and this has informed the
business plan and the draft
medium-term financial plan.

. A recent value for money report
to the Joint Executive Group ...
considers appropriately the
resources applied to the work of
challenge advisers, school-to-
school developments and training
at local authority level, and notes
the categorisation of each school
at local authority level. This type
of analysis enables the resources
used and value for money to be
considered in the light of future
changes to categorisation of
schools overall and for each local
authority.

Good

. School improvement funding is
largely retained within the six
local authorities and resources are
allocated within the region
according to need, which is based
primarily on the categorisation
process.

. As outlined in ERW’s legal
agreement, each of the six local
authorities provides an in-kind
shared service for the region, for
example procurement or
monitoring officer. However, as
the cost of these services to each
local authority varies, the burden
is shared unequally across the six
authorities. A further accepted
part of the regional approach is
that local authority officers
contribute to regional working by
providing a wide range of
activities on an in-kind basis.
However, the region does not
seek to quantify the full financial
value of this support.

. The region’s strong emphasis on
working collaboratively has led to
the effective provision of guidance
documents, templates and policy
support, which are reducing
duplication and increasing
consistency of approach across
the authorities.

. Within ERW’s business plan there
is limited information on the level
of resources for the business plan
areas relating to the central team,

50




)€ abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

activities can be measured, with a
considerable emphasis being
placed on key stage 4 level 2+
results over other business plan
objectives.

. GwE’s annual review for 2014-
2015 did not clearly link the cost
of services with the outcomes it
achieved. For example the annual
review identifies that effective use
was made of its commissioning
budget. However, the criteria by
which that judgement was made
are not clearly stated and no
report was provided to the Joint
Committee nor the Management
Board on the use of this budget.

. GWwE and the consortium
recognise the need to evolve an
approach to measuring its
value for money and to develop
processes to demonstrate that its
use of resources will have the
maximum impact on pupil
outcomes. The deficit in critically
evaluating the outcomes achieved
against the costs of delivery
means that GWE is not currently
well placed to assess how best to
use its resources in order to
achieve the aims and priorities in
its business plan.

although the plan does identify
whether core funding or grant
funding is to be used.

. There is a clear principle in place
that funding is used to deliver
school improvement and increase
the capacity of schools whilst
retaining a lean central team.

. Whilst lacking a written workforce
strategy, ERW has a good
understanding of the future
workforce needs across the region
and this has informed the recent
development of a number of
partnerships to address these
issues, although it is too soon to
assess the impact. ERW uses
secondments well to provide
development opportunities for
school leaders and build capacity
for self-improvement

° ERW has further developed its
framework to consider value for
money, which includes a series of
seven principles that seek to
inform an overall judgement. It
considers the impact of its
services on pupil outcomes, noting
the overall performance of
headline indicators at key stage 4,
including the performance of
pupils eligible for free school
meals. However, this approach is
not fully developed and it does
not consider the totality of
resources used to influence
outcomes, including the in-kind
contributions from each local
authority.

. ERW plans to conduct a formal
value for money review later in
2016 for consideration by the
Joint Committee

Recommendations

Recommendations

Recommendations

Recommendations

Recommendations

51




g¢ abed

Central South Consortium Joint Education Service Joint Committee - 29th September 2016

R1 Ensure that school improvement
services address the variability of
performance across schools and local
authorities, particularly at key stage 4
R2 Improve the accuracy of the
evaluations of schools by challenge
advisers in order to ensure a greater
focus on improving teaching and
leadership

R3 Strengthen the procedures for
monitoring and evaluating the impact
of school improvement work

R4 Evaluate progress against the
regional consortium’s operational plans
more effectively

R1 Ensure that the school improvement
service uses data, target setting and
tracking procedures more effectively to
challenge and support schools in order
to improve performance of all learners
across schools and local authorities,
particularly at key stage 4.

R2 Improve the quality of evaluation in
the delivery of school improvement
services.

R3 Improve the rigour of the
arrangements for identifying and
managing risk.

R4 Ensure that business and operational
plans contain clear success criteria and
that progress against these are
monitored effectively.

RS Clarify the strategic role of the
regional networks and their
accountability to the Joint Committee.
R6 Develop an appropriate framework
to assess value for money; ensure that
the business plan is accompanied by a
medium-term financial plan and that
work-streams are fully costed.

R1 Consider the use of a wider range of
performance indicators at school and
regional level to ensure that the
progress of all groups of learners is
challenged and supported

R2 Improve consistency in the quality of
evaluation of school improvement
activities throughout the service

R3 Identify and manage risks more
effectively

R1 Ensure that school improvement
services address the performance of
schools causing concern, particularly in
the secondary sector

R2 Ensure that planning for education
improvement clearly integrates local
and regional priorities, so that ERW and
local authority plans are
complementary and contain actions
that are specific and measurable, with
appropriate milestones for delivery

R3 Ensure that the work of the main
boards and working groups is recorded
carefully and consistently, so that
concerns, decisions and actions are
clear, auditable and fully costed, and
that they enable leaders to monitor
progress

R4 Refine the framework for assessing
value for money so that all relevant
costs across the six authorities are
taken into account fully when set
against outcomes

52




Agenda Item 5

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
6 December 2016

QUARTER 2 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT AND CARDIFF 2020: A
REVISED VISION FOR EDUCATION AND LEARNING IN CARDIFF -
PERFORMANCE BASELINE SEPTEMBER 2016

Reasons for the Report

1. The first part of this report provides the Committee with the Education and
Lifelong Directorate’s Corporate Performance report for Quarter 2 2016/17,
following its consideration by the Cabinet on 21 November 2016. The

Performance Report Quarter 2 is attached at Appendix A.

2. This report provides the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee with a
baseline performance position against the desired outcomes and key goals of the
recently published Cardiff 2020 strategy, as at the beginning of the academic
year 2016/17 copy attached at Appendix B & C.

3. This baseline is provided to support Members in their role in scrutinising the

performance of Education services and outcomes for children and young people.

4. The report also outlines how performance against the strategy will be governed

and monitored.
Revised Corporate Performance Reports

5. The January 2016 ‘Wales Audit Office (WAQ) Corporate Assessment Follow On
Report stressed the importance of the Council building on its capacity and

mechanisms for internal challenge and self assessment.

6. Inresponse to the ‘WAQO Corporate Assessment Follow On Report the Council
acknowledged that there is a need for more consistency around performance

management and benchmarking. The Council is of the view that the framework

Page 39



and mechanisms for effective performance management and reporting have
been in place for a while; however, there is scope for further improvement —
particularly in terms of the scope for strengthening the relationship between the

Council’'s Central Performance Team and Service Directorates.

. Inlight of recommendations made in the WAQ'’s latest report, the Framework
element of the Performance Management Strategy has been updated to include
guidance around timelines that support current processes. A significant aspect of
this refresh will be embedding it into the organisation’s culture. Ensuring that the
Council’s Performance Management Strategy is acknowledged, understood and
used will require the Central Performance Team to engage and work proactively

with service managers and performance leads.

. The Council’'s Performance Management Framework includes the regular
reporting of Quarterly Performance by Directorate. The Quarter 2 Education
Performance report, attached at Appendix A, and covers:
. Council Overview Score Card
o Directorate Performance reports
o Progress against performance indicators
o Corporate Plan priorities
o Directorate priorities
o Key Challenges faced by Directorate

o Key achievements.

. The report provides the Committee with information on the Directorate
commitments as set out in the Delivery Plan together with the progress, issues
and mitigating actions that the Directorate has undertaken to ensure that the
Quarter 2 commitments are achieved. Overall progress is highlighted through the

use of the red/amber/green status format.

Page 40



Cardiff 2020 — A renewed vision for education and learning in Cardiff:

Performance Baseline September 2016

Background

10.0n Tuesday 14 June 2016, the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee
considered the draft Cardiff 2020 strategy, a long term strategy to improve
education and learning in Cardiff. The strategy sets out a vision, desired

outcomes and five key goals for the next four years.

11.Our vision is that all children and young people in Cardiff attend a great school
and develop the knowledge, skills and characteristics that lead them to become

personally successful, economically productive and actively engaged citizens.

12.Our desired outcomes for children and young people are that:

. All children and young people will be able to access an appropriate, high
quality education place that meets their individual needs.

. Educational attainment at the end of each key stage will be the best in
Wales and in line with top quartile performance in the core cities of the UK.

. Every child will leave primary school literate and numerate in line with age
related expectations.

. Pupils from low-income families will achieve at the same level as their
peers — we will close the attainment gap.

. Children and young people with additional learning needs will be able to
access an improved system designed to ensure that their needs are
assessed, and the provision necessary to meet those needs is planned for
in a more collaborative, consistent and equitable way.

. All young people will have achieved a recognised qualification at the end of
statutory schooling.

. All young people will complete statutory schooling equipped with a menu of
skills for life and make a successful transition to education, employment or
training.

. All young people are safe and their emotional well-being is high.

Page 41



Children and young people will be aware of their right to participate and for
their opinion to be heard, and will be involved in decision-making about

education policies and services which affect their lives.

14. To deliver these outcomes are key goals are:

Excellent outcomes for learners

A high quality workforce

21st century learning environments
A self- improving school system

Schools and Cardiff in partnership.

13.The Cardiff 2020 strategy was launched with partners on 29th June 2016,

including head teachers, school governors, young people, business leaders,

representatives of creative, cultural and sporting organisations, community

leaders, regulators and more. Cardiff 2020 is a partnership strategy and its

success will be dependent upon a shared commitment to action.

Cardiff 2020 Strategy - Baseline position

14. Appendix B to this report provides a baseline position against the ‘Desired

Outcome’ statements and the success measures stated against the five ‘Key
Goals’ of the Cardiff 2020 Strategy, copy attached at Appendix C. The

performance indicators selected aim to provide a measure of the Council’s

performance in each of these areas, using the most recent, available

performance information.

15.1t is recognised that in certain areas of the strategy that measuring performance,

in terms of outcomes for children and young people, will be more challenging. For

example:

The educational achievement and progression of children with additional
learning needs cannot be effectively measured by standard national
curriculum attainment levels in isolation. We will need to consider additional

information with the support of expert practitioners in this area of work.

Page 42



*  We will need to consider how to measure progress in improving the
emotional well-being of children and young people as a targeted desired
outcome. This is not a quantitative measure and will need further

consideration.

16.Where available, we have provided comparisons to the All Wales average
performance levels. Whilst we aspire to compare to core cities in the UK, this
information is not easily accessible or directly comparable and will require further

investigation.

17.The baseline position does not include key performance indicator targets for
future years at present. Targets will be developed as appropriate over the next 3
to 6 months, as educational attainment data for 2015/16 is finalised, targets from
schools are collated and challenged for the next 3-year cycle, and as Welsh

Government confirm changes to assessment criteria at the end of Key Stage 4.

18.The actions to deliver the ambitions of Cardiff 2020 will continue to be integral to
the Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate Delivery Plan, the Consortium
Business Plan, School Improvement Plans and partner agencies plans as

appropriate.

19.The Education Development Board will maintain an overview of progress against
the stated outcomes and goals of Cardiff 2020 and will receive regular updates
on performance throughout each year. An important aspect of this will be the

Director’s Annual Performance of Schools report.
Previous Scrutiny

20. The Committee last reviewed a report Cardiff 2020 - Aiming for Excellence
Strategy at its meeting on 14 June 2016. The Committee noted that the strategy
is a very high level strategic document which focusses on the key aspirations for
education over the next five years and that there will be operational plans to
deliver the success measures along with actions, performance measures and

milestones. The Members understood that at this stage these operational plans

Page 43



21.

are not fully drafted, and asked that the strategy with operational plans, be

presented to the Committee at its December 2016 meeting.

Members expressed some concern around the governance arrangements for the
implementation and assessment of the Cardiff 2020 — Aiming for Excellence
Strategy, which will be undertaken by the Council’s Education Development
Board. The Committee recommended that this Scrutiny Committee is included in
the governance arrangements and receives regular progress and monitoring

reports.

22.Cabinet Member for Education Councillor Sarah Merry responded that

operational plans would be presented to the December meeting of the Committee
together with a performance framework which will be developed over the autumn

term, which will cover:

a. lllustrate how plans will align to deliver our ambitions, including the
Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate and Consortium’s business
plans;

b. Baseline current performance against all of the desired outcomes and
measures stated in the Cardiff 2020;

c. Set out how progress will be tracked and monitored as we move forward.

23.The response letter also stated that the performance framework will be reported

to scrutiny in December 2016 and will be followed by regular performance

updates throughout the year.

24.The Committee, at its meeting on 27 September 2016, watched a DVD of the

launch of Cardiff 2020 — Aiming for Excellence, together with the slide show of
the event and feedback. Members noted that the event had been accessed
widely on the internet and were also pleased to hear that a large number of

organisations had been involved in the launch.

Page 44



Scope of Scrutiny

25.The scope of the scrutiny of this report is to enable Committee to review, assess
and challenge the implementation of actions to improve education for Cardiff’s
pupils through the Quarter 2 Performance Report and provisional school results,
and to provide any comments, concerns or recommendations to the Cabinet

Member or the Director of Education and Lifelong Learning.

26. At this meeting Committee can review and question:

(i) the progress being made in achieving the Performance Indicator targets for
2016/17;

(i) the resources available to deliver the Corporate Plan priorities and
Directorate priorities;

(i) any identified project risks (red status) and the appropriateness of the
proposed countermeasure;

(iv) the quality and analysis of the performance framework in addressing the

implementation and monitoring of the Cardiff 2020 strategy.

Way Forward

27.At the meeting Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education), Nick
Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) and Suzanne Scarlett,
(Performance Manager), will be in attendance to present the information and

answer any questions Members may wish to ask.

28.Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and attached
Appendices A, B, and C and identify any issues which require more detailed

scrutiny.

Financial Implications

Page 45



29.There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. These financial implications will

need to be considered before any changes are implemented.

Legal Implications

30.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is recommended to:
¢ Review the information provided in the Education Quarter 2 Performance
report, copy at Appendix A and provide any comments, concerns or

recommendations to the Cabinet Member and Director of Education and

Lifelong Learning.

Page 46



¢ Review and assess the information provided in the Cardiff 2020 baseline,
copy attached at Appendix B & C and provide any comments, concerns or
recommendations to the Cabinet Member and Director of Education and
Lifelong Learning.

¢ |dentify any issues which require more detailed scrutiny.

DAVINA FIORE NICK BATCHELAR

Director Governance and Legal Services Director of Education and
Lifelong Learning

30 November 2016

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



uonesjuesio 3y} ssoJIe palajdwiod U3 IABY SMIIAIDIU| IOM OF UINITY 4O %06

@00 i 0w P8kl

i1 El 14 a ot 8 9 12 [4 0

(314 006) - 5§

[314 T£5] sounosay

[ s8] snes 18D

(313 065] S|00WPS UON - uonemp3

(314 00g 5] s|o0y2s - uopeanpy
(314 526] ”eq uoo3

(314 080T] S3 B H ‘swod

(344 Z66) sdo A

(314 £pt01] S1R20d 103

u0sIad 13 3507 sAe@ 314 - I2Uasqy SSAUNIIS

sdiysaonuaiddy apest - ‘sAemysiH pue Suisnoy

‘s]ysuag Se Jans Se3Je JAA0D pue pa| 81e10333J1p 21
Yoiym saaujes3 zz aney Ajuaiind am pue juswysi|qelss
8y3 uo saonuasdde apeul ST Ajualind aie asay|

sdiysaoiuaiddy ajesodio) m sdiysaonua.ddy Jounf g

"juawdo[aAsp ul s350d 910W YHM 32€|d Ul

Ajausuno ase zT Jayioue pue awayds ay) pa3ajdwod
aney saoyuaidde § ‘ST-FTOZ Ul pa2UsBWWOI

3wayas diyssaguasddy 31es0dio) ay 3ouIs,

ST

ajdoad
8unoA 10y samuniioddo JuswAhojduwy
L_ = S 8E€ 40 Woyod jerol,

ON =+ 2QABN = PR1Sa1RW| = luasaid 1e POIONUI 10N @ Pa|I0JUS ARUALIND

Aujiqisuodsal JuswaSeuew auy yum
MO[3q pue / apeln) z aseyd sawwesSoid
1a8euep Yipie) 3y} uo Juaw|oIug

awweidoid 1a8euepy JipJed jo z aseyd
ui uotieayljenb ) jo uonajdwo)

(ameiewn)) /19T ¢ (19T 198kl g

000000'¢ 0000002 000°000°3 000000°S 000000 000000’ 0000007 000'000'T

| BEE'LET

_ ! {ybs) ealy jeusagy ssoi9 U voRINPIY
_ ﬂmw‘mmm

| 7 |
it _A -
0TE mj £
| (3) Sopiaeg saueusiuiew U uoRdNpPaY
000°005'%

|
_ 9gvzart
(3)3507 Suiuuny (g101 Ut uoRaNpay
000'003'T

(3) s:d1209y |@de)
000'00€°L

£1-9T0Z Wuawddeuepy 13ssy ajelodio)

| usain/iaquy g
*210wWifd [ppudulY Yybnog ay1 UM 3/GDUIDISNS
210 A3Y3 1DY] 13PI0 Ui 3502 PAINP3I D 1D SIAAUIS JIAY3P PUD ‘SojIs 3310135 Jo 1aquinu b SSOIID PaIanyap Ajpuai
-ind aip HE suonoun{ pup sasinas ubjip-a1 PuLWAP J3UI0ISNI 36DUDW PUD PUD3SIapUN 1)13q 0] S| WD S

"I2UNno) 3y3 ssose sadiA1as Aay Jo Suideysau ayj ael|e}

03 saydeld Supjiom dojaasp pue saidojouysay Sugjqeus Uo|dxo jIm SIIIAIDS Suideysay

*$312103234Ip |je SSOJIe uoyINpal
1503 pue AJaAI[3p aAdaYR Moddns 03 S3inseaw apIM-|1DUno) ysijqelsd l1'!m oljojuiod siyjy

S3JIAI3S BulUoISSILWO) '3 Suljqeus

LT-9T0Z T 4914eNYD PALII0IS MB3IAJIBAQ |12Un0)

Page 49



B1U55190 313 51U953.09) 9A0GE 2]qe3 Ayl |

%CE'T6 01 %88 woly Suinosdwi asue 07 UM 0} papuodsai Sulaq %6 (A Pt g )
-)jdwod s1sanbay uonewlo| ||B4SAC Y3 YUM L€ 01 {TO) Sz woly sjurejdwiod g’ . e oo

Yyum sisanbal ydq pue |04 Yioq 4oy due Ul 9SEAIBP Y%ZT € UIDS Sy 7 Jaenp ;
-)1dwo3 ay) asealour Ue uLag sey 12y

sy3sanbay uoyeuwuoju|

(314 006 S5
sjujejdwo) { 1314 15] S9aunosay
: { 31458 swes 199
I — — _ — : A <l ; 314 065] uoneanp3
. . (31300¢2] A3g uo33

9115qoMm 3y} 03 I |
TR al104oq JeaA ay) pousad || (314 572} (99035 WD) A3q w033

SIISIA 343 JO % G JAAO 10} JUNOIJE MOU SIIAIQ I3|qEL/3[1q0 . ;
Yl § d 13|qe1/3|1qoN awes ay} 10} 960°9T0T WOl (314 0RO'T] §2 3 H ‘swo)

auljuo spew sgeq eaIxa / sa|pped 104 s35anbal Jo 946°G/ dn sj yaym ‘Ao aya ssose || HELUEEE

auljuo apew mou suoyedijdde Juiad Sunjied 40 %T°T9 | sqnH 1@ Aseiq] 01 SHSIA

£76'9€Z'T 219M 313y} J1edA
Ur_“_. wo %_mr_ u.m._” OLH M:..:..-h_ £1-9707 ||R4u0YS sBultes paisolold JO % m L1107 S3uInes Jo % papalald i

YSIPM Ul U3q dAeY %6'T Hews R __Z > %08 %0L %09  %0S %OV %OE  %0T %01

Juay yum dn 18s SUNOIIE SEE ‘G AYL JO _ : : : ; : _ -

1
532UN0SaY

P B Ao grdos oS 9Tf ar-Aa . ! " ! .. | .

i : . = : : uoizenpy
9y} 01 51udl|d Jo} sudwWAIINba aden3due) A . : : (sn195 WoD) A2 U033
s ie A3Q U0l

Jejndod 1sow ay3 aJe (%G°T) Yaazd uayl . ! ! S
pue (3%5) 31qesy ‘ysij8u3 uey3 1910 _ ; e

§2 78 H ‘swo)
sdoAnD

31ISQaM §,{19UN0D 34l M3IA 03 YdIym
u sa8enSue| Jeindod 150w ay) ale

J1qely pue ysijod ‘@saueder ‘asauiy)
123pngm uonaalord

‘sjjed |e101 ayi
I _ _ 4 000097 000°0vT 000°0zT 000°00T 00008 000°0¢ 000°0t 00002

1O %80 40§ JUN022E JZ O 5[ YS[oM = L . _ ; ; _ ; .

ensueq Jswojsn) saunosay
SBSTIR O

uoiempy
Noogase4 uo s /8Y°L . -

PPAp12e2103Uld @ SIOMO)|0} EZT ‘T 9@ U033

%00T - -._m_U; %96 - ——m__M—._m : J7J 03 s439)|e) __Uﬂq_oe_ﬁhﬂu@ S19MO||0} .HMNsMW 19N 93es0dio)

%66 ¢ SqNH 03 SI0YSIA RUIML

%98 : aul] Supuoday Jieday

SJ B H ‘swo)

sdo AID

20 S|3A37 uondeyspes Jawoisn)y |\ BipaN jeldos

LT-9T0T T 131N PALI3I0IS MIIAIBAQ |12UN0)




(v) - £1-9T02 20

Hodau s1y3 ul papnoul S1031edIpuU| 32UBWIOIA JSulede aduew.opad

(o1) %L1 (vT)%ee
J3quy/pay ulain/iaquy

LT-9T02 ue|d 3jelodio) 3y} U} SJUBWHWWO) JsujeSe 3duewW.I041dd

Iage 51

(09) - £1-9102 2O

LT-9T0C Moday 2duew.o4iad pue Alaaiag zo



Page 52



Performance RAG Status Matrix for Corporate Commitments

CONSEQUENCES

(=)
Q
(@)
.
|
L
=
et

LIKELIHOOD CONSEQUENCES
A = Very Likely 1 = Major

B = Likely ' 2 = Significant

C = Unlikely 3 = Modefate

D = Very Low 4 = Minor

RAG DEFINITION

Some Issues. Delivery of the commitment is either delayed, or will not
achieve the all the desired outcomes. Issues can be managed with the

Directorate and does not require escalation.

—Page 46-0f 47 ——

Page 53




Performance RAG Status Matrix for Performance Indicators

The RAG definitions are based on an automated mathematical formula*:

RAG DEFINITION

Amber - any indicator 0.1% - 10% off target

NB. There are some exceptions to this where Welsh Government have mandated a
threshold/RAG system and these would be exempt from the automated RAG process

Page 47 of 47

Page 54



Ly }o TZ @8ed

158} 9y} JaA0 JuaWaA0Id W JO ] ] . . ] (0z0z) J03E21pU| BWOIINQ 3SEYJ UOIIEPUNOS
93kl 3y) aseyq uoilepuno4 ays uj = %988 4 S daoes WU HELIS ay1 ul g swodino Suiaaiyde syidnd Jo 9% 3yl
1e9A
Sy} paseaJsou] sey juawasoudwii . S . PR -
40 3184 2Y1 pue Juinoduwi (1S S2 %88 E| 1%9'98 d%09°98 %00°58 %0V €8 (40) € 3515 A3 JO pud Ay 18
SI 1SD 33U} ui dduewopuad €SY 1Y Jojedipuj 13[qns a10) 3yl Suiasiyoe sjidnd 40 9 9y
*91e1013341p 3y} 10}
eale Ajluoud e ujewal ||Im pue yiomawpif ] ] .
1984e1 ueyl JaMo| ||135 SI T [9AIT i 2 sjonb 4 gus SIS ELEES “Silch (dD) v @8e1s Aay 1e (D -y 9peuo e
je Juawuelie u Juawanosdull mau uo $3509 §) PIOYSaIy3 T |3Aa7 Buindiyde spdnd 4o % ayL
'91€40123.1p 3Yy1 404 aouppinb
eale Ajuoud e ulewsal ||Im pue om " - e oan:
195, UeY} JIMO] 135 S1 7 [9A31 \ 4 S2 03 13gns 4 d%t8 SJ2%6L°€8 %80°L8 %90°18 (dD) v a%e3s A3y 1€ (3 -, 18
1B Juawuielie ul Juswanroidwi $3$09 §) Ploysaiy) Z [3A37 Sulaaiyde sjdnd 4o 94 ayL
7Sy 1. Aleindiued ‘suaad 419yl
pue sj1dnd |\543 Jo asuewuopd
941 U93M]aq suallelien SJ %09 E| d%¥'SE SJ2%S6°S€E %SY'Sy %ET'CE
PaXJEW [|11S 3.k Jay) ‘Buldnpal {0z07 3 dD) ¥ a8e1s A3y 1e pjoysasyy
SI Juswulene uj ded ayi ysnoyyy +Z |9n91 3y1 Buineiyde spdnd iS4 10 % oYL
*sieaA
93JY31 15B| 3y} JaAo uawaroiduw)
1dd zT e Supyew 1dd ) } . . 0707 8 dD) v 93e1s Aay
¢ Aq 3sos @duew.opad s jyipied . 59 ABBILT 4 clorhe S2hSU7 1) 0k %0E'65 1e (so11ewayieN pue omgmhm_ Hm.__“_w;m_mwg Jo ysi|8u3
PIOYS2IYL +7 [9AT Y1 U| Ul J-,V 3peJad 3539 e Buipnjaul J -, v 18 53509
“1aw 10U sem 1231e1 ay) ysnoyly S) proysasyy +g [2A37 3uinsiyde sjidnd jo 9 2y1
(910z 220} | (9102 1d3S) (910z 3uny) S EIIESER
& (£102 Yarew) 91-910¢ 91-910C 91-5102 91-ST0¢ Jeak 21wapede J0j NSy feuty =4
& @ | L19T0ZJ3A | /LT1-9T0Z JE3A Jeay SECIN BLE)N 189A | STVTOZI®RA | | apeoe o) 31531 [eU0ISIACId =
[ (L) (=] Jwapedy Jlwapeay Jlwapesy J1wapesy Jlwapedy Jlwapedy Jlwspeay
o < W {4eaA ut) saundiy |ooyds 8unJas Ajjuain) = 5J
m e | 8 5 59 s s 5 e o =9 101831pU| 0Z0Z HIPIED = 0207
o m m m ﬂ m m. m ..W 1Q. ..W m.% m W Y Jojedlpu| ue|d @1esodio) = 4D
o S S g S o o e S o m Jojedipuj Iduew.oji3d

|ooyas poo? e s| jooyas yipde) AdA3 T°T

:an13lqo wawanoadwy / [je 1oy S|(1yS pue uoileanpy Ja132g ‘T Ajuold

saljliold uejd ayesodio)

Page 55

ALIBN 411D :SIaqUISA J3UIqe)

984 :(3.14) sedAojdwy3 JaquinN

Jejaydleg YIIN :10333.11Q

Suiuieat Suojay] pue uonednpy :31e40333.1Q

11009y 9dUBWIOI{ 33e403I9.41Q £LT1-9T0Z Z 1214enp



Ly J0 77 98eq

341 Ul 1IN0 p3LIIRI SBM MBIADI (JOOYIS 1B UeY) JBY1Q P31eINnp]) SYLOT [eulalxs uy
"JUSWaA0IdWI J13YyHNy pasu ‘Sploysaly) Z |9AS] pue T [9A3] 3yl ul pue
‘sjidnd Sy103 pue spdnd (NS43 Joj Apenaiued ‘4 a8e1s A3y 4o pua ayi 1e sawodINQ

uolepunoy :s|aAsj jje 1e syuawanoidwi aledalpul 9T-GTOZ 1eA wapese ay} Joj s)Nsay

'y 98e1S A3) pue ¢ a8e1s Asy ‘z a8eis Aay ‘aseyq

SJUBWLIOIad |00Y2S

*Jeal 1se|
UaA3s 01 pasedwod %66 dA0qe
ajuepuane Suinalyoe sjooyds
dUIU Yum JedA snoinaud ayi

uo S|00YIS U3I1BUIU JO UIIIXIS

Ul panoudus 3ouepually ‘Jesh
1SB] YITT Yyum pasedwod sajem
ul s31lHoyINe [EJ0] ZZ 9y} JO IO
U16 Hip.e] sadejd pue %z'v6 JO
a8eJane ys[9 M 2yl anoqe S| siy|
‘%176 SeM S|00YDs AJepuodas 10y
34n31y asuepualie 9T-GTOZ YL

sda)s 1xaN/suondy SuneSipy /sanss)

%5°56

L1/9T0T
.|

4%S°'v6

d%81'v6

%56

(sswo21no Juswpwwod Sunteinsdesus) ssasfoad 0 Arewiwns 5A1393(qQ Juawanoidw

%98'€6

(0z0z7® d2) |ooyas Alepuo2as je asuepuanly %

'3|qejieAe 134 10u

aJe saundiy a8esane ysjpp anoge
40 %96 JO 3duepu3lle pansIyde
S|00YIS JO %T'2Z PUB %56 J9A0
3led 33uUepUIIIR UB PIA3IYDe
s|ooyds Atewiud Jo %8

‘lIeJaA0 %56 03 Aydis Alan |19y
s[ooyas Asewud uj aouepuany

%5°56

L1/910C
b

d%56

d%80°56

%V'56

%196

[
(
(0
(0z0z 73 d2) jo0Yyds Arewisd 3e aduepualy %

's19ad 119y}

pue spdnd NS4 Jo asuewopad
3Y1 U9aM13q suolielien

payJew (j11s ale 13y3 ‘Bujanpal
sl Juswuielle ur ded ay1 ydnoyyy

SO

%58

d%06'98

d%9T°6L

%vT'18

%vL'9L

(0207 '8 dD) T 38eas Aay jo pua ay 1e lojexpu|
193[qns 8103 ay1 Sumaiyoe spdnd NS4 40 9 ayl

'S9|eM SSOJIR UeY] J33eals S|
JIp1e) ui sJeaA Jnoj 15e| 3yl J9A0
1uswanosdwi Jo 318l 3Y3 ZSH U]

W)

%60°€6

4%5°68

d%€9°68

%2968

%9L°L8

{020z %8 d2)  adeys Aay Jo pua sy 1e
Jojesipu| 13lgns 3103 a1 Suiraiyoe sjidnd yo o oy

‘S3|BM SSOJJB UeY)
J21e848 s) Jipse) ui sseah unoy

Ais 41D s1aquispy 1auige)

986 :(314) s9akojdwz soquiny

Jejaydzeg YPIN :1033aq
10day 9duew.04i9d 31e1013341Q £LT-9T07 ¢ 491enD

Sujuieat 3uojayi pue uorednp] :93eI0RIQ




Lt JO €T @8ed

"s3unlasw malnal ssaldoid winiuosuo) pue 1 iof syl ydnoiyl paienjeas
| pue 13sInpy aBudjjey) sjooyas a3yl Aq pasonuow si uejd ayj 1suiede ssau8oud
‘ue|d uoijoe uoidadsul-1sod e aney A103a1ed ulioMuow uAls3 ue ul s|ooyYds ||y

‘uoisnjou|
pue JU3W3A3IYIY JO peaH S,¥1 2yl Aq papuaiie s8uilsaw pieog Juawanoidw)
palesa|addy Ajyiuow ayl Yy3nolyy pajen|eas si ssasgold -awwesdoad niwAi)
aBuajjey) sjooyos ayi jo Hed aie s|ooyds asay| ‘(saljewayie pue ysiap/ysysug
Suipnjaul 3 - 4V S3529 §) PI2YS3IYL +Z [9A37 3Y1 panaiyde sjidnd Jo %0¢

uey3 ssa| - 5|00Yds A1epuodas Suluiele 1S3MO| 331Y] 31 Ul MO| SUIBWS] 2IUBWI0M3d

7 ‘paJonuow
Buiaq s1 ssauBo4d pue sdnoa3 d|qesaulna Jo Juswuielie pansosduwi syl poddns
ﬂ A831ens deg ay] Buiso|), e Sunuaws|dwy S| WNIHOSUOY) YINoS |BJIud) 3y L

‘paJonuow 8ulaq st ssasdoid pue ue|d Juawaroidw)

7 syle |euoi3al e pajuswajdwi Sey wnNIOSU0I 3Yy| "sJeah aininy uj uodn

H_én 9q 01 spaau udwaoidwi SIYy3 INQ gTOZ Ul PIIRID|IIE SYIBPA Ul SSW0IINQ

” 'sdoa1s

1Xau 9248e 03 wWed] JuswaZeuepy uolledNpP pue s1ayded] pesy Alepuodas yum
passnasip 3uidq a1e MIIABL 1Y) WO SUOIIEPUIWWO0IDI PUB T (7 JO WII] Jawwns

ud3q aAeY sawayds Arewrid mau 331y1 3y "19pud)l Joj pasedaid usaq sey 159\ syl Ul
jooyos ySiH mau ayl 404 Jariq udisap 2yl pue paduaWwWIod sey YsiH ulalsed Jo uo1dnNIIsuo)
‘1M BuissauBoud s| awwesSoud [euded (dOS) awweadoud uonesiuesdiQ sjooyds ayl

'sainsealn |e1dads ul ¢ pue Juawanosdw| uedudis
ul € ‘Sulionuoly uA1s3 ul SjooYds Yipae) QT 49M 313yl 31aym T Japeny uo juswarosduwi
ue st siyl ‘Suloyiuopy uAisy ui 7 pue Jusawanoidw| Juedsyudis ug T ‘sainseapy |erdads ul €

:A10331e2 Suojuow uAls3 ue uj S|OoYyds TT AjJus1und aJe 343y

'saun8ly gTOZ uo uawanoidwi ue si
SIY] “JHpaeD ul S|ooyas Jaquuy €7 pue ‘sjooyas |e13ads g Suipnjaul ‘pay QT Ajjualind ale a1y}
1ey1 sa1edipul (9T 0z Adenuer) wniposuo) ayl Woly ejep uoliesii0dared |ooyas 1saie| ay |

'1dd 12T pue 1dd 8'T usamiaq wolj ¢ 98eis A3 1e p|oysatyl +¢ [dAIT aY1 ul sjuawanosdw
panaiyoe ||e awuwesdold niwA) adus|ey) s|jooyss ayl ul panjoAul sjooyds Alepuodas xis ay|

'gT QT Ul S|O0YIS /T 01 GTOZ Ul SJooYds €7 wiou) pajnpad sey a3els A3y auo

15e3] 1e 1o} Jauenb Supydewyduaq 1S9Mo| Y1 Ul S|ooyds Jo Jaquinu 3y} ‘aseyd Asewiad ayi u)
‘98e15 Ady 9A1SS320NS YB3 18 SUIpIM INg Aseyd uollepuno

3y1 ul 1S9|ews S| sduUI3YIp Iy L "d8e1s A9y yaea je 3anpal 031 sanuiuod sjidnd (3118 10u)
WS4u pue sjidnd (s|e3a|Al [00YIS 9314 104 31q181|3) INSHD JO SduewI0H3d Ul 3JUIP YL

"1e9A 15| %9°€9 W01y J1BdA SIY) %' /9 O} ISEIIUI UE MOYS OS|e SY1e|N Ul S}NSal {7 38els Aa)
JU3231 150W Y| "JedA 15e] %E6°68 WOI) J1edA Syl % T6 03 pasealdul ‘z 98eis Aay 1e syle
ul s|aAd| pardadxa ayl Buinaiyae sjidnd jo adejuaoisad ayi ‘soirewayiepy Suinoasdwi Suipieday

Page 57

ALIBIA 11D :s13quID 18uUIge) 986 :(314) saaAojdwz JaquinN

lejayaieq YIIN :10332.11Q Sujuseaq Suojaji pue uonesnpy :a3el03I2.1q
yi0day 2IuewJo}iad 31el0323.41q £I-9T0Z ¢ 43Menyd




LY J0 ¥Z @3ed

v/d|v/y S|2A3) ||e 1e Bulused| pue Suydeay ul Aydeded Buiseasou; ‘ysiSug pue Sallewsyiew ul s|jooyds Jipie) 4o 3si1uadxa ay3 uteisns pue anoadwy

v/4|v/4 810Z AInf Aq u132u0d Buisnes a.e eyl sj00YIS A1epu0I3S 4o AjIOUIW DY) JO IUBWIOLAd 3yl punoute uinj

1202 Aq “Jomawely
SA11E|SIZ3] 9Y) yum dIuepIOIIE Ul ‘Spasu Sujulea| |euoryppe yum sjdoad SunoA pue uaipjiya Builioddns Joy y1omawely ASa1e11s mau ayl Juawajdw)

970z 4aqwiaidas Aq S|00yas Yip.e) jje ul JJomaulesd 35uaiaduwio)
(211310 3Y3 4o uoNINPOIIUI Y} YUM SUIDUBWIWOD ‘TZOZ Jaquiardas Aq - saining [N§SSIIINS, -S3 M JOJ WINJNDLLIND MBU 3Y1 4O sjuawalinbal ay) Juswajdw

3uiusea) pue 3uyoeay ‘diysiapes| Jo Aujenb ayi i sjuawarosdw
U0 pasna0y /10T 19qwa1das Joj sjooyds Aq uni ‘ Ajunwwod Jujusea) payIomIau sajepn YyInos |el1ua), |euoidal e Jo Juawdo|anap 3y} 0} 3INqLIUC)

6T0T Y21e|N T€ Aq s108(oud Juawiisanul v pueg jo uonajdwod ay1 Sulpnppul swwesdolg uolesiuediQ s|ooyds ay} 1aAjaQ

o

(sue|d AJanlpaq ul T Hed) spuawiiwwo)

‘'3duepuane ||esano ul doip paylew

e pasned Aj1uanbasuod pue w3l JawWns ay) ut 3wl Wi} ui shepijoy Bupjey
S9ljiuiey JO JaqINU 3y} ul aseaJdul JuedlIusis e paJadalil (11ed SA MOI) SAepijoy g
SWI} W3} JO uollesIIoYINe UO UOISIIBP LNO) YSIH e ‘AejA Ul “49AMOH "uoilsod

s JeaA 1se| uo Aj3ysijs snosdwi 03 ¥2e43 UO SEM 9T-GTOZ UL dduepualle jooyds Alewiy

'420 3Y3 104 1330 BululesT |euolssaj0.d e Suidojansp Yum payses aq [|ImM YIomIaN Bw:o_nw
91 "Jeah Fujwod 3y} Jo 3SIN0D 3Y] JBAO0 4)(Q Y} 4O luswdo|aAap ayl woddns o1 y10miau
dY1 Ul SJ00YIs J1aY10 Yyum Supjiom ‘quswdolanap Jo aseyd mau e 19jud mou Jiim siaauold
‘sawwes3oid Juiuresy sjendordde adoas pue suawannbal|  jensig OYl ‘WSl syl JO Uels 3yl e pases|al Sem YaIym 4DQ Y3 JO UOISIIA ISty 3y} asijeuly

duiures) ssasse 03 uayeuapun Bulaq aie SUPNE S||YS J0 UL Y "WNJND1LIND MU 01 pasn sem sjuaAd Juawadesua ayl Sulnp pasayies uolew.oyul 3y “ellI0sSuod INoy
2Y1 J3NIISP 01 S|I14S LD 40 |aA9) 31elidordde ayi aney (Suiyaeal-uou pue Suiyoesy) 33 ssouoe 3dejd y00) S1uaA3 JuswaZesus Jo a8uel e pue (17Q) JJomawel 9Judladwo)
Hels paseq-1ooyds ||e eyl Sulinsua aq ||im 41@ 2yY1 Suinuawajdwi ui a8uajjeyd v [en31a ay1 Jo Yeup e paia|dwod pey s193uold [eHSIg Y] WIa] JAWWNS 3y1 Jo pua ayl Ag

‘Swuwesgold uonesiuediQ s|0o0yYds ayy 4o uolssiqgns g pueg ays o} |es3ajul

99 osje |jim uoisiroad (N3S) SpasN |euoneanp3 [edads 01 syuawanosdw| ‘1uesn uolleAoul|
W03y NV 3Y3 40 3sn Suiyew ‘(13quiadaq ul paonpodiul aq [|Im |jiq ay1) wuoyau (spasN
"N3S-NTV 40} Adaiesss yipse) oy dojanap 03 siauped Jaylo 8uluiea jeuoippy) N1V 104 asedsid o3 spsfosd J0 aBueu e 3uluueld s| ‘wniuosuo) Yynos

pue s13ydea)l pesy ‘s1ad1y40 104 paYsi|qelss uaaq sey dnoio Supop NIS-NTV Uy [B13US) 3Y3 JO SIINIOYINY |BI0T JBYI0 4NOJ Y1 YUM UOIIRIOGE[[0I U] ‘BIIAUIS UOISN|IUI BY ]

"palrs|dwod

Auap 4]0 :s13quIs|N 12UIqE)

98¢ :(314) seakojdwz JaquinN

Jejaydieg YIIN :J0323.11Q 3utusea Suojayi pue uoneanpy :ajesopauig

Hoday dduew.ogiad 31e4033341Q £T-9T07 ¢ 491eny




L J0 5z @8ed

paly1nuapi ay3 104 syJomiau poddns jo uollepl|osuod (dyA) 3[1jold JUIWSSASSY "jJuawadeuew
Anjigesauinp panosdwi ue jo Juawdo|anap ayi adinbad [j1m siy1 wual wnipaw / eiep yum uoddns o) sisod ayodsaq a1easd 0} Japlo ul sqny elep [euoiSad JO Uoileald Yy}
HOYS 3yl U] *,JUaWNWWO) Jipied, 3y} Jo SaA30alqo 3yl JaAlap 01 SuloSuo SIJOAN| 12 )j00] 01 S3|BAN S1931ED) PUE JUSWUIAAO0G YS|IM YUM Supjiom si Alsoyine |eao| 3yy ‘ASaIns
‘(194w Inoge| ay3 Suialua aloyaq Hoddns [euoiuppe Jo) Buiiem ate oym)|  suolleurlsaqg 9T0z 13qoI0 dY1 104 uonew ol dieys o3 dejd u) aie sjuswasuelsy sisuped

Z J91] ul 3jdoad SunoA Tzt pue (JudswAojdwd 191ud jouued oym) T 1a1] ui djdoad lle Aq 01 dn pau8is pue pajs|dwod usaq sey Juawaaidy Juiieys uolewsou] [dSYM dYL
8unoA 68T aue audy] ‘syuow ¢ ueyl aiow Joj yudwAo|jdwa Suyaas uaaq aney "S101UBW PIPUNS-ISII4 Saljiwe
1ey3 (g 4311 wi) 9jdoad BunoA 16T 40y suonndo SuiAyiuapi ul Juasedde ase sadusjey) 3L} Yum J3y13803 S|00YyIs AJepuodas ||e 0} pPIIEdC||e pue palnIdal uaaq dAeY SIOWIN
‘9T 07 Jaquialdag wouj pasead sey asodind siy1| Yinop 9T "paduawiwod osje sey andlydy ol alidsu| awwesdoud (453) pund |eos ueadoiny ay|
10} (DAVYD) 989)10D aya 01 d|qejieae Ajsnoiaaid Buipuny se ‘9T 1e uoisiroid T |98 ‘dno.3 sy 01 woddns uoiysuesy apirosd 03 Jayle8o)
Suinnbai sisuled| 1oy suoiido jo Aupigejieae ay) Suipiedas SuiBiowa aie sanss|| BujJom u3aq AAeY SI|BAA S1991E) PUB DIIAIDS YINOA Y| "UOIIeUIISIP e ul 19A jou ase 3|doad
NMOM  SAIMUNWWOY) YySNoJYyl p3UOISSIWLIWOD BunoA asayi jo 7/ *(uoyod |e10] 3Y1 4O %ET 01 sa1enba siy1) 9T-150d uolIsuUeI] [NYSSIINS
ApeaJje yiom yum sanedauaq jo uonedidnp ajqissod ayl Suipiedals e Supjew 10u JO ysiJ 1B pa4apIsuod diam sjidnd TT JedA GG ‘95941 JO 9107 |1dy ul uni
SUJ33u02 0} anp O43M Aq panosdde udaq jou ||13s Sey YJopp 01 audsu) 43 ayL | sem yaym (dyA) |001 314014 JudWSSasSY Alljiqelaunp ay) uo ajdoad SunoA gyET a1am auay)
sdais 1xaN/suondy Bunedin/sanss| (sawomno Juswiwwod Sunjeinsdedud) ssaidoad jo Atewwns 3A1333(qQ0 Jusawanoidu| o
LO
(133N (133N (133N (0z0Z 18 d) "Suiuien 10 Juawhojdwa | D
*Jeah d ﬁmv d \ / nx.mw RX_wm.Nw .:O_umu..__uw 0] mc__OOLUm \COw_:QEOU woJj uonjisueny w
maulayl ul paysiignd pue %16 %6 %0 L6 [N}$S222NS e SueW SISARS| €T JEIA JO % SYL ¥
4990130 Ul PAIUNOD 3q ||IM (133N (133N (L33N (0z0z 73 dD) *Suiuten Jo JuawAhojdwa
B3.E S1Y] Ul 3dUeLlI0NId v d %€) d / / %G°€) %SY) %SS6 ‘uolleanpa o3 Buijooyds Alosindwod woiy uollsuesy
%L6 %596 [NJss932Ns e Supjew SI9ABD) TT JE3A JO % 9Y|
wnoa 910z | (91073d3s) | (9107 2unr) Junoo | S3Ndy dwi B3y =y
ol (£10Z yorep) £1-9T02 139010 91-510Z 91-5102 91-5T0z | 510z Jeqopp | “E2ADIWSPEIE IO} NSy jeuly =
g w £1-9102 Jeap | 91-510Z Jeah Jeap Jeap seap §T-T0z | 1294 2WaPeOE oy Nsal [euOisinold = d
- (G) o 1eaA JJwapeny Jlwapesy J|wapeosy Jjwapesy J|wapeny awapesy | Jeshsywapeay | (ERAUI) mE:mt |00yds 81nd3s AuaLNg = 53
£ M 3 p ~ = = = — = 103e31pU| 0Z07 t_Emuuo.SN
£ A N o %o o o o ~ o - S mub ~ = - 101B31pu| ue|d 91es0dio) = )
. oG 5| o% oG o% | 59 2
& ] S 8 3 S e S 10}e31puU| 32UBW.IOAd

Juiuieay 1o uoneanpa quawAio|dwa ojul uonisuel) [NYssaINS e ajew 3|doad BunoA [y £'¢ :aA1123[qO Juswaroldw / sqof pied 19115 pue aiow Jungeas) -¢ Ajuoud

saljiold ue|d ler0dio)

v/d|o/v spdnd IS4 JO JuBWIUIETIE BY) UI S|00YIS UBIM]S( SUOIIBLIEA PAjJew aYy1 pue juswuielie uo Auaaod Jo edwi Jualsisiad ayl ssappy

ALIBIN D SI2qWIS Jauiqe) 986 :(314) seakojdw3 Jaquiny Jejayazeg YN :10331a Suiuseaq 3uojayi] pue uonesnpg :31el03d3Aq

110day 2duew0413d 91401334iQ £LT-9T0C T 1214enD




Ly }09Z 93ed

01 ajqeadeuew Bulaq 15|1Ym SNJeA 1SOW PPE [[IM YIIYM ‘JUsWwwwod

*a8e1s uonelul-aid siy3 1e sanss| ou ale alay|

“JONI|Bp UY "J3GWAAON 40 pua 3y} Aq uoissiugns 4oy ‘1340120 ,9 U0 djqejieae aq pjnoys snyadsoid 43DINN 3YL

siy3 01 yoeousdde sjeuorpodosd e Buiaasde aq |1m 38uajeyd sy SIY31Y pl1YD 3Y1 J0 punoJ 1xau ay3 ur Juswadeua JapIsuod 0} 43NN YUM Py uaq aney sSuilasy

"PJEMIOJ SIY) BALIP 01 P3IYIIUSPI 3q ||Im dnoid 19210

/10T |dy wouy )N sy ul dwwesSoid sisuped

AUD Aipusuig piyd

sdajs 1xaN/suonoy BuineSni /sanss|

(sawo2no Juawpwwod Junejnsdeaus) ssaiSoid jo Atewwns aadalqQ Juswanosdw

papJengajes aue jipJe) upjsu je ajdoad 7'z :$3ARIBIqO Juawanosdw / ajdoad ajqesaujna Suinioddns 'z Ajiong

Sa1}01d uejd a1es0dio)

v/4|9/v HipJed ul uswAhojdwia 31nd3s pue s||fs Aujiqeiojdwa dojanap o3 3jdoad SunoA soy saiunioddo jo a8uel ay) adueyu3

V/8|9/v| "9T0Z 42qwa1das Aq siauues| |je s0j s9In0J uolssaifoud ajerudosdde 3insua 03 JUSWWIWO) HipJe) pue 331ueiEND YINOA 1UBWUIIAOD YS[SAMA Y3 Juawajdw|

v/d 9107 Jaquiaidas Aq 91 1sod pue aid sjdoad BunoA Joy sisuped usamiag swaisAs Suppaeny pue guleys uoijew.oul m>oEEmm
‘s1eaA € Ixau ay) 10y Aypeded puaixa 0y sasinosas P

o/v , i (®))
puny jerdos ueadoun3 3uisi|in ‘uawAhojdwa oiui ajdoad SunoA jo uonisuesl ayy Hoddns Aj3o311p 01 |]3pow Jaxiom pea| Sunsixa 9y} puaixa pue usy13uans(g

.

Hoddns s1eudouidde pue Ajies sa13331 sjdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyd PSLIUSP! JeY) 3INSUI 0] pUE |0oYyIS
V/¥|9/v | Suires| saye JuswAojdwa 10 Bujuiesl ‘uoireanpa SuioSuo o3 Buissaigoud 1ou 4o ysu Je 3jdoad FunoA pue ualp|iyd Jo uoljearypuapl AjJea sy aunsusa o] -

'syuswaduesse Aduade 13nw anosdw|

¥O (€D |20 | TD

(sue|d Asanijaqg ui T 1ed) suawiwIwod

"A3nung suoieunisaq 49qolaQ Sajep S13a1e) Yy Joy SSaulpeal

Ul 9J1401d 1UaWISSASSY AlljIqesau|np 3yl Woly SISAeD| TT Jeap 1981e1 0] ad1AIag
YInoA 3yl pue s3jepn si3a34e) ela a2ejd ul 1nd Sem 904n0Sal JAWWINS |eUOIHIPPY
‘l1ouno) ay3 ui sadejd Fulndas sjdoad BunoA 1oy s101uaw YinoA se e

01 3|qe aq Aew 1ey1 yeis 1o) Sutuies; pue ajdoad SunoA soy saiunsoddo 03 ssadoe
asealour 03 sdiysuoiiejas JaAojdws pasueyus “iom o1 shkemyied pue Sujuren)
‘suondo wninawund gt-1so0d Jo uoneulpso-0d panoidwi ‘ojdoad SunoA sjqesaujna

‘Ino paddew 3utaq si suonlesiuedio 10123s a1ead pue dlqnd J3PIM Ul pUE [12UN0) BY1 UIYIM
Yy10q ajdoad unoA o1 3|qejieae saipuniioddo diysaoiuaidde pue sdiysaauiesy o adues sy

‘elpaw

[eu31p pue $331A3s d1|qnd ‘Alneaq pue Jiey ‘sarzowoine ‘Buialed pue Ayjeudsoy ‘UoiPNIISUOD
:shemyjed xis J0 auo uo p3||0Jud U3aq aney Aay] dwweiSoid Jeah-om1 ||ny 3yl Mojjo4

[I'm pue QT Jeap ul ase sjidnd g€ Sulutewss ay| "awwesdoid 1e3A-aU0 € MOJ|0) |[IM pue TT
1ea) ul ase sjidnd Qg ‘1eaA ojwapede £ T-9T0Z 3yl 10j 383]|0D 3|eA pue yipied yim awwesgoad
diysasnuaiddy Jojunr ayl uo ade|d e paiayo usaq aaey sjooyds yipied wody ajdoad Sunoh g5

AL 111D :s1aquiap JpuIge)

985 :(3.14) s3aAo|dw3 Jaquiny

Suiuieat Suojayn pue uoneanpy :33e10322.IQ

Jeayoleq N :4039341Q
110day @5uews0419d 31e4039341Q £T-9T0Z ¢ 4314end




Ly }0 LT 9ded

*103BJ1pUl SIY} Ul 28813A€ [BUOIIBU 3Y) SAOQE S| HipJeD) 'siedh aaiyi 15e| 9yl JaA0 Juawanosdwi

1dd z1 e Supjew 2dd ¢ Aq asos 22uewioad s JJipJe) pjoysalyl +¢ [9AS Yl U] 'S101e3Ipul ulew ayi |[e ul Judwanolduwl smoys asuewlopad gT-GTOT [euolsiroid  38e1s As) 1y e
‘9|0YM B SB SI|eA\ SSOJ0E uey) J81eaus si Jipde) ul sieah anoy 1se| syl JSA0 Juawanoidu Jo ajel ay] z adeis Aay pue aseyd uollepunod ayi uj e

“1e9A 15e| UD3S SuUdWA0IdW] By UO pyIng Je3A JlWwBpeIe gTOZ-STOZ Y3 104 SYNsal |euoisiaoid 3y

3ouewo1ad 9T-GT ¢ 0 MIIA [BlIU]|

(an1} "xeAl) (s355339NnG pue smap pooo) suawdA3IYIY Ad)

‘padnpaJ aq ued sjuswade|d

A1UNnoJ JO 1IN0 UO JIULI|DJ MOY MIIASL 0] ‘SIIAIAS S, U3IP|IYD
yum diysiauped ui ‘paysiqeisa uaaq sey dnoi3 Sunpiom y
suondy Sunedinn

{N3s "8'3) jupie) jo apisino uoileanpa Suninbal ualpjiyd 10y
00°000°0517F punoJe jo puadsiano paldafoid e st a19y] - suswadeld Alunod Jo InQ
a8uaeyd
(any ‘xen) anoqe pajou ueyl J13Ylo — 31e10133.iQg 104 sauajjey) Aay

SIUSWIaARIYDY '8 Se8uUa|[ey) 9430 20

(oN) %0 (21) %9999 (T) %8 (9) %9y
- = (£) %vs (€) %€e
uaal9 /Idquiy laquy/pay usaig f1aquiy 1aquiy/pay

87 :|e101 (Z Hed) suoildy ssauisng 310) 31eli0323.iq 1sulede ssaidoid €1 :|e103 (T J1ed) sjuswiwwo) uejd 23esodio) jsuiese ssasdouid

(8) %L9
(v) %ov
(oN) % 1aquiy
(ZT 1e3103) sid ue|d @3esodio)
o/v|v/4 Awd Ajpuaug ppyd eaanpg -
tD |€D| 0| TO (suejd AJaniag ui T Med) sjuaunjwwo)
ALY )] :S12qWIBIN 13uIqe) 936 :(314) s9aAojdw3 JaquinN Jejaydleg YIIN :1033311Q Sujuieaq Suojay] pue uonednpy :a1ei0313211q

}Joday aduewiojudd 31e41033341Q £TI-9T0C Z 1dMenD




LY 0 87 @8ed

Page 62

'L107 13qwiad3Q ui uonajdwod Joy 3Np |00YIS PISNI04 AHUNWWIOD UOI||IW 9ZF M3U dY} YUM ‘UOXIQ JIOW||IM AQ PSIUBWILIOD SEM YSiH u1915e3 JO UOIIINIISUOD BY|
Suwiuie1dolg uoijesiuesiQ [ooyas

"elpaw |ey3ip pue saa1A1as Jljgnd ‘Aneaq pue ey ‘anizowone ‘Bunaied pue Aujendsoy ‘uononisuod :sAkemyied xis 40 9UO UO P3)|0JUS UDSq

aAey pue 33e|d e P3I34J0 19M SI9uUJed| TT PUe QT JB3A 65 '9T0T J2quaidas u payaune| ‘98310 ajeA pue yipsed yum diysiauned up ‘swweidosd diysaoipuaidde sotunf ay|
SWwiwiesgo01d sdiysadiualdde Joiunl Jo youney

‘sadeJane [euopieu ay1 yum Ajgesnoney asedwod sainseaw ||y "paseasdul 3-, PUB J-,y SUIASIYIE UOII0d0Id By G 98815 AaY IV e

Jejaydieg YIIN :103234Q Suiuieaq Suo|ayi7 pue uoneanp3 :93e10303.1Q

98¢ :(31d4) s9aAojdw3 JaquinN
}10day aouewi04u3d 93e4033341Q £LT-9T0Z ¢ 1314enD

A 411D :s1aquiapy J3uiqe)




€9 abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

Secondary

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position
September 2016
1. All children and young people will be able | The percentage of children securing their
to access an appropriate, high quality first choice for school placement:
education place that meets their
individual needs. Primary 86%
Secondary 76%
The percentage of children securing one of
their 3 choices for school placement:
Primary 93%
Secondary 88%
The number of schools from within
catchment
oversubscribed (over 10%)
6 schools
Primary
3 schools




79 abed

Appendix B

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Cardiff Wales Average
Academic year Ranking 2015/16
2015/16
2. Educational
attainment at the | The percentage of pupils achieving the Foundation 88.9% 7 87%
end of each key Phase Outcome Indicator, at the end of year 2
stage will be the
best in Wales and | The percentage of pupils achieving the Core
in line with top Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2 89.5% 11 88.6%
quartile
performance in The percentage of pupils achieving the Core
the core cities of | Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3 86.6% 10 85.9%
the UK.
P = provisional The percentage of pupils achieving the Level 2+ (2014/15)
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - 62.8%P 10 60%P
Core C(’ties data is not easily' C inc. Maths & Eng/Welsh)
accessible or comparable- this
s being investigated further I e bercentage of pupils achieving the Level 2 (2014/15)
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - 84.4%P 19 84%P
C)
The percentage of pupils achieving the Level 1 94.9%P (2014/15) 95%P
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSE'S A* - 21

G)




G9 abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
3. Every child will The percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcomes
leave primary (level 4) at the end of Key Stage 2 in:

school literate
and numerate in

line with age
related English 91% 90.3%
expectations.
Welsh (as a first language) 96.1% 90.8%
Mathematics 91.4% 91%

The percentage of pupils achieving above the expected
outcomes (level 5) at the end of Key Stage 2 in:

English 44.7% 42%
Welsh (as a first language) 47.6% 38%
Mathematics 45.3% 43.2%
OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16




99 abed

Appendix B

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
4. Children and Categorisation of LA Maintained Special Schools (January
young people 2016):
with additional
learning needs - Green 4 Not yet available
will be able to - Yellow 2
access an - Amber 0
improved system - Red 1
designed to The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Foundation
ensure their Phase Indicator, at the end of year 2:
needs are
assessed, and - Statemented 16.7%
the provision
necessary to - School Action Plus 45.3% Not yet available
meet those needs
is planned for in a - School Action 73%
more
collaborative, The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core Subject (2013/14 Welsh
consistent and Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2: Average)
equitable way.
- Statemented 18.3% 27.5%
- School Action Plus 54.7% 52.5%
Wales averages are from June - School Action 84.2% 76.1%
2015 National Assembly for
?Eﬁjfﬁs,ﬁa.,,’fg;f”%s isthe | The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Core Subject (2013/14 Welsh
most recent available data. Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3: Average)
Enhanced progress measures - Statemented 25.6% 19.7%
are under consideration for this
group of children and young
people - School Action Plus 50.9% 49.5%
- School Action 70.3% 71%




/9 abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 2+ (2013/14 Welsh
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A*-C Average)
including Maths & English/Welsh)
- Statemented 16% 10.6%
- School Action Plus 17.8% 15.5%
- School Action 29.8% 19.6%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 2 (2013/14 Welsh
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C) Average)
- Statemented 44 .3% 29%
- School Action Plus 56% 46%
- School Action 70.2% 60.4%
The percentage of SEN pupils achieving the Level 1 (2013/14 Welsh
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C) Average)
- Statemented 63.2% 61.4%
- School Action Plus 82.7% 83.3%
- School Action 92.7% 95.3%




89 abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

school meals vs those not eligible

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
5. Pupils from low- (2014/15 Wales
income families will Average)
achieve at the same | The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Foundation
level as their peers- | Phase Outcome Indicator, at the end of year 2 80.3%P 75.10%
we will close the
attainment gap.
Ilz_= p/fO;igI&natlt . © data and Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free
nal e attainment data an i
oFSM data of Levels 1 and 2 af KS4 school meals vs those not eligible 11.60P 14.87
is not published by WG until
January 2017. (2014/15 Wales
Average)
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Core
Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 2 78.83%P 75.10%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 13.61P 15.66
school meals vs those not eligible
(2014/15 Wales
Average)
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Core
Subject Indicator, at the end of Key Stage 3 70.68%P 66.43%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 20.12P 22.20

(2014/15 Wales




69 abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not eligible

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16 2015/16
The percentage eFSM pupils achieving the Level 2+ Average)
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A*-C
including Maths & English/Welsh) 35.4%P 31.63%
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 32.6P 32.43
school meals vs those not eligible
(2014/15 Cardiff) (2014/15 Wales
Average)
The percentage eFSM pupils achieving the Level 2 65.25% 69.42%
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs A* - C)
Difference in achievement between pupils eligible for free 21.26 19.46
school meals vs those not eligible
(2014/15 Cardiff) (2014/15 Wales
Average)
The percentage of eFSM pupils achieving the Level 1
threshold at the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSE’S A* - G) 81.45% 89.45%
14.34 8.13




0/ abed

Appendix B

OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Wales Average
Academic year 2015/16
2015/16
6. All young people (2014/15 Wales
will achieve a The percentage young people acquiring a recognised Average)
recognised qualification by the end of Year 11. 99% 98.8%
qualification at the
end of statutory
schooling.
OUTCOME KEY MEASURES Cardiff Position Cardiff ranking
Academic year
2015/16

7.All young people will
complete statutory
schooling equipped with a
menu of skills for life and
make a successful
transition to education,
employment, or training.

The percentage of Year 11 leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

95.5%
(4.5% NEET)

(2014/15 Ranking)

22 out of 22

The percentage of Year 13 leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

97.04%
(2.96% NEET)

(2014/15 Ranking)

7 out of 22

| OUTCOME

| KEY MEASURES

Cardiff Position

Wales Average |




T/ obed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

Academic year 2015/16
2015/16
8. All young people are (Wales Average
safe and their emotional 2014/15)
well-being is high
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in primary 9.38 8
(5 days or fewer)
(Wales Average
Other measures are being explored 2014/15)
to enable more comprehensive/ ; : e i ;
rounded measurement of emotional Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in primary
health and wellbeing. (6 days or more) 0.2 0.5
(Wales Average
2014/15)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in secondary
(5 days or fewer) 55.3 55
(Wales Average
2014/15)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 pupils in secondary
(6 days or more) 0.91 3.4
(Wales Average
2014/15)
Attendance in primary schools 95% 94.95%
Attendance in secondary schools 94.5% 94.2%




Z/) abed

CARDIFF 2020 BASELINE POSITION — DESIRED OUTCOMES

OUTCOME

KEY MEASURES

Baseline 2016

9. Children and young
people will be aware of
their right to participate, for
their opinion to be heard,
and will be involved in
decision-making about
education policies and
services which affect their
lives.

Measures to be determined

Cardiff Council is considering the opportunity to work on a Child
Rights Partners approach with UNICEF — akin to the Child
Friendly Cities programmes that have happened internationally.
Further information will be available in the New Year 2017.

10



¢) abed

Appendix C

Key Goal: Excellent Outcomes for Learners
Success Measure Key Performance Indicator Cardiff Position Academic year | Wales Average Academic year
In 2020 strategy 2015/16 2015/16
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the the Foundation Phase Outcome
expected outcomes in the Indicator, at the end of year 2
mandatory areas of learning 88.9% 87%
in the Foundation Phase at
the end of year 2
See also Desired Outcome 2
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the the Core Subject Indicator, at the
expected outcomes in the end of Key Stage 2
core subjects of
Mathematics, English/Welsh 89.5% 88.6%
and Science in Key Stage 2
at the end of year 6
See also Desired Outcome 2
Increase the percentage of The percentage of pupils achieving
pupils achieving the Level the Level 2+ Threshold (5 GCSE'’s
2+ Threshold (5 GCSE’s at at A*-C) including English/ Welsh
A*-C) including English/ and Mathematics) at the end of Key
Welsh and Mathematics) at | Stage 4 (year 11) 62%P 60%P
the end of Key Stage 4 (year
11)
See also Desired Outcome 2




v/ abed

Appendix C

Success Measure

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year

Wales Average Academic year

In 2020 strategy 2015/16 2015/16
Improve the levels of The percentage of SEN pupils
achievement of vulnerable | achieving the Foundation Phase
learners in line with their Indicator, at the end of year 2:
individual requirements,
needs and aspirations. In - Statemented
particular: 16.7% Not yet available
- School Action Plus
Pupils with additional 45.3%
learning needs - School Action
73%
See also Desired Outcome 4 The percentage of SEN pupils (2013/14 Welsh Average)
Wales averages are from June aCh.i g e (e SEE
2015 National Assembly for Wales Indicator, at the end of Key Stage
Research paper, SEN/ALN in 2:
Wales
- Statemented 18.3% 27.5%
- School Action Plus 54.7% 52.5%
- School Action 84.2% 76.1%
The percentage of SEN pupils (2013/14 Welsh Average)
achieving the Core Subject
Indicator, at the end of Key Stage
3:
- Statemented 25.6% 19.7%
- School Action Plus 50.9% 49.5%
- School Action 70.3% 71%




G, abed

Appendix C

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year

Wales Average Academic year

2015/16 2015/16

The percentage of SEN pupils (2013/14 Welsh Average)
achieving the Level 2+ threshold at
the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs
A* - C including Maths &
English/Welsh)

- Statemented 16.0% 10.6%

- School Action Plus 17.8% 15.5%

- School Action 29.8% 19.6%
The percentage of SEN pupils (2013/14 Welsh Average)
achieving the Level 2 threshold at
the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs
A*-C)
- Statemented 44.3% 29.0%
- School Action Plus 56.0% 46.0%
- School Action 70.2% 60.4%
The percentage of SEN pupils (2013/14 Welsh Average)
achieving the Level 1 threshold at
the end of Key Stage 4 (5 GCSEs
A*-C)

- Statemented 63.2% 61.4%

- School Action Plus 82.7% 83.3%

- School Action 92.7% 95.3%




9, abed

Appendix C

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year

Wales Average Academic year

2015/16 2015/16
Pupils educated other than The percentage of Key Stage 4
at school (EOTAS) EOTAS pupils achieving the
expected levels at:
All pupils attending an alternative
education provision recorded on o
the EOTAS annual census as at Ll 17.3%P .
12! January 2016 (NB some of Not yet available
these pupils will also be registered | Level 2
on a school roll but attending 4.0%P
alternative provision)
y ” Level 2+
(75 pupils) 4.0%P
P = Provisional D
rovisional Data Those leaving with no qualifications. 12.0%P
Pupils educated other than The percentage of Key Stage 4
at school (EOTAS) — not on | EOTAS pupils, not on a Cardiff
a Cardiff school roll school roll, achieving the expected
levels at:
All pupils who were receiving Level 1 13%P
EQTAS provision but not on a
school or PRU roll as at the school 0 g
and EOTAS annual census date Level 2 0%P Not yet available
12t January 2016
Level 2+ 0%P
(24 pupils)
P = Provisional Data Those leaving with no qualifications. 25%P




/] abed

Appendix C

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year
2015/16

Wales Average Academic year
2015/16

Children who are looked
after by any local authority
and attend a Cardiff
mainstream secondary
school or PRU

(all children on the roll of a Cardiff
school or the PRU as at 12t
January 2016 which is the annual
pupil census date who were looked
after either by Cardiff or any other
local authority)

The percentage of Children who are

(Wales Average Academic

Looked After achieving the year 2014/15)
expected levels at:

Foundation Phase 88.9% (16 out of 18 pupils) 64%

Key Stage 2 68.2% (15 out of 22 pupils) 64%

Key Stage 4

Level 1 71.4% (20 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Key Stage 4

Level 2 46.4% (13 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Key Stage 4

Level 2 + 17.9% (5 out of 28 pupils) 18%

Children who are looked
after by Cardiff Council

(all children looked after as at 12th
January 2016 which is the annual
pupil census date for whom Cardiff
Council is the Corporate Parent)

The percentage of Children who are
Looked After achieving the
expected levels at:

Foundation Phase

71.4% (15 out of 21 pupils)

Key Stage 2 70.4% (19 out of 27 pupils)
Key Stage 4

Level 1 54% (25 out of 46 pupils)

Key Stage 4

Level 2 33% (15 out of 46 pupils)

Key Stage 4

Level 2+ 15.2% (7 out of 46 pupils)

Not yet available




g, abed

Appendix C

[
Key Goal: A High Quality Workforce

Success Measure

Baseline

T YUY OTato Yy

Pupils entering Cardiff

schools with English as a

second language

The percentage of EAL pupils

achieving the expected levels at:

Foundation Phase 86.6%
Key Stage 2

88.4%
Key Stage 3 82.8%
Key Stage 4
Level 1 99.0%
Key Stage 4
Level 2 90.9%
Key Stage 4
Level 2+ 63.9%

Not yet available




6/ abed

Appendix C

In 2020 strategy

September 2016

Increase the population of ‘Outstanding’ teachers and practitioners
in Cardiff, particularly in those areas of the curriculum where the
need to improve learner outcomes is greatest.

Between September 2011 and August 2016, 66% of schools
inspected by Estyn were judged to have good or excellent teaching.

Increase school leadership capacity in Cardiff, to respond to the
diverse and changing needs of education in the city region.

Between September 2011 and August 2016, 75% of primary
schools inspected by Estyn were judged to have good or excellent
leadership and management. This compares to 48% in secondary
schools and 88% for special schools.

Implement new school leadership models that enable experienced
Heads and Senior Leaders to oversee and support those appointed
to a role as Head of School, either as part of a federation or by
agreement with the governing bodies of the schools involved.

Create a network of Executive Leaders across the city that is able
to support other schools and lead federations and school
improvement groups.

As of October 2016, there were 5 Executive Head teachers in
place.

Engage all teachers in enquiry led learning related to the
improvement priorities for their school and/or
partnership/federation.

Awaiting baseline and further action

More effectively evaluate the contribution of the non-teaching
workforce to school improvement and harness this capacity to
enhance teaching and learning outcomes.

Awaiting baseline and further action

Key Goal: 21stCentury Learning Environments

Success Measure |

Key Performance Indicator

|  Cardiff Position Academic year 2015/16




08 abed

Appendix C

In 2020 strategy

Significantly improve the learning environments
of the existing school estate through the
implementation of the annual Asset
management plan, ensuring best value for
financial resources.

The monetary value of the schools
maintenance/repairs backlog

Awaiting figure

The number of schools re-built or
significantly re-furbished in the last year

3 Primaries — Ysgol Y Wern, Adamsdown,
Coed Glas
1 Secondary- Fitzalan

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year 2015/16

Increase the number of pupils securing a school
place that meets individual needs, where
appropriate in accordance with their first

The percentage of children securing their
first choice for school placement:

preference. Primary 86.0%
Secondary 76.0%
The percentage of children securing one
of their 3 choices for school placement:

Primary 93.0%
Secondary 88.0%
The number of schools from within
catchment
oversubscribed (over 10%)

6 schools
Primary
Secondary 3 schools

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Baseline
September 2016




T8 abed

Appendix C

Complete the planning of the next set of priorities for the 21st century
school programme, including a focus on Special Educational Needs
provision across the City, by the 31st March 2017.

Welsh government are in the early stages of formulating funding
models for the Band B investment programme. The LA will submit
their plans in September 2017.

Offer a co-ordinated Admissions process, with the voluntary aided
sector, which provides parents/carers with a clear picture of the school
place choices available to them and the likelihood of securing first
preferences.

The council is currently consulting on piloting a co-ordinated
Admissions process.

Embed a new Community Focused Schools approach, across all
Cardiff Schools, providing a range of activities and opportunities to
enrich the lives of children, families and the wider community; and
contributing to community objectives including local cohesion,
sustainability and regeneration.

There are a significant number of schools who are already
interacting positively with their communities. The aspiration is to
ensure that all schools practice a Community Focused Approach
and work is ongoing in this respect.

Develop approaches to learning in the context of the whole city which
ensures the full participation of every young person in the life of
Cardiff, through business, sporting and cultural links.

Through the ‘Cardiff Commitment’ to youth engagement and
progression, endorsed by Cabinet this year, Cardiff Council will
work with a wide range of partners in the public, private and third
sectors, to ensure a positive destination for every young person in
Cardiff after statutory schooling, into employment, education or
training

An emerging Creative partnership in the West of Cardiff, will enable
the offer of real-world learning opportunities in the creative and
cultural sector.

Complete the construction of a new High School in the East of the city,
in partnership with Cardiff & Vale College by autumn 2017.

Construction has commenced and the school is on track to open in
autumn 2017 .

Complete the construction of three new two form of entry primary
schools, by spring 2018.

The design of the 3 new primary schools across Cardiff has been
completed in consultation with head teachers and planning consent
is now being gained.




28 abed

Appendix C

Key Goal: A Self- Improving School system

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position August 2016

List of schools in a category
August 2016

Have no schools in an
Estyn category.

The number of schools in an
Estyn follow up category:

-Estyn monitoring (EM)
-Significant improvement (SI)

-Special measures (SM)

EM-7
SI- 1
SM- 3

EM- Riverbank Special School, Bryn

Hafod Primary, Whitchurch High,
Radyr Comp, Llanishen High, All
Saints CIW Primary, Ysgol Gyfun
Plasmawr

SI- Cantonian High

SM- Woodlands Special Schooal,
Eastern High, Trelai Primary

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position January 2016

Number of green schools

Increase the proportion of
schools categorised as
green by Welsh
Government in the annual
national categorisation
process.

WG categorisation outcomes
are published annually in
January.

The percentage of Cardiff
schools categorised as ‘Green’
in the annual Welsh Government
School Categorisation process

Primary- 34.0%
Secondary- 26.3%

Special-57.1%

Primary- 33 out of 97 schools
Secondaries- 5 out of 19 schools

Special- 4 out of 7 schools

10



egq abed

Appendix C

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Inspection Report Analysis-
Outcomes from September 2011-
August 2016 for Key Question 1
(reports graded excellent for
outcomes)

Inspection Report Analysis-
Outcomes from September 2011-
August 2016 for Key Question 1
(reports graded good for outcomes)

Increase the proportion of
schools where Standards
are judged by Estyn to be
good or excellent.

Between 2011-2016

The proportion of schools judged
to be excellent or good for Key

Question 1: How good are
outcomes over the past 5 years.

Excellent

Primary- 9.78% (Wales 3.63%)
Secondary- 4.76% (Wales 11.79%)
Special- 12.50% (Wales 16.22%)

Good

Primary- 68.48% (Wales 67.75%)
Secondary- 38.10% (Wales 34.91%)
Special- 75% (56.76%)

11



78 abed

Appendix C

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Academic Year 2014/15

Academic Year 2015/16

Secure improved learner
outcomes at the
designated Challenge
Cymru Secondary
schools that are at least
in line with the welsh
average.

Note that the Challenge Cymru
Programme is ending 31st
March 2017. Beyond this date
we will continue to ensure
improved Key Stage 4
outcomes in our lowest
performing schools.

The percentage of pupils
achieving the expected levels at
the end of Key Stage 4 in:

Willows High School — L1, L2 and
L2+

Willows High School
L1 83.6%, L2 78.9%, L2+ 46.9%

Willows High School
L1 95%, L2 93%, L2+ 53%

St llityd’s High School- L1, L2
and L2+

St llityd’s High School
L1 97%, L2 85.6%, L2+ 46.1%

St llityd’s High School
L1 98%, L2 98%, L2+ 55%

Michaelston Community College—
L1, L2 and L2+

Michaelston Community College
L1 89.3%, L2 68%, L2+ 25.2%

Michaelston Community College
L1 82%, L2 61%, L2+ 25%

Glyn Derw High School- L1, L2
and L2+

Glyn Derw High School
L1 79.5%, L2 63.6%, L2+ 23.9%

Glyn Derw High School
L1 86%, L2 67%, L2+ 29%

Eastern High School- L1, L2 and
L2+

Eastern High
L164.7%, L2 43.8%, L2+ 14.9%

Eastern High
L1 72%, L2 35%, L2+ 22%

Cantonian High School- L1, L2
and L2+

Cantonian High School
L1 92.5%, L2 87.5%, L2+ 45%

Cantonian High School
L1 97%, L2 92%, L2+ 51%

12



Gg abed

Appendix C

Success Measure
In 2020 strategy

Baseline
September 2016

Have no schools running recurrent deficit budgets.

There are 11 schools currently running deficit budgets. At the end
of 2014-15 there were 21 schools running deficit budgets.

Have all secondary schools paired with another school, either within the
consortium or the city to support leadership of teaching and learning.

All schools in Cardiff continue to be part of an accredited school
improvement group or network. Lead schools are implementing
their professional learning programmes and the lead practitioners
have been deployed across the region.

Have an agreed peer to peer model operating across the city, based on
the shared use of data and performance measures.

The majority of schools are involved in a formal peer enquiry or
have senior leaders undertaking leadership development.

13




9g abed

Appendix C

Key Goal: Schools and Cardiff in Partnership

School Governance

Success measure in 2020
strategy

Key Performance Indicator Cardiff position 2014/15 Cardiff position 2015/16

Further strengthen school
governance, increasing the
number of school governors and
the range of skills that they are
able to offer to help drive school
improvement.

The percentage of local authority

governing body vacancies 7.95% (31 positions) 6.91% (27 positions)

The percentage of governing

body vacancies 8.78% (179 positions) 8.13% (166 positions)

Schools Partnerships (Business/Public/Voluntary sector and Communities/Families)

Success measure in 2020 strategy

Baseline 2016

Improve the broad range of skills of children starting school as
measured by the new foundation phase profile, in partnership with
families, communities, health and the early year’s sector.

Data not yet analysed. The baseline for the new Foundation
Phase profile which assesses the abilities of children on entry to
school was collected for the first time this Summer.

Cardiff is also commencing work to evaluate the impact of Flying
Start programmes across the city over the last 8 - 10 years.

Ensure that all schools have a clear business partner, with

purposeful shared objectives.

September 2016.

Eight secondary schools were partnered with a business under
the Business in the Community ‘Business Class’ programme as at

Many schools/business partnerships also exist across the city
which have evolved through local arrangements.

14



) g abed

Appendix C

Youth Engagement and Progression

Success measure in 2020
strategy

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/16

Cardiff ranking

Increase the numbers of young
people that make a successful
transition to the world of work.

See also Desired Outcome 7

Other measures are being gathered to
extend these annual measures from
Careers Wales

The percentage of Year 11
leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory
schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

95.5%
(4.5% NEET)

(2014/15 ranking)

22 out of 22

The percentage of Year 13
leavers making a successful
transition from compulsory
schooling to education,
employment or training.

(2014/15 Cardiff)

97.04%
(2.96% NEET)

(2014/15 ranking)

7 out of 22

Ensure that all young people
have access to careers advice,
guidance and work experience
opportunities.

The Cardiff Commitment — a strategy for youth engagement and progression, will drive forward action

in this area and build on work to date in delivering a Youth Guarantee.

15



Appendix C

Vulnerable learners / Alternative curriculum

g9g abed

Success measure in 2020 Refer to the EOTAS performance measures within the ‘Excellent Outcomes’ goal which provide
strategy details of outcomes achieved by pupils that access Education Other Than at School.

Provide a broader range of The performance of pupils with additional learning needs should also be considered in the context of
alternative curnculgm options this success measure. Work is ongoing to add to the educational attainment measures listed within
that respond effectively to the ‘Excellent Outcomes’ which needs to take account of provision and access to services.

needs of vulnerable learners
that may have difficulties learning | Available measures for other vulnerable groups, and measures of engagement in school such as

in a classroom environment. attendance and exclusions are presented together below.
SE G O U AT Key Performance Indicator Cardiff position 2015/15 Wales Average Academic
P=provisional year 2015/16
The percentage of eFSM pupils (2014/15 Wales Average)
achieving the Foundation Phase 80.3%P 75.1%
Outcome Indicator, at the end of
year 2

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free 11.60P 14.87
school meals vs those not
eligible

(2014/15 Wales Average)
The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Core Subject 78.8%P 75.1%
Indicator, at the end of Key Stage
2

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free 13.61P 15.66
school meals vs those not
eligible

16



68 abed

Appendix C

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/15

Wales Average Academic
year 2015/16

The percentage of eFSM pupils
achieving the Core Subject
Indicator, at the end of Key Stage
3

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

70.7%P

20.12P

(2014/15 Wales Average)

66.4%

22.20

The percentage eFSM pupils
achieving the Level 2+ threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5
GCSEs A* - C including Maths &
English/Welsh)

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

35.4%P

32.6P

(2014/15 Wales Average)

31.6%

32.43

The percentage eFSM pupils
achieving the Level 2 threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5
GCSEs A* - C)

Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free
school meals vs those not
eligible

(2014/15 Cardiff)

65.2%

21.26

(2014/15 Wales Average)

69.4%

19.46

17



06 abed

Appendix C

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff position 2015/16

Wales Average Academic

year 2015/16

The percentage of eFSM pupils (2014/15 Cardiff) (2014/15 Wales Average)
achieving the Level 1 threshold
at the end of Key Stage 4 (5
GCSE'S A*-G) 81.5% 89.5%
Difference in achievement
between pupils eligible for free 14.34 8.13
school meals vs those not
eligible
Attendance in primary schools (Wales Average 2014/15)

95.0% 94.95%
Attendance in secondary schools

94.5% 94.2%
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales Average 2014/15)
pupils in primary (5 days or 9.38 8
fewer)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales Average 2014/15)
pupils in primary (6 days or 0.2 0.5
more)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales Average 2014/15)
pupils in secondary (5 days or 55.3 55
fewer)
Fixed term exclusions per 1000 (Wales Average 2014/15)
pupils in secondary (6 days or 0.91 3.4

more)

Success Measure

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year

Wales Average Academic

18



T6 abed

Appendix C

In 2020 strategy 2015/16 year 2015/16

Children who are looked after by | The percentage of Children who

any local authority and attend a are Looked After achieving the

Cardiff mainstream secondary expected levels at:

school or PRU
Foundation Phase 88.9% (16 out of 18 pupils) 64%

(all children on the roll of a Cardiff school

or the PRU as at 12" January 2016 o f 0

which is the annual pupil census date Key Stage 2 68.2% (15 out of 22 pupils) 64%

who were looked after either by Cardiff - -

or any other local authority) Key Stage 4 71.4% (20 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Level 1
Key Stage 4 46.4% (13 out of 28 pupils) Not yet available
Level 2
Key Stage 4 17.9% (5 out of 28 pupils) 18%
Level 2 +

Children who are looked after by

Cardiff Council

(all children looked after as at 12th
January 2016 which is the annual pupil
census date for whom Cardiff Council is
the Corporate Parent)

Key Performance Indicator

Cardiff Position Academic year
2015/16

Wales Average Academic
year 2015/16

The percentage of Children who
are Looked After achieving the
expected levels at:

Foundation Phase

71.4% (15 out of 21 pupils)

Key Stage 2 70.4% (19 out of 27 pupils)
Key Stage 4 54% (25 out of 46 pupils)

Level 1

Key Stage 4

Level 2 33% (15 out of 46 pupils)

Key Stage 4

Level 2 + 15.2% (7 out of 46 pupils)

Not yet available

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6 DECEMBER 2016

EFFECTIVENESS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS - PROGRESS REPORT

Reason for the Report

1.

To provide the Committee with an updated progress report on the
implementation of the Committee’s recommendations following the
Cabinet Members positive response to the Inquiry report copy attached

at Appendix A.

Background

2.

Committee undertook an Inquiry as part of their 2015/16 work
programme titled The Effectiveness of School Governors in Challenging

School Performance, which was published in July 2015.

The Cabinet Member for Education responded to the Committee’s
inquiry report letter on 19 October 2015. The response letter reported
that the Cabinet Member was pleased to note that the report’s overall
findings and recommendations reflected her own views, and that
strengthening school governance is a priority for Education. The
response letter report stated that all 10 of the Committee’s

recommendations had been accepted.

The Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate also developed an
action plan, dated June 2015, for the implementation of the
recommendations, which provided a detailed explanation of how each
recommendation was being addressed, together with an anticipated

implementation date (copy attached at Appendix B).

Page 93



Progress since June 2015

5. The report attached at Appendix A provides a detailed explanation of
the work undertaken since the receipt of the Committee’s inquiry report
letter, in further developing the effectiveness of school governors in
improving the educational attainment of their pupils. The report
appraises the progress across the 10 recommendations as well as
explaining the next steps in the continuous improvement of School

Governing Bodies

Scope of Scrutiny

6. The scope of this scrutiny is to consider the Education and Lifelong
Learning Directorate’s plans for developing the effectiveness of school
governors and to pass on any observations, comments or

recommendations to the Director of Education and Lifelong Learning.

a. the progress being made to undertake the Actions identified in
the Plan;
b. the impact of the actions to improve the effectiveness of the

School Governors;

Way Forward

7. Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education) has been
invited and may make a statement. Nick Batchelar (Director of Education
and Lifelong Learning) and Jackie Turner (Assistant Director of
Education and Lifelong Learning) have been invited to present the

progress report and to answer any questions Members may have.
8. Members are invited to consider the information set out in the attached

report and to identify any issues on which they would wish to receive

further information.

Page 94



Legal Implications

9.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend, but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations
in this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.
Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to the
Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any
procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the
body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be
undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by
the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and

proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

10.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, review and
recommend, but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations
in this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct
financial implications at this stage in relation to the work programme.
However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under
review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set

out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Page 95



RECOMMENDATION

Committee is recommended to consider the contents of the progress report
attached at Appendix A and provide the Cabinet Member and Director with

any comments, concerns or recommendations.

Davina Fiore
Director Governance and Legal Services
30 November 2016

Page 96



Appendix 1

SCRUTINY: December 2016

Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee Phased Inquiry — The effectiveness of
school governing bodies in improving the educational attainment of their pupils

REPORT OF Director of Education & LLL

PORTFOLIO: Education and Lifelong Learning

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Reason for this report

To provide a progress report to The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee on
the implementation of the recommendations arising from the phased inquiry into the
effectiveness of school governing bodies in improving the educational attainment of their

pupils.
Background and context

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee agreed to undertake a phased
inquiry into Local Authority School Governors in November 2014. The second meeting
of the Task Group, held on 18 June 2015, investigated the support and training of school
governors to help improve the effectiveness of the Governing Bodies to improve the
educational attainment of their pupils.

This report will focus on the current situation and progress made in the last 12 months
against each of the recommendations.

A copy of the outcome of the inquiry and the Cabinet Member’s response is contained in
Appendix 1.

Progress since June 2015

Recommendation 1

That the Cabinet and Central South Consortium (CSC) work together to develop,
and implement a process, whereby the effectiveness of Governing Bodies are
reviewed at least annually. Members suggested that the Challenge Advisers
would be best placed to undertake this task.

During the course of the annual cycle of school visits, Challenge Advisers make

judgements about the quality of school leadership, including the effectiveness of
governing bodies. The annual Challenge Adviser's School Improvement report includes

1
Page 97



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Appendix 1
a statement about governance. Feedback arising from these judgements is shared with

officers and disseminated through formal meeting mechanisms in the Local Authority.

Governance is also a feature of the Control Risk Self-Assessment (CRSA) provided by
the Local Authority’s Audit Team. The CRSA is a self-assessment tool which schools
and governing bodies use to identify strengths in financial administration and areas
where improvements are needed. It is covers four key areas and includes governors’
responsibilities. The areas covered are similar to those tested during a routine audit. A
summary of the findings are reported regularly to the School Budget Forum.

Recommendation 2

That the Cabinet ensures that all school governing bodies are encouraged to
undertake a skills audit of their members and a self-evaluation exercise on the
effectiveness of the body. Members suggested that the National Governors
Association’s skills audit and Merseyside and Cheshire Area Partnership’s Self
Evaluation Tool for school governing Bodies could be used.

The new Local Authority Governor appointment process has been successful in
matching applicants with schools where their skills and experience are needed. The
Chair of Governors and Headteacher are consulted on the skills that they require when
matching applicants to vacancies in governing bodies. This approach aligns with the
recently announced Welsh Government’s proposals to revise the legislative framework
for school governance and to place a stronger focus on skilled governing bodies.

Since implementing this process, Local Authority governor vacancies have decreased
from 7.95% to 6.91% in the last 12 months. The quality of applications has been
consistently high.

The Governors’ Wales skills matrix is recommended to governing bodies when they
carry out skills audits.

The Governors Wales Bronze Award Quality Mark came to an end on 31st December
2015, with 11 schools successfully completing it. The schools that began working
towards the Bronze Award are able to use this material towards the national self-
evaluation template produced by Governors Wales. This was launched in the summer
term 2016.

The national self-evaluation template is designed to both support and challenge
governing bodies across Wales and

e Improve governing body effectiveness;
¢ Implement, assess and review approaches to achieve this improvement; and

2
Page 98



5.1

5.2

6.1

6.3

6.4

Appendix 1
e Show how effective school governance leads to improving standards in education
and wellbeing.

Within the template, there is also a ‘quick’ evaluation process and governors may wish
to complete this as a precursor to the more detailed version.

Recommendation 3

That the Cabinet ensures that communication across all stakeholders is reviewed
to ensure that the roles and responsibilities, advice and support provided by each
stakeholder is clearly documented and understood by all school Governing
Bodies.

Further revisions to the Local Authority’s Service Level Agreement will be explored for
the next academic year to support governors and clerks in their role.

Regular communication takes place with Headteachers, Chairs and Clerks in key areas
such as governor appointments and mandatory training and detailed advice is provided
on a wide range of issues. This work is being further developed with colleagues across
the Local Authority and good practice guides are being developed in a number of areas.

Recommendation 4
That the Cabinet explores whether there would be benefits from the Governor
Support Services being transferred fully to the Central South Consortium (CSC).

The Governor Support Officer attends regular meetings with CSC officers to develop
training and support for governing bodies. In the spring term 2016, plans were agreed
for the delivery of mandatory training across the region. Cardiff's current governor
training programme was reviewed and gaps in provision highlighted.

During the summer term 2016, a programme of training to be delivered by CSC was
agreed. Following this, two Governing Body Development Officers were appointed to
CSC to administer and deliver the mandatory training programme for all governors
across the region. This is providing a more consistent approach to mandatory training.
CSC is also providing additional training in areas such as school improvement/support
and challenge/being Estyn-ready to complement Cardiff’s current training programme.

The new programme has been publicised to governors and support provided with new

booking arrangements. Governor Support is working with CSC to monitor uptake of
courses and the quality of provision.

3
Page 99



7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Appendix 1
Recommendation 5

That the Cabinet undertakes a review of the capacity, support and advice provided
to Governing Bodies, by the Authority and Central South Consortium, to ensure
that it meets the needs of Governing Bodies to undertake their responsibilities.

Further changes will be explored to the Service Level Agreement to maximise the
support provided to Governing Bodies.

Capacity within Governor Support Services has increased in the last 12 months through
further recruitment to the Business Support Team. A review of roles and responsibilities
is underway to create additional capacity for developmental work.

The Local Authority will continue to work with CSC to ensure that Governing Bodies are
supported. Consultant governors have been appointed by CSC and are deployed where
the need is identified, either by the Challenge Adviser or Governor Support Services.

Recommendation 6

That the Cabinet ensures that the Authority and Central South Consortium makes
school Governing Bodies fully aware of the development and implementation of
school improvement strategies and school improvement groups.

The Director and Senior Officers from the Education Directorate hold a termly briefing
meeting for Chairs of Governing Bodies. The format of the meetings has been revised
to ensure that they are interactive and enable governors to discuss and share issues
and good practice.

CSC continues to run termly briefing sessions on a range of topical issues. These are
interactive sessions that allow governor discussion and provide opportunities to network.
A governor conference is also planned next year.

The governors’ newsletter is being re-launched to ensure regular communication with all
governors. Governors are also able to sign up for regular newsletters provided by CSC.

Chairs of governors are communicated with regularly and guidance is sent through to
Chairs, Headteachers and Clerks on a range of issues.

Plans are being developed by CSC to put in place governor improvement groups across
the region. These will mirror school improvement groups.

Robert Hill delivered a governor briefing session on the Self Improving School system.
Feedback on this session was positive and further training opportunities are being
provided by CSC on the Self Improving School System to governing bodies across the
region.

4
Page 100



9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Appendix 1
Recommendation 7

Members considered the minimum standards guide developed for Gwaunmeisgyn
Primary School, could be a useful model to be used for Cardiff schools needing
improvement. Best practice like this should be more effectively shared.

The Gwaunmeisgyn Primary School model was shared with Chairs of Governors at a
briefing session in June and the presentation was distributed to all Chairs of Governors.

The Chair of Governors of Gwaunmeisgyn Primary School is a consultant governor for
CSC and will continue to share this best practice through this role.

Central South Consortium has appointed consultant governors to transfer best practice
across schools. Demand for consultant governors across the region has been high and
positive feedback received. Governor Support Services are able to submit requests for
consultant governor support through the Senior Challenge Adviser. Regular reports are
received on deployment.

Recommendation 8

That the Cabinet ensures that all Governing Bodies undertake the mandatory
training and also develop, through a variety of training models, such as cluster
training and whole school training, training to help school Governing Bodies to
become fully effective.

The training programme for governors was revised this year with a number of new
courses being provided to support governors in their role, including: Data Protection,
Equalities, Minority Ethnic Pupils and Pupils with English as an Additional Language,
Governors Role in Support and Challenge and Managing Staff Attendance.

Delivery of mandatory training has been transferred to CSC this year and attendance
remains high at each of the courses offered. Governors have been supported with
changes in delivery and the new booking system.

The implementation of on-line training has been successful with 795 governors
registering for this service since it was launched in September 2015. As at October
2016, 150 governors have completed mandatory training in this way. Each training
module is available bi-lingually.

Attendance at mandatory training is monitored and supportive action continues to be
taken to ensure that governors are compliant with the regulations.

Different models of training are available and bespoke training is provided to those

schools where governance is identified as a priority in red and amber schools. Cluster
training is also available to Governing Bodies.

5
Page 101



11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

12.

121

12.2

13.

13.1

Appendix 1

Recommendation 9
All school governor training and clerking training should be professionally quality
assured and fit for purpose.

Provision of mandatory training has been transferred to CSC this year. The training will
continue to meet the requirements of the training programmes commissioned by the
Welsh Government.

An evaluation form is completed following each training session and the contents of this
are shared with trainers. Dip sampling to quality assure training will take place and an
evaluation report produced termly.

Take-up of training decreased slightly from 30% (2014-2015) to 27% (2015-2016).
However, evaluation of training remains positive with 97% of governors in 2015-16
judging the courses as being good or better and 65.5% of governors judging the courses
as being very good. 2.5% of training was judged as being adequate and the feedback in
these evaluations have been followed up on. No training was judged as being poor.

Recommendation 10

That the Cabinet and Central South Consortium ensures that the clerking of all
school Governing Bodies is undertaken at the highest standard supported by
effective training.

Mandatory training for clerks has been transferred to CSC this year. The training will
continue to meet the requirements of the training programmes commissioned by the
Welsh Government.

Support for new clerks is provided through Governor Support Services. New and
existing clerks are able to meet with Governor Support Services staff to discuss role.
Support with general enquiries is provided through the governor mailbox and detailed
advice is provided for more complex queries.

Next Steps

In order to improve the effectiveness of governing bodies further, the following actions
are being taken:

Guidance notes on key issues, highlighted by either the Challenge Advisers or through
the findings of the CRSA, are being developed and will be shared with governing bodies.
These include areas such as governor attendance, committee structures, membership
and terms of reference.

6
Page 102



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

Appendix 1
Guidance and support will be provided to governing bodies in preparing for the
implementation of the new legislation, arising from Welsh Government’s proposals to
revise the legislative framework for school governance. This will include the issuing of
clear guidance on the use of skills audits and support in drafting new Instruments of
Government.

Further revisions to the Local Authority’s service level agreement with governing bodies
will be explored to support governors and clerks in their role. Developments being
considered include: an electronic package for clerks to store and update their governing
body’s details, key documents and meeting management, an on-line booking system for
governor training and further development of on-line training provision.

A good practice guide on appointing a Governing Body Clerk is being developed and will
be commended to Governing Bodies. This will include the self-evaluation tool for clerks.

Guidance notes are being developed for clerks and chairs on key areas of the role. The
first of these was sent to Clerks, Chairs and Headteachers at the start of the autumn

term. Further documents will be developed for the spring and summer terms.

The establishment of a clerk’s network/steering group will be explored to enable clerks
to meet to discuss and share issues and good practice.

7
Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee Phased Inquiry — The Effectiveness of School Governing
Bodies in Improving the Educational Attainment of their Pupils, 18 June 2015

Officer Response to Recommendations

No. | Recommendation

Response

Implementation

1 That the Cabinet and Central South Consortium
work together to develop and implement a
process whereby the effectiveness of Governing
Bodies are reviewed at least annually. Members
suggested that the Challenge Advisers would be
best placed to undertake this task.

Agreed.

During the course of their school visit annual cycle
Challenge Advisers make a judgement about the quality
of school leadership, this includes the effectiveness of
governing bodies. The annual Challenge Adviser’s
School Improvement report includes a statement about
governance.

Ongoing

body. Members suggested that the National
Governors Association’s skills audit and
Merseyside and Cheshire Area Partnership’s
Self Evaluation Tool for school Governing
Bodies could be used.

schools where their skills are needed. Governing
Bodies are encouraged to undertake a self evaluation
exercise, currently the Governors Wales Bronze Award
Quality Mark, and are supported by Governor Support
Services with this. Feedback from Governing Bodies
has indicated that although working towards the Bronze
Award is a useful exercise, a more manageable
approach to self-evaluation would be more helpful. An
identified self evaluation tool kit could be recommended
to Cardiff school governing bodies. We have recently
received notification that the Welsh Government has

J
o)
(ﬁ; 2 That the Cabinet ensures that all school Agreed.
s Governing Bodies are encouraged to undertake | The application process to become a school governor Autumn 2015
D a skills audit of their members and a self requires those applying to set out their skills and
Sk evaluation exercise on the effectiveness of the abilities. Local Authority governors are matched with




tasked Governors Wales to lead on the construction of a
national self evaluation template for Governing Bodies
in Wales.

capacity, support and advice provided to
Governing Bodies, by the Authority and Central
South Consortium, to ensure that it meets the
needs of Governing Bodies to undertake their
responsibilities.

The role of the Local Authority Governor Support
Services is to support schools to enable them to comply
with law, minimise legal risks and operate effective
governance processes. Schools sign up to a service
level agreement which outlines the service they can
expect from Governor Support Services.

Capacity within the Local Authority to support school
governors will be increased by further recruitment to the
Business Support Team.

The Local Authority will continue to work with the

3 That the Cabinet ensures that communication Agreed.
across all stakeholders is reviewed to ensure The Local Authority has revised the Service Level Summer 2015
that the roles and responsibilities, advice and Agreement with schools that clearly outlines the service
support provided by each stakeholder is clearly | provided by Governor Support Services. Central South
documented and understood by all school Consortium has also produced a document outlining
Governing Bodies. their responsibilities towards school governors.
4 That the Cabinet explores whether there would Not agreed.
be benefits from the Governors Support There are currently no plans to transfer Governor
Services being transferred fully to the Central Support Services to the Central South Consortium.
uy) South Consortium. There is a Governor Support Lead Officer role in the
@ Consortium and this had resulted in increasing
« ) ;
5 alignment and cooperation between each Local
e Authority’s Governor Support Services.
05 That the Cabinet undertakes a review of the Agreed

Autumn 2015

Ongoing




Central South Consortium to ensure that Governing
Bodies are supported.

INT abp 1
LUl YVMYU

That the Cabinet ensures that the Authority and
Central South Consortium makes school
Governing Bodies fully aware of the
development and implementation of school
improvement strategies and school improvement
groups.

Agreed.

Senior Officers from the Education Directorate hold a
briefing meeting for the Chairs of Governing Bodies
each school term.

The Central South Consortium Governor Steering Group
are running a termly series of briefing sessions aimed at
all governors across the consortium. The sessions will
update governors on the latest developments and give
them the opportunity to consider the implications for
their roles.

A governors’ newsletter has been produced each school
term. Following feedback from governors this will now
move to a regular electronic communication.

Robert Hill has been commissioned to carry out focused
work in relation to school governors.

Central South Consortium produce regular newsletters
for Headteachers and the Local Authority will ensure
that these are made available to governors.

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

Members considered the minimum standards
guide developed for Gwaunmeisgyn Primary
School, could be a useful model to be used for
Cardiff schools needing improvement. Best
practice like this should be more effectively
shared.

Agreed.

The Gwaunmeisgyn Primary School model has been
shared with Chairs of Governors at their briefing in June
and the presentation has been distributed to all Chairs
of Governors.

Summer 2015 -
completed




Central South Consortium has appointed consultant
governors to transfer best practice across schools and
will begin work in the autumn term.

Autumn 2015

QNnT ahp 1
OoOVvUlL Y~%¥U

That the Cabinet ensures that all Governing
Bodies undertake the mandatory training and
also develop, through a variety of training
models, such as cluster training and whole
school training, training to help school Governing
Bodies to become fully effective.

Agreed

The Education Department recognises the vital role that
governing bodies play in raising the standards of
achievement in Cardiff schools and hence is committed
to high quality support and training to Cardiff's school
governors. A full range of training is provided to enable
governors to meet mandatory training requirements and
to discharge their duties effectively. Courses are of
high quality and purpose designed, offered at a range of
accessible venues and available at daytime and
evening. Cluster training and whole Governing Body
training is available.

On-line training is also available from September 2015
and will cover the four mandatory training requirements.

Attendance at mandatory training is monitored and
supportive action is taken to ensure all governors are
compliant.

Where an improvement in governance is identified as a
priority in red, amber or yellow schools, the Challenge
Advise will broker support which could include a
consultant governor, school to school governor links or
support from the Challenge Adviser themselves.

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

Ongoing

Ongoing

All school governor training and clerking training
should be professionally quality assured and fit

Agreed.
All mandatory training meets the requirements of the




for purpose.

training programmes commissioned by the Welsh
Government.

Governors complete an evaluation following each
training session. Trainers will be trained in delivering a
consistent ‘in-house’ style of training in response to
feedback governors who have attended training.

Dip sampling to quality assure training will take place.
An evaluation report will be produced termly..

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

ANnT 2Pbp 4
VUL Y~MYU

10

That the Cabinet and Central South Consortium
ensures that the clerking of all school Governing
Bodies is undertaken at the highest standard
supported by effective training.

Agreed
Training for clerks is provided and will be quality
assured as above.

Ongoing support for clerks is available through
Governor Support Services.

The training programme for clerks has been refreshed
and improved for the academic year 2015/2016.

The self evaluation tool for clerks published in the
mandatory clerk’s training programme will be circulated
to all clerks and chairs in the new academic year.

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015

Autumn 2015




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6 December 2016

FAMILIES FIRST PROGRAMME - UPDATE AND DRAFT TRANSITIONS
ARRANGEMENTS - DRAFT CABINET REPORT

Purpose of Report

1.

To provide Members with the opportunity to consider and review the Draft
Cabinet Report providing an update on the Families First Programme and
the draft transitions arrangements following the Welsh Government’s
decision to end the current programme on 31 March 2017 and the

introduction of new programmes (copy attached at Appendix 1).

Background

2. The Council currently receives a Welsh Government grant of just over £56m

per annum for the Families First Programme, to provide early intervention
and prevention services for families. The programme is one of the Welsh

Government’s key initiatives for tackling poverty.

The Council manages the grant on behalf of the Cardiff Partnership, which
is made up of all the main statutory and third sector partners working
together to deliver Cardiff's Integrated Strategic Plan, What Matters: 2010-
2020. For this reason, the Vulnerable Children and Families Board, which
is part of the Cardiff Partnership arrangements, has a role in governance
of the programme in addition to the Council’s own governance processes.

This Board is currently chaired by the Director of Social Services.

The Welsh Government’s initial Guidance identified that the initial Families
First programme would end in 2017. The Guidance also contained a
requirement that services should be ‘strategically commissioned'. In line
with this, services under the Families First Programme were
commissioned by the Council via two competitive tender processes

resulting in the award of seven Edagi@td Which commenced on 1 April



7.

2013. These contracts are due to expire on 31 March 2017, although they
contain an option to extend on an annual basis for 12 month periods if

continued grant funding is made available.

The main specification for the initial programme comprised six lots,
providing for themed packages of services. Each of these packages is led
by a Lead Provider who has entered into sub contracts with a range of
other providers. In this way, each package provides a number of different

projects or services. The packages are:

e Early Years — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board.

e Child and Youth Engagement — led by City of Cardiff Education
Services.

e Sustainable Employment — led by Sova.

e Healthy Lifestyles — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board.

e Emotional and Mental Health and Wellbeing — led by Barnardo’s.

e Disability Focus — led by Action for Children.

. Under the same Programme (although commissioned under a separate

procurement process) there is an additional “Team Around the Family’
service for which a contract is in place with a single provider, Tros Gynnal
Plant.

A number of smaller Infrastructure projects also support delivery across
the Programme. These are mainly delivered in-house or secured by way of
grant, although an additional contract was entered into during the current
financial year to support the development of Time Credits. This contract is
managed by the Council’s Communities, Housing and Customer Services

Directorate through a joint funding arrangement.

. The Families First grant funding for this programme remained at the same

level between 2012/13 and 2015/16 at £5,743,339 but was reduced to
£5,072,763 in 2016/17.

. In July 2016, Welsh Government Cabinet Secretary Carl Sargeant

confirmed that there would Ibyaaggtrfiﬁamilies First programme. His



decision paper is attached to this report as Appendix A. The decision
paper sets out his intentions for the new programme and clarifies the
distinctive contribution that Welsh Government want the Families First
programme to make alongside other programmes and initiatives. The
paper confirms the elements of provision that Welsh Government want to
continue, identifies some areas of service that they will be funded in the
new programme and some potential gaps that Welsh Government want to

be addressed.

Previous Scrutiny

10. The Committee considered the Families First Annual Review report for
2015/2016 at its meeting on 18 October 2016. Members heard that Cardiff
had not yet set any transitional arrangements for the end of the contract in
March 2017 and was advised that the advice received was that these
arrangements could not be set until such times as further guidance was

received for the future of Families First, together with budget information.

11.Whilst the extension of the contract has to be a Cabinet decision, notice to
extend can be given, and Officers confirmed that they were committed to
moving forward as soon possible without any compromise of integrity.
Members expressed concern that there may be a risk that Families First
will not be in a position to continue to help families in need in light of the
underspend on staff and the number of staff leaving. Officers advised that
they are satisfied that Families First will continue, although the format may

be somewhat different.
12. After the meeting, Members agreed to consider the draft Cabinet report as

soon as it was available to ensure that it is considered by Cabinet in a

timely manner.

Page 113



Draft Cabinet Report

13.The draft Cabinet report sets out the proposed interim arrangements for
the transition period, which includes varying some existing contacts in
order to extend their initial contract terms, decommissioning some of the
services and potentially commissioning pilot/alternative arrangements

during the transition period.

14.The report also sets out a timetable for the governance arrangements to
ensure a smooth progression to new arrangements for service users

(paragraph 18).

15. Equality impact assessments have also been undertaken which have been
used to inform the proposals for the interim arrangements (see

Appendices B to E).
Scope of Scrutiny
16. The scope of this scrutiny is for Members to:

o Gain assurance that the draft Cabinet Report provides appropriate
interim arrangements for the decommissioning of those Families
First programmes not being funded after 31 March 2017 and the

commissioning of the new programmes starting on 1 April 2017;

o Pass on any observations, comments or recommendations to the
Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and Families prior to the

consideration of the Draft report by Cabinet.

Way Forward

17.Councillor Sue lent (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Early Years,
Children and Families), Tony Young (Director of Social Services ), Angela
Bourge (Operational Manager Strategy, Performance and Resources) and

Ceri George (Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and

Page 114



Partnerships) will present the report to the Committee, and will be

available to answer any questions Members may have.

18. This report will also enable Members to provide any comments,
concerns or recommendations to the Cabinet Member prior to its

consideration by Cabinet.

Legal Implications

19. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.
Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council
will set out any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All
decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal
powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement
imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising
powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the
procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be
taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h)

be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications
20. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However,

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are

implemented with or without any modifications.

Page 115



RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended to:

Review the information contained in the draft Cabinet Report, attached at
Appendix 1, together with information provided at the meeting and provide
any recommendations, comments or advice to the Cabinet Member and / or

Director of Social Services prior to the report’s consideration by Cabinet.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services
30 November 2016

Page 116



Appendix 1

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 15 December 2016

TITLE: FAMILIES FIRST PROGRAMME: UPDATE AND
TRANSITION ARRANGEMENTS

REPORT OF DIRECTOR

AGENDA ITEM:

PORTFOLIO: Early Years, Children and Families (Councillor Sue Lent)

Reason for this Report

1.

To inform Cabinet of the current position in relation to Cardiff's Families
First Programme, as detailed in the body of the report.

Subject to confirmation of funding from Welsh Government, to request
approval to vary existing contracts by way of extensions as further detailed
in the body of this report.

To seek a delegation of authority to the Director of Social Services in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and
Families and the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Section 151
and Monitoring Officers for all aspects of commissioning related to any
short-term provision developed or piloted during the transition period.

Background

4.

The Council currently receives a Welsh Government grant of just over £6m
per annum, for the Families First Programme to provide early intervention
and prevention services for families. The programme is one of the Welsh
Government’s key initiatives for tackling poverty.

The City of Cardiff Council manages the grant on behalf of the Public
Services Board, which is made up of all the main statutory and third sector
partners working together to deliver Cardiff's Integrated Strategic Plan,
What Matters: 2010-2020.

For this reason, the Vulnerable Children and Families Board, which is part
of the Cardiff Partnership arrangements, has a role in governance of the
programme in addition to the Council’s own governance processes. This
Board is currently chaired by the Director of Social Services.

Page 117 Page 1 of 11



10.

11.

12.

Appendix 1

By way of background, the Welsh Government’s initial Guidance identified
that the first Families First programme would end in 2017. The Guidance
also contained a requirement that services should be ‘strategically
commissioned’. In line with this, services under the Families First
Programme were commissioned by the Council via two competitive tender
processes resulting in the award of seven contracts which commenced on
1 April 2013. These contracts are due to expire on 31st March 2017,
although they do contain an option to extend on an annual basis for 12
month periods if continued grant funding is made available.

The main specification for the first programme comprised six lots providing
for themed packages of services. Each of these packages is led by a Lead
Provider who has entered into sub contracts with a range of other
providers. In this way, each package provides a number of different
projects or services. The packages are:

e Early Years — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board

e Child and Youth Engagement — led by City of Cardiff Education
Services

e Sustainable Employment — led by Sova

e Healthy Lifestyles — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health
Board

e Emotional and Mental Health and Wellbeing — led by Barnardo’s

e Disability Focus — led by Action for Children

Under the same Programme although commissioned under a separate
procurement process, there is a further service. This is the Team Around
the Family service for which a contract is in place with a single provider,
namely Tros Gynnal Plant.

A number of smaller Infrastructure projects also support delivery across
the Programme. These are mainly delivered in-house or secured by way
of grant, although an additional contract was entered into during the
current financial year to support the development of Time Credits. This
contract is managed by the Housing and Communities Directorate through
a joint funding arrangement.

The Families First grant funding for this programme remained at the same
level between 2012/13 and 2015/16 at £5,743,339 but was reduced to
£5,072,763 in 2016/17.

In July 2016, the Cabinet Secretary, Carl Sargeant, confirmed that there
would be another Families First programme. His decision paper is
attached to this report as Appendix A. The decision paper sets out his
intentions for the new programme and clarifies the distinctive contribution
that Welsh Government want the Families First programme to make
alongside other programmes and initiatives. The paper confirms the
elements of provision that they want to continue, and identifies some
areas of service that they will not fund in the new programme and some
potential gaps that they want to be addressed.

Page 118 Page 2 of 11



13.

14.

15.

16.

Appendix 1

Funding for the programme post March 2017 has not yet been confirmed.
However, the Welsh Government’s draft budget proposes that funding for
2017-18 will be at the same level as for 2016-17. The overall budget is
scheduled for agreement on 13" December and Welsh Government
officers have said that they will try to confirm individual funding with local
authorities as soon as possible after this date.

The final guidance for the new programme is not expected to be available
before 31st March 2017. However, the decision paper provides the
direction of travel for the Families First programme and allows for a
transition period. The decision paper suggests that this will take a
minimum of six months and further correspondence with officials has
indicated that they will allow for a longer transition period should this be
required.

Welsh Government is not in a position to be able to confirm how long the
next programme will last or to provide indicative budgets at the present
time. The Cabinet Secretary has confirmed his commitment to continue to
support the Families First programme and the Directorate is preparing for
re-commissioning on this basis. Accordingly, this Report sets the interim
decisions currently before Cabinet in the context of outline longer term
plans. However, these will be the subject of further reports when the
Directorate has the final Guidance, and confirmation of funding and length
of programme.

In the meantime, with the existing contracts due to expire at the end of
March 2017, the Directorate needs to put in place interim arrangements to
cover the transition period under the Families First Programme whilst it
awaits a copy of the final guidance from the Welsh Government and is
therefore in a position to determine and commission the longer term
arrangements. Hence the purpose of this report is to seek authority for the
interim arrangements.

Proposed Interim Arrangements

17.

18.

The proposed interim arrangements for the transition period include
varying some of the existing contracts in order to extend their initial
contract term, decommissioning some of the services currently provided
under the Families First Programme and potentially commissioning/
putting in place pilot/alternative arrangements during the transitionary
period.

Proposed extension of contract term

Working with officers from Legal Services and Procurement, the central
Families First team have put together a proposed outline project plan for
the re-commissioning process, subject to the confirmation of funding. This
builds in the timescales needed for stakeholder engagement, decision-
making via Council and Cardiff Partnership governance arrangements,
compliance with OJEU regulations and a transition period to ensure a
smooth progression to new arrangements for service users.

Page 119 Page 3 of 11



Appendix 1

Governance Arrangements Commencement | End Date

Date

Cabinet decision to proceed with 15t Dec 2016 15t Dec 2016
extension of current arrangements

Notify current Provider January 2017 January 2017
Organisations of the outcome of
Cabinet decision

Stakeholder Engagement July 2016 March 2017
Regarding Existing Programme

Cabinet Approval for re- June 2017 June 2017
commissioning process

Future Commissioning and June 2017 January 2018
Procurement Process

Award of contract January 2018
Transition Period January 2018 31st March 2018

New Contract Start Date 1st April 2018

19. Based on this project plan, it is proposed that the Directorate seeks

20.

permission for a 12 month transition. The Cabinet Secretary’s paper
suggests a transition of at least six months. In subsequent
correspondence, Welsh Government officials have confirmed that they
regard this as the minimum needed and are prepared to agree to a longer
period of up to 12 months.

The current contracts provide for extensions on an annual basis of 12
months provided that the contract does not extend beyond 31 March 2019,
subject to continued grant funding from the Welsh Government.
Accordingly, the Directorate is proposing to extend the following contracts
and service level agreement for a 12-month period commencing on 1 April
2017:

e Early Years contract with Cardiff and Vale University Health Board
and dated 28 March 2013 (current value £616,484)

e Healthy Lifestyles in respect of the services currently delivered
under the contract with Cardiff and Vale University Health Board —
dated 28 March 2013 save for those services/projects identified in
paragraph 17 B) below (current value £445,344)

e Emotional and Mental Health and Wellbeing contract with
Barnardo Services Ltd and dated 12 March 2013 (current value
£1,004,124)

e Disability Focus contract with Action for Children and dated 28
March 2013 (current value £482,508)

e Team Around the Family service contract with Tros Gynnal Plant
and dated 6 March 2013 (current value £486,908)

e Child and Youth Engagement service level agreement with the
Council’'s in-house Education department (current value
£1,313,849)

Page 120 Page 4 of 11



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Appendix 1

Decommissioning of some of the services

As part of the Cabinet Secretary’s decision paper located at Appendix A,
certain elements of the programme will no longer be supported by the
Families First Grant, namely:

Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy
Worklessness/employability/training

Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse.
Childcare services (except creche facilities)

In line with this indication, the Directorate is proposing to decommission a
small number of services. Namely
A. the Sustainable Employment package delivered by Sova (whole
contract - current value £251,486)
B. the Sex and Relationships Education and ASSIST (smoking
prevention) projects (current value £40,587)

Equalities Impact Assessments [EIAs] for these projects which it is
proposed are decommissioned have been carried out and copies of the
same are attached as Appendices B-D. A further EIA has also been
completed for the remaining programme, with a copy attached as
Appendix E.

Welsh Government’s decision not to support these services via Families
First Grant is based on their clarification of the role of Families First
alongside other initiatives which were not in place when the first
programme guidance was issued.

In relation to worklessness, Welsh Government anticipates that other
programmes like Communities 4 Work and LIFT will continue to provide
more specialist support for parents who need this form of support. Their
evaluation of the first Families First programme concluded that this kind of
support was not ‘viable’ as part of Families First because the programme
was working with parents who had more complex needs and needed to
deal with other things before they were able to progress into employment.

Accordingly, the Directorate is not seeking to extend the existing contract
currently in place with Sova in relation to the Sustainable Employment
services under the Families First Programme and this contract will,
therefore, automatically expire on 31 March 2017 in accordance with its
contract terms.

In relation to SRE, there are clear requirements for schools in relation to
delivery. All maintained secondary schools are required under section
101(1)(c) of the Education Act 2002 to include sex education for all
registered pupils, as part of the ‘basic curriculum’ of the school. Primary
schools are advised to deliver SRE although it is not a legal requirement.
The current projects supports schools to put effective delivery into place
but given the legal and advisory responsibility of schools, it is proposed
that this does not fit with the forward direction of Families First.

Page 121 Page 5 of 11



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Appendix 1

In relation to ASSIST, which is a smoking prevention programme, Public
Health Wales now delivers a Smoke Free Schools Programme. While the
value of this work is not questioned, it would appear to be within Public
Health Wales’s remit and not appropriate for further Families First funding.

However, delivery of both of the health-related services is via schools.
Therefore, it is recommended that we continue to fund these elements to
deliver in Quarter 1 of 2017-18 (April — June 2017) so that they can
complete delivery within the current school year. Further discussions with
Welsh Government officials have clarified that the transition period will
allow for the continuance of some projects which will no longer fit with the
new guidance to allow for appropriate exit arrangements to be put into
place. Accordingly, the proposal is to vary the Healthy Lifestyle contract in
part to allow for an extension of 3 months commencing upon 1 April 2017
in respect only of the Sex and Relationships Education and ASSIST
(smoking prevention) projects. The contract value provided in paragraph
23 above has been adjusted to take this into account.

Welsh Government say that “If local authorities wish to retain any health
services which are currently being delivered through the programme, they
will need to be able to demonstrate clear links to parenting, youth support
and ACE [Adverse Childhood Experiences] prevention”. There are a
number of other health-related projects which we are proposing should
continue through the transition, including the Sexual Health Outreach
Team/C-Card service and health and nutrition projects. The analysis and
planning that we will do to prepare for the new specifications will explore
how these services can be embedded to demonstrate the clear links
required.

The decision paper located at Appendix A also identifies childcare as an
element that they will not fund in the new programme. The Cabinet
Secretary’s decision is based on the fact that childcare will now be
provided via the Parents, Childcare and Employment project (PaCE),
which provides support to economically inactive parents into education,
training and employment, where childcare is the main barrier. Welsh
Government are also introducing an enhanced early years childcare offer
which is aimed at working families and will subsidise the provision of 20
hours of childcare for three and four year olds in addition to the 10 hours
of early years education which is already available under the Foundation
Phased for 38 weeks of the year. However, it is not proposed that we
decommission the early years childcare project delivered by Ely and
Caerau Children’s Centre at the present time. This new childcare offer has
not yet been rolled out and so, while childcare will not feature in the new
programme, this provision will be maintained during the transition to allow
time for alternative arrangements to be put into place.

The Directorate is proposing to enter into arrangements to extend

infrastructure elements as appropriate for the way in which they are
delivered and/or were commissioned.

Page 122 Page 6 of 11



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Appendix 1

Alternative/Pilot arrangements during the transition period

The priority is to manage the transition to the new programme while
maintaining services and support for families. It is anticipated that
decommissioning of the identified services will release funding for the
development of other services which will start to fill gaps and strengthen
provision for families in line with the new directions. It will also be used to
improve communication around provision for children, young people and
their families in response to feedback from stakeholders and inspection
reports from Young Inspectors during the current programme.

The stakeholder engagement and analysis will identify areas where
services could be developed or piloted during the transition period. It will
require flexibility to respond to emerging themes effectively. Therefore, it is
proposed that decision-making in relation to the short-term commissioning
of services during this phase is delegated to the Director of Social
Services, where needed, and to that end it is anticipated that the level of
funding will be in the region of approximately £300,000 and that the
alternative/pilot arrangements will not continue beyond 31 March 2018.

Commissioning the next Families First programme

Contract monitoring and stakeholder engagement have confirmed that
Families First has delivered services that have made a real difference to
families in Cardiff. These services provide a wide range of help, ranging
from light touch advice and information to more intensive support for
longer periods of time to around 20,000 individuals each year. However,
we also know that our systems for identifying when families need help and
ensuring that they receive the support they need, could be clearer and
better embedded. The context in which we are working has also changed,
with a greater emphasis on early intervention and prevention through
Cardiffs Early Help Strategy and in the implementation of the Social
Services and Wellbeing Act and the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act.

While it will be a priority to maintain provision during the transition phase,
the re-commissioning in Phase 2 gives us a chance to learn from our
experience during the first programme to do some things better. We also
need to address some of the gaps that have been identified in the Cabinet
Secretary’s decision paper and locally during stakeholder engagement.
This is a real opportunity for Social Services to recommission in line with
the new Welsh Government guidance, to build on areas of success and
address areas for development.

The financial guidance for Families First specifies that the funding must
not be used to deliver statutory services. However, we have received
clarification that funding may be used to deliver wider early help services
which contribute to the provision of Information, Advice and Assistance
under the Social Services and Wellbeing Act.

The Directorate has started to prepare for new commissioning during the
transition period, including consulting with all relevance stakeholders.

Page 123 Page 7 of 11



Appendix 1

Once the Directorate is in a position to propose a model for the longer
term arrangements and having taken into account the final WG guidance
(when this has been received) a further report will be submitted to Cabinet
for approval.

Equality Impact Assessment

39.

Equality Impact Assessments have been carried out on the changes
above and these can be found at Appendices B, C, D and E. Findings
from the assessments have informed the proposals for the interim
arrangements. Further EIAs will be completed and will inform changes to
the programme recommended as part of the recommissioning process
during the transition period.

Consultation

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Lead Providers for the packages directly affected by the decommissioning
proposals for Phase 1 have been notified and asked to provide an exit
strategy but also information about the impact on their service users that
they wished to be taken into consideration in the Equalities Impact
Assessments.

The draft Cabinet report was considered by the Children & Young People
Scrutiny Committee on 6 December 2016. A summary of the key feedback
from the Committee is contained in the bullet points below:

e To be inserted when received

Workshops have been held with current and potential providers of
services. While they have not been asked to comment on the specific
proposals contained here, their general observations have informed this
Report and will continue to inform planning and development of
specifications for Phase 2.

Officers will continue to work closely with providers, third sector partners
and other stakeholders to learn lessons from recent and current
commissioning arrangements Every effort will be made to involve
stakeholders and in particular Service Users in the specification of
services and in the evaluation process.

This report does not relate to a local issue as the Families First
Programme is delivered city-wide.

Page 124 Page 8 of 11



Appendix 1

Reason for Recommendations

45.

To note the approach to the recommissioning of the Families First
programme and agree the arrangements for management of the transition
period.

Financial Implications

46.

Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment where

appropriate)

47.

48.

49.

50.

The proposed recommendation relates to a number of contractual
arrangements currently in place and, put simply, seeks to vary the same
by way of extending the contract terms, subject to receiving a formal offer
of grant funding from the Welsh Government.

The contracts contain provisions to extend the same for twelve months
subject to continuation of Welsh Government grant funding. In addition
Legal Services are instructed that the appointed contractors are in
agreement with the proposed extensions and hence the proposals should
not present any issues in terms of contract law.

With regard to procurement law, it is noted that when the contracts were
initially procured, the tender documentation was clear that the contracts
could be further extended (provided that the same do not extend beyond
31 March 2019). Accordingly the proposal to extend the contracts is within
scope of the original procurement.

In relation to the proposed recommendations and TUPE, please refer to
the employment implications set out in the HR Implications of this report.

Equality duty

51.

52.

In considering this matter the decision maker must have regard to the
Council’'s duties under the Equality Act 2010. Pursuant to these legal
duties Councils must, in making decisions, have due regard to the need to
(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity
and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected characteristics.
Protected characteristics are: (a). Age, ( b ) Gender reassignment( ¢ ) Sex
(d) Race — including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality, (e)
Disability, (f) Pregnancy and maternity, (g) Marriage and civil partnership,
(h) Sexual orientation (i) Religion or belief — including lack of belief.

The report identifies that Equality Impact Assessments have been carried

out and are appended at Appendices B, C, D and E. The purpose of the
Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure that the Council has understood

Page 125 Page 9 of 11



53.

54.

995.

56.

Appendix 1

the potential impacts of the proposal in terms of equality so that it can
ensure that it is making proportionate and rational decisions having due
regard to its public sector equality duty. The decision maker must have
due regard to the Equality Impact Assessments in making its decision.

HR Implications

The central Families First team is currently located within the central
business section of Social Services. Members of staff are employed on
temporary contracts until 318t March 2017. These employment contracts
will also need to be extended, or arrangements made to put new roles into
place to manage the central functions through Phases 1 and 2.

Families First currently funds the following posts in the central team:
e 58% Project Manager Post

100% Commissioning Officer

100% Outcome Delivery Officer

50% Commissioning Support Officer

100% Admin Post

Families First funding also contributes to two other posts in other service
areas:

e 60% Finance Officer in Finance

e 20% Analyst in Cardiff Research Unit

It is unlikely that there will be TUPE implications during Phase 1. However,
the recommissioning of services in Phase 2 may or may not have
implications under the Transfer of undertakings (Protection of
employment) regulations 2006 (TUPE) for the incoming and outgoing
providers. An assessment will be made by the Council and referred to in
any tender documentation. At this point, it will be recommended that any
contractors take their own legal advice on whether TUPE applies or not as
they will be the ones with the legal responsibility.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Cabinet:

1.Subject to the condition set out in point 2

a) approves the proposed variation to the existing contracts referred to
under paragraph 20 of this report (save for the Healthy Lifestyles
contract referred to Recommendation 1b) ) by way of an extension of
12 months commencing on 1 April 2017;

b) approves the proposed variation to the existing Families First Healthy
Lifestyles contract with the Cardiff and Vale University Health Board:-

i) by way of an extension for a period of 3 months
commencing upon 1 April 2017 in respect of those
elements of the services referred to as 1) the Sex

Page 126 Page 10 of 11



Appendix 1

and Relationship Education project and 2) the
ASSIST (smoking prevention) project;

i) by way of an extension for a period of 12 months
commencing upon 1 April 2017 in respect of the
remaining elements of the services within the said
contract.

c) Delegate authority to the Director of Social Services in consultation with
the Cabinet Member for Early Years Children and Families and the
Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Performance, and Section
151 and Monitoring Officers for all aspects of commissioning the
proposed short term pilot arrangements which may be put in place
during the transition period as further detailed in paragraph 34 of the
report.

2. Recommendation 1 shall be conditional upon the Council securing
written confirmation of grant funding from the Welsh Government at a
level which is sufficient to cover the cost of the proposed variations and
pilot arrangements.

3. To note that it is intended to submit a further report to Cabinet to seek
approval to the proposed model for the longer term arrangements for the
Families First Programme once the final Welsh Government Guidance
and financial information in relation to the new programme has been
received

TONY YOUNG
DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES

17t November 2016

The following appendices are attached:

Appendix A — Cabinet Secretary Decision Paper from Welsh Government
Appendix B — Equality Impact Assessment (Sex and Relationships Education)
Appendix C — Equality Impact Assessment (ASSIST)

Appendix D — Equality Impact Assessment (Sustainable Employment package)
Appendix E — Equality Impact Assessment (remaining programme)

Page 127 Page 11 of 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A: Future development of the Families First programme

Cabinet Secretary’s decision

The Cabinet Secretary has considered advice on the future of the Families First
programme and has come to the following decision:

e The key elements of the JAF, TAFF and disability focus will remain unchanged,
with £3 million per year ring-fenced funding for disability-related services being
retained.

e The focus of the strategic projects commissioned through the programme will be
narrowed to concentrate on the delivery of parenting support and support for
young people.

e There will be a transitionary period of at least six months from 1 April 2017
before these new arrangements are rolled out nationally.

Why has this decision been made?

The Cabinet Secretary has made this decision to ensure the Families First programme
is able to develop services which address identified gaps in service provision for
parents and young people and link the work of the programme clearly with the
prevention of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs).

What does this mean?

Parenting support

Parenting plays a central role in relation to outcomes for children. Good quality
parenting can help promote resilience, positive self-esteem and have a positive
impact on a child’s learning and outcomes and school. Children who grow upina
nurturing environment where parenting is fair, consistent and structured are also
less likely to be exposed to adverse childhood experiences which may detrimentally
affect their physical and mental health over the longer term. These children are also
less likely to bring up their own children in households where ACEs are
commonplace.

A recent mapping exercise has identified gaps in existing provision and all local
authorities will need to consider these when designing and commissioning services.
Current identified gaps in service provision include:

e Universally available parenting groups

e Support for couple relationships

e Support for parents with a learning disability

e Support for adoptive/foster parents/kinship carers
e Support for families affected by a parent in prison
e Support for families following family breakdown

Page 129



Each local authority will be expected to offer services under the following age
related themes:

e Perinatal and support in the early years to age 7

e Support for parents of children in middle childhood aged 7-12

e Support for parents of teenagers

Each of these age-related themes will then need to be underpinned by the following
cross-cutting themes:

e Relationship support

e Early intervention support vulnerable families

e Positive parenting

e Evidence based theories of child development

It may be necessary for local authorities to undertake further assessments to identify
the extent to which these gaps need to be filled in their local area to ensure services
can be commissioned accordingly. The needs of local populations will vary, and there
is no “one size fits all” approach which should be taken so local authorities will still
have a certain degree of flexibility in how they design and commission services, as is
the case currently. However, it will be important for local authorities to ensure, and
be able to demonstrate, they are providing services which fill these identified gaps.

There are some clear benefits to widening the provision of parenting support, these
have been summarised below:

e Families First will be able to enhance existing parenting support to fill the
identified gaps in provision and provide services ranging from universal support
to targeted/specialist interventions.

e The programme will have a sharper focus on ensuring families are confident,
nurturing, resilient and safe. Evaluation evidence tells us that families’
presenting needs most often fall into these categories and recent feedback
indicates this remains a clear need amongst local populations.

e The broad range of parenting support which can be delivered will also be able to
address a variety of other issues, such as:

o low level mental health and emotional health and well-being
o domestic violence support

o support for young carers

o family engagement support

Support for young people

Providing support for young people directly complements the support which will be
provided for parenting and is entirely in keeping with Families First’s whole family
approach to service provision.

Services should be focussed to concentrate on ensuring young people are resilient

and confident and equipped with skills which will help them make a meaningful
contribution to society. This could mean services are developed which will

Page 130



complement those which are proposed for parents, and include interventions for a
range of age groups which promote resilience and positive self-esteem to encourage
long term positive outcomes for all children and young people.

Families First and the prevention of ACEs

Whilst our parenting proposals have clear links with ACE prevention, continuation of
youth provision will provide valuable services which could help to mitigate the
effects of exposure to ACEs for those children and young people who are living in
difficult circumstances. Enhancement of existing services, such as youth clubs,
advocacy, counselling and mentoring services, as well as those which provide access
to work placements and education may help to reduce the acute and long-term
impacts of ACEs on the health and behaviour of young people.

Where local authorities are not currently providing youth services, these services
should be developed alongside new parenting support to ensure young people in the
local area are receiving appropriate support along with their parents.

Services which will no longer be funded through Families First

A simple mapping exercise has been carried out using information contained in the
Families First Delivery Plans 2016-17 and we have identified the following main
services which will be affected as a result of the Cabinet Secretary’s decision:

e Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy
e Worklessness/employability/training

e Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse.
e Childcare services (except créche facilities)

Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy

Many families who enter the programme require some kind of financial advice
however services are available outside of the programme to which families could be
signposted. Organisations such as the Citizen’s Advice Bureau and the Money Advice
Service provide free information and support to families and, whilst it is important
that families know where they can get help, it is not essential for these services to be
provided through Families First.

Worklessness/employability/training

The Families First evaluation reports have made it clear that the programme does
not perform well in terms of helping people seek or gain employment. Families’
presenting needs most often fall into the categories of wellbeing, confidence,
resilience and safety and it is essential for families to address these issues before
they can move on to addressing other challenges such as gaining employment.
We do not, therefore, consider it viable for the programme to continue funding
services such as these.

Page 131



Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse

Some health services, for example, those which promote healthy living or substance
misuse support, could be refined to ensure stronger links with parenting, in the
context of providing a healthy environment for children to thrive. If local authorities
wish to retain any health services which are currently being delivered through the
programme, they will need to be able to demonstrate clear links to parenting, youth
support and ACE prevention.

Childcare (except créche facilities)

Services currently funded by the programme include:
e Assisted childcare places
e Contributions towards the cost of childcare
e Provision of affordable day care
e Creche facilities

We know that creche facilities are particularly useful in helping parents who have no
childcare support access services, such as parenting programmes. We are, therefore,
recommending that the provision of créche facilities be retained where it will
encourage parents to engage with services.

With regard to other childcare services, these were developed prior to other Welsh
Government initiatives which are now available or in development. These include:

e Parents, Childcare and Employment project (PaCE) which provides support
to economically inactive parents into education, training and employment,
where childcare is the main barrier.

e The enhanced early years childcare offer which is aimed at working families
and will subsidise the provision of 20 hours of childcare for three and four
year olds in addition to the 10 hours of early years education which is already
available under the Foundation Phased for 38 weeks of the year.

As these new initiatives are implemented, we would expect to see a reduction in
need for services to be delivered through Families First and so do not consider it
appropriate for childcare services to continue to be funded through the programme.

Transition

We understand that it will take time to move from the current arrangements to
another, and we are proposing a transitionary period of at least six months from 1
April 2017, which will mean the new arrangements will be operating nationally from
1 October 2017 at the earliest. This should allow local authorities sufficient time to
undertake relevant needs assessments and consider how services should be
delivered in each local authority and develop appropriate commissioning
arrangements.

Page 132



Local authorities will be able to decide how they wish to proceed during this
transitionary period. We do, however, recommend they explore whether existing
contracts can be extended during this period which would mean the programme
continuing to operate in its current form for six additional months to allow for a
more effective exit period for families currently receiving support through the
programme.

Next steps

We will welcome your input in a number of key areas as we move towards these
new arrangements and we will be seeking your support over the coming months to
consider the following:

e The development of new guidance

e Suitable data monitoring and performance management arrangements.

Further details on the new arrangements will be available in due course, including
funding arrangements. The Cabinet Secretary is expected to make a formal
announcement on the future of the programme in the autumn.

If you have any immediate queries at this stage, please contact Hannah Williams,
Senior Family Support Policy Manager at hannah.williams@wales.gsi.gov.uk or 029
2082 5677.

The Families First Team

Page 133


mailto:hannah.williams@wales.gsi.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



CARDIFF COUNCIL e
'~

Equality Impact Assessment A\S
Corporate Assessment Template _CARDIEF
CAERDYDD

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title: Sex and Relationships
Education

New/Existing/Updating/Amending: New

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Angela Bourge Job Title: Operational Manager — Strategy,
Performance & Resources
Service Team: Families First Service Area: Social Services

Assessment Date: 10/11/16

1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?

Families First is a Welsh Government-funded initiative which aims to support families,
particularly those living in poverty.

The Sex and Relationships education service within Families First works in schools
across Cardiff offering support to staff and pupils in delivery of high quality sex and
relationship advice. This assessment considers the impact of ceasing funding to the SRE
service in March 2017 in line with the direction of travel outlined by Welsh
Government.

The early indications outlined within the Cabinet Secretary’s decision paper highlights
that certain elements of the programme will no longer be supported by the Families
First Grant, namely;

e Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy

e Worklessness/employability/training

e Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse.

e Childcare services (except créche facilities)

Due to this indication regarding the future of the programme, the proposal is to cease
funding for those projects and/or programmes that fall under the categories that
Welsh Government have indicated will no longer be supported in the future. Welsh
Government have highlighted that health related projects must have a clear link to
parenting or the prevention of Adverse Childhood Experiences if they are to remain
within the Families First portfolio.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 1

Page 135



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

2. Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done
[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done
etc.]

The Healthy Lifestyles package currently offers a project entitled Sex and Relationships
Education which supports the delivery of sex and relationships education in primary
and secondary schools, colleges and training providers.

During 2015/16, 13 schools, colleges and training providers in Cardiff received training,
with 1404 children and young people attending lessons. Of these 1191 individuals felt
their knowledge had increased in relation to Sex and Relationship Education, and 1187
felt more confident in accessing sexual health provision.

Whilst SRE is seen as a key priority for young people it is not felt that the remit of the
programme fits with Families First grant funding. The Education Act 2002 requires
secondary school to provide sex education as part of the ‘basic curriculum’. Whilst the
programme has delivered successes, it is not seen as appropriate that such
programmes should rely on grant funding rather than be built into school processes.
Although this project has provided added value, Families First funding should not be
used for anything which is a statutory requirement.

Public Health Wales Healthy Schools programme contains 7 key topics, one of which is
relationships. This service offers schools a Toolkit and lesson plans to purchase or loan.
The role of the SRE service has been to provide mentoring and support for this
programme.

Cardiff Council’s Healthy Schools coordinator has highlighted that between April 2015 —
March 2016:

e 18 Schools borrowed Healthy Schools SRE resources:

e 11 schools borrowed the toolkit

e 7 Schools purchased the toolkit

The SRE service has provided additional information or support to supplement this,
should schools need it. The schools wishing to have this additional support will no
longer receive it via this route and as such it will need to be picked up in other ways.
For instance, some schools already purchase external support for SRE from other
providers.

It is proposed that the Sexual Health Outreach Team (Shot) and C-Card scheme will
continue to operate from within Families First, embedded within the provision of Youth
Support. If approved, these schemes will continue to be available for young people
who need additional support or advice in relation to sex and relationships.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 2

Page 136



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

3 Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics
3.1 Age

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No | N/A
Up to 18 years Negative
18 - 65 years Negative
Over 65 years X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The loss of SRE education within the current settings would impact on those currently
receiving the service, young people under the age of 25 in education and training
settings.

Healthy Schools feel that the loss of this service would have a negative impact in terms
of the quality and consistency of what is delivered by schools in relation to this subject
area leading to lack of confidence in teachers as well as a lower standard of delivery to
young people in schools.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

Meetings and engagement have been held with both Public Health Wales and Healthy
Schools coordinators. Whilst the service is currently delivered through Families First
Funding this is not the case across the city or across Wales. As such, the central team
will work with existing providers to identify how to ensure that those schools that had
previously used this service will be able to access ongoing support.

Much of this work would be picked up as part of Healthy Schools and the general
duties relating to SRE/PSE education within schools: ensuring quality delivery of SRE is
the responsibility of schools and inspected by Estyn. Schools and training providers will
also be able to refer into the SHOT/C-Card scheme where necessary.

3.2 Disability
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on disabled people?

Yes No | N/A
Hearing Impairment X
Physical Impairment X
Visual Impairment X
Learning Disability X
| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 3

Page 137



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Long-Standing Iliness or Health Condition

Mental Health

Substance Misuse

X | X | XX

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact relating to these characteristics.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.3 Gender Reassignment
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on transgender people?

Yes No | N/A

Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have
undergone a process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex
by changing physiological or other attributes of sex)

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on transgender people.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?

Yes | No N/A

Marriage X

Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on marriage and civil partnership

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 4

Page 138



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.5 Pregnancy and Maternity
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?

Yes | No N/A
Pregnancy X
Maternity X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting

evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on pregnancy and maternity

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.6 Race
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A
White X
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups X
Asian / Asian British X
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British X
Other Ethnic Groups X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting

evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on race

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones

Page 5

Page 139



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes | No N/A

Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Humanist

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

X [X | X | X [ X | X | X [X

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on religion

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.8 Sex
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes | No N/A

Men X

Women X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact on sex

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.9 Sexual Orientation
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 6

Page 140



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Yes | No N/A

Bisexual
Gay Men
Gay Women/Lesbians
Heterosexual/Straight

X | X | X [ X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.
There is not expected to be a differential impact on sexual orientation.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.10 Welsh Language
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes | No N/A
Welsh Language X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.
There is not expected to be a differential impact on Welsh Language

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

4. Consultation and Engagement
What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities
Groups?

Consultation has been held with the Lead Provider for the Healthy Lifestyles package
who has shared this information with key partners in Health. The proposal has been
shared with the Steering Group for Early Years and Healthy Lifestyles for comment.

Partners in Education have been made aware of the consideration to remove this
funding and have been given an opportunity to comment.

Stakeholder Engagement sessions have been held advising of the change in focus for
the Families First programme, away from Health focussed projects.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 7

Page 141



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment

Corporate Assessment Template

5. Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]
Groups Actions
Age Much of this work would be picked up as part of Healthy

Schools and general SRE/PSE education, with the ability for
providers to refer into the SHOT/C-Card scheme where
necessary.

Disability

Gender Reassignment

Marriage & Civil
Partnership

Pregnancy & Maternity

Race

Religion/Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language

Generic Over-Arching
[applicable to all the
above groups]

The 2002 Education Act highlights that high quality Sex and
Relationship Education should be delivered as part of a
standard curriculum within schools. The responsibility for
delivery in this area is a priority for Education and Public
Health.

Much of the work that would be included within the SRE
package will be expected to be picked up via Healthy
Schools and general SRE/PSE education. The continuation of
the Sexual Health Outreach Team (SHOT) and C-Card also
ensures provision is available for those most at risk.

6. Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality
Impact Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your
Service Area’s Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

7. Authorisation

The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each

Service Area.

Completed By : Dr Ceri George

Date: 10-11-16

Partnerships

Designation: Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and

Approved By: Angela Bourge

| 4.c.400 | Issue 1

| Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones

Authorised: Rachel Jones

Page 142

Page 8



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Designation: Operational Manager — Strategy, Performance &
Resources

Service Area: Social Services

7.1 On completion of this Assessment, please ensure that the Form is posted on
your Directorate’s Page on CIS - Council Wide/Management Systems/Equality
Impact Assessments - so that there is a record of all assessments undertaken
in the Council.

For further information or assistance, please contact the Citizen Focus Team on 029
2087 3059 or email citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 9

Page 143


mailto:citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



CARDIFF COUNCIL e
'~

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

DN

CARDIFF

CAERDYDD

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title: ASSIST

New/Existing/Updating/Amending: New

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Angela Bourge Job Title: Operational Manager — Strategy,
Performance & Resources
Service Team: Families First Service Area: Social Services

Assessment Date: 8/11/16

1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?

Families First is a Welsh Government Funded initiative which aims to support families,
particularly those living in poverty.

With the current Families First programme due to finish in March 2017, this proposal
relates to how the programme will move forward into 2017/18. Initial statements
released by Welsh Government highlight a number of areas will not be funded through
the Families First grant in the future.

The Healthy Lifestyles package of care currently includes the ASSIST/JustB programme,
a smoking prevention service which is being considered as an area that should no
longer funded through the Families First Grant given the new focus of the programme.
Welsh Government have highlighted that health related projects must have a clear link
to parenting or the prevention of Adverse Childhood Experiences if they are to remain
within the Families First portfolio. In relation to smoking prevention there is not a
robust argument to sustain this funding in the future.

2. Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done
[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done
etc.]

The Healthy Lifestyles package currently offers a project entitled ASSIST/JustB which
aims to reduce and prevent smoking in young people through a school based
programme that trains young people to work as ‘peer supporters’. During 2015/16 9
schools took part in the scheme with 318 pupils being trained as peer supporters. All
participating schools stated that the project had a positive impact on behaviour and
293 pupils trained felt their knowledge and understanding had increased.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 1

Page 145



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Whilst smoking prevention and cessation is vital in ensuring the health of young people
it is not felt that such programmes should fall within the Families First programme
given guidance received from Welsh Government. Smoking cessation and prevention is
generally delivered as a Public Health concern.

It is recommended that young people involved in the programme as peer supporters
be referred into similar initiatives within Public Health Wales to deliver ongoing
support such as the Smoke Free Schools programme and other peer mentoring
schemes led by Public Health Wales. SmokeFree Schools aims to take a whole school
approach to tobacco control as well as supporting a peer influence model as used in
the ASSIST/JustB programme to date. SmokeBugs is also delivered by the Healthy
Schools programme, offering kits to be loaned out and with additional support for
teachers.

3 Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics

3.1 Age
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No | N/A
Up to 18 years Negative
18 - 65 years X
Over 65 years X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The loss of ASSIST/JustB within the current settings would result in the 9 participating
schools without the service. The participating group would fall mainly into the 0-18
category who would suffer a loss of service

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

Referral of those needing sustained service involvement into other programmes.
Other forms of preventative work such as Healthy Schools and National Campaigns
could pick up the majority of this work.

Project will be asked to provide an exit strategy.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 2

Page 146



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

3.2 Disability
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on disabled people?

Yes No | N/A

Hearing Impairment

Physical Impairment

Visual Impairment

Learning Disability

Long-Standing Iliness or Health Condition

Mental Health

Substance Misuse

XX |[X|X[X[X|X|X

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group as aimed primarily at secondary schools as a preventative measure.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.3 Gender Reassignment
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on transgender people?

Yes No | N/A

Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have
undergone a process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex
by changing physiological or other attributes of sex)

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 3

Page 147



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?

Yes | No N/A
Marriage X
Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.5 Pregnancy and Maternity
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?

Yes | No N/A
Pregnancy X
Maternity X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.6 Race
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A
White X
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups X
Asian / Asian British X
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British X
Other Ethnic Groups X
| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 4

Page 148



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes | No N/A

Buddhist
Christian
Hindu
Humanist
Jewish
Muslim
Sikh
Other

X [ X | X [ X [ X | X | X [X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.8 Sex
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes | No N/A
Men X
Women X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 5

Page 149



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.9 Sexual Orientation
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A

Bisexual

Gay Men

Gay Women/Lesbians

X [ X | X | X

Heterosexual/Straight

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact on any members of
this group.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.10 Welsh Language
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes | No N/A

Welsh Language X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is not expected that this proposal will have a differential impact in relation to Welsh
Language.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 6

Page 150



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

4. Consultation and Engagement
What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities
Groups?

Consultation has been held with the Lead Provider for the Healthy Lifestyles package
who has shared this information with key partners in Health. The proposal has been
shared with the Steering Group for Early Years and Healthy Lifestyles for comment.
Partners in Education have been made aware of the consideration to remove this
funding and have been given an opportunity to respond.

Stakeholder Engagement sessions have been held advising of the change in focus for
the Families First programme, away from Health focussed projects.

5. Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]
Groups Actions
Age Preventative work such as Healthy Schools, PSE and

National Campaign work will be required to pick up service
lost in this area.

Disability

Gender Reassignment

Marriage & Civil
Partnership

Pregnancy & Maternity

Race

Religion/Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language

Generic Over-Arching Schools will already be involved in the Healthy Schools

[applicable to all the scheme which will pick up much of this work. The Smoke

above groups] Free Schools programme and other peer mentoring
schemes should be used to divert those currently using the
service.

6. Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality
Impact Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your
Service Area’s Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 7

Page 151



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

7.  Authorisation

The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each
Service Area.

Completed By : Dr Ceri George Date: 10-11-16

Designation: Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and
Partnerships

Approved By: Angela Bourge

Designation: Operational Manager — Strategy, Performance &
Resources

Service Area: Social Services

7.1 On completion of this Assessment, please ensure that the Form is posted on
your Directorate’s Page on CIS - Council Wide/Management Systems/Equality
Impact Assessments - so that there is a record of all assessments undertaken
in the Council.

For further information or assistance, please contact the Citizen Focus Team on 029
2087 3059 or email citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 8

Page 152


mailto:citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

CARDIFF COUNCIL e
'~

Equality Impact Assessment

e

\

Corporate Assessment Template _CARDIEF
CAERDYDD

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title: Families First: Sustainable
Employment

New/Existing/Updating/Amending: New

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Angela Bourge Job Title: Operational Manager — Strategy,
Performance & Resources
Service Team: Families First Service Area: Social Services

Assessment Date: 07/11/2016

1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?

Families First is a Welsh Government Funded initiative which aims to support families,
particularly those living in poverty.

With the current programme due to finish in March 2017, this proposal relates to how
the programme will move forward into 2017/18 in light of early indications from Welsh
Government on how the future programme will look.

The early indications outlined within the Cabinet Secretary’s decision paper highlights
that certain elements of the programme will no longer be supported by the Families
First Grant, namely;

e Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy
e Worklessness/employability/training

e Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse.
e Childcare services (except créche facilities)

The Sustainable Employment package currently delivered under Families First provides
employment and training support to parents across the Cardiff area. With Welsh
Government advising this type of programme will not be supported in the future, the
proposal is to cease funding for Sustainable Employment at the end of the 2016/17
financial year.

2. Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done
[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done
etc.]

4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 1

Page 153



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

The Sustainable Employment Service provides intensive mentoring for unemployed
adults in families within the Tackling Poverty agenda. They assess individuals to identify
needs and barriers to employment, offering 1-1 support to address these and build
resilience. The service operates across Cardiff and is funded 100% through the Families
First grant.

In 2015/16 Sustainable Employment supported 292 individuals with 117 of these
securing employment. Sova successfully provided 33% employment outcomes in
2015/16 and are on target to achieve the same in 2016/17 with an average participants
journey being 4.6 months.

Whilst the service has successfully met its targets it no longer fits with the direction of
travel outlined by Welsh Government. The National Evaluation of Families First
highlighted that workstreams aimed at worklessness/employability and training did not
perform well with families presenting needs that were more around confidence,
resilience and safety prior to considering employment. The new directions for Families
First also emphasise the particular contribution that Families First should make. Welsh
Government will continue to support other, specialised initiatives in relation to
worklessness and employment and concludes that delivery within the context of
Families First is no longer viable.

Sustainable Employment is available to those across Cardiff, and is not bound by
geographical limitations within the city. Service users accessing or wishing to access
support will be signposted to similar programmes within other Welsh Government
work programmes such as LIFT and Communities 4 Work as well as other projects
within Families First aimed at building confidence.

An exit strategy is being considered by the existing providers to ensure service users to
not experience a sudden loss of service.

3 Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics

3.1 Age
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No | N/A
Up to 18 years X
18 - 65 years X
Over 65 years X
4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 2

Page 154



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The vast majority of service participants fall into the 18 — 65 year bracket (i.e. working
age) and although there are other employability services available to them they have
chosen to engage with Sova.

The graph below, taken from the analysis of Anonymised data produced by Cardiff
Council for the financial year 2015/16, highlights that the majority of service users
accessing the project fall within the 18-65 years age bracket.

Figure 13 - Distribution of SOVA service Users by Age & Gender

25.0% -
19.5%
20.0% - 18.1% E = Male
o 17.1%
g W Female
S
2 15.0% -
°
0,
s 10.5%
& 10.0%
E 5.6% £ 99 5.9%
Q
5-096 1 2.80 2.80 2I4° 2I4° l 7;.5%
0.3%3% o ok0” 0.7 '

:

0-15 16-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50+

Age Of service User

The decommissioning of this service would result in these service users not receiving a
service.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

As the project will be ceasing in March 2017 Sova will be ceasing to take new referrals
from January 2017 and will be focussing their resources in 2 ways.

Participants who are furthest away from the employment market and unlikely to
achieve outcomes before the closure of the project will be identified and referred to
other services, ensuring there is a full handover of the support they have received and
their goals and aspirations to the receiving project.

Participants who are closer to achieving outcomes will receive increased support as the
caseload diminishes in an endeavour to achieve employment goals. During March 2017
those that have not will receive the support to transition to alternative support.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 3

Page 155



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

3.2 Disability
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on disabled people?

Yes No | N/A

Hearing Impairment

Physical Impairment

Visual Impairment

Learning Disability

Long-Standing Iliness or Health Condition

Mental Health

Substance Misuse

X [ X [ X [X [X [X [X [X

Other

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

No significant differential impact, using information gathered from the anonymised
data report the service has worked primarily with those who do not class themselves
as disabled and as such is not expected to have a differential impact on disability.

Response Number %
Disabled Child 17 5.7
Disabled Adult 15 5
Not Disabled 267 89.3
Total Service users 299

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.3 Gender Reassignment
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on transgender people?

Yes No | N/A

Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have
undergone a process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex
by changing physiological or other attributes of sex)

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 4

Page 156



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.
The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on gender reassignment.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?

Yes | No N/A
Marriage X
Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on marriage and civil
partnership as it is open to all parents across the Cardiff area.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

35 Pregnancy and Maternity
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?

Yes | No N/A
Pregnhancy X
Maternity X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on pregnancy or maternity.
However, due to the nature of the service Sova have engaged a high percentage of
parents (female participants) who have been seeking to return to work after a
significant period of unemployment due to having children and therefore they may be
disproportionately impacted by the closure of this project.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 5

Page 157



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?
Sova have agreed to identify appropriate referral routes dependent on the needs of all
participants.

3.6 Race
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A

White

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups

Asian / Asian British

Black / African / Caribbean / Black British
Other Ethnic Groups

X [X | X | X [X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

Although not specifically targeting BAME communities Sova have a disproportionate
number of participants from a variety of different cultural backgrounds.

This may be due to the manner in which the Sova service is delivered or that there are
no specifically targeted projects for this client group. This could potentially lead to
disengagement and further social exclusion.

The table below outlines the breakdown of service users by ethnicity who used the
service in 2015/16.

Ethnicity Total Ethnicity Total
White British/Northern Irish? 167 Asian British Indian 5
Black British African 33 Asian British Pakistani 4
Asian British Other 10 Mixed Other 3
Other White 10 Black British Caribbean 2
Mixed White and Black Caribbean 8 Black British Other 2
Other 6 Mixed White and Black 1
African

Asian British Bangladeshi 5 Total 257

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

Sova are due to receive business plan approval from WEFO to access ESF funds and

launch a project specifically for BAME and migrant individuals in the area.

1 Note that this sub-category includes White British, White Welsh, White Scottish, White English, and

White Northern Irish.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 6

Page 158



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Sova have already commenced this activity in the 17 local authorities that make up the
West Wales & Valleys region and hope to be commencing the East Wales aspect of the
project in early 2017.

Sova will be procuring subcontractors to provide activities in Cardiff (The Vale,
Newport & Monmouthshire) and will be in a position to publicise this new service to
BAME & migrant participants before the end of the CFF activity even if a direct referral
route cannot be opened at the time. We will also (in agreement with participants) pass
contact details onto the subcontractor for them to offer support directly.

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes | No N/A

Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Humanist

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

X | X | X [ X [ X | X | X [X

Other

X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on religion, belief or non-
belief.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.8 Sex
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes | No N/A

Men X
Women X
4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 7

Page 159



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

It is possible that the proposal will have some differential impact on gender. Although
the service is available to males and females, female referrals (234) significantly
outnumbered male referrals (53) during the last year. As noted above, the project has
provided support for women wanting to return to work after having a family.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

Sova will identify appropriate referral routes dependent on the needs of all
participants.

3.9 Sexual Orientation
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A

Bisexual

Gay Men

Gay Women/Lesbians

X | X | X [ X

Heterosexual/Straight

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on sexual orientation

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.10 Welsh Language
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes | No N/A

Welsh Language X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The proposal is not expected to have a differential impact on Welsh Language.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 8

Page 160



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment

Corporate Assessment Template

4. Consultation and Engagement
What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities

Groups?

Initial consultation has been undertaken with the provider, SOVA.

Stakeholder Engagement has been carried out across Cardiff highlighting the changes
outlined in the initial indications from Welsh Government inclusive of the reduction of
funding for Employment based packages.

This information has been shared with Families First Providers, Communities First
areas, members of the C3SC network and Elected Members.

5. Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]
Groups Actions
Age As the project will be ceasing in March 2017 Sova will be

ceasing to take new referrals from January 2017 and will be
focussing their resources in 2 ways.

Participants who are furthest away from the employment
market and unlikely to achieve outcomes before the closure
of the project will be identified and referred to other
services, ensuring there is a full handover of the support
they have received and their goals and aspirations to the
receiving project.

Participants who are closer to achieving outcomes will
receive increased support as the caseload diminishes in an
endeavour to achieve employment goals. During March
2017 those that have not will receive the support to
transition to alternative support

Disability

Gender Reassignment

Marriage & Civil
Partnership

Pregnancy & Maternity

Sova will identify appropriate referral routes dependent on
the needs of all participants.

Race Sova are due to receive business plan approval from WEFO
to access ESF funds and launch a project specifically for
4.C.400 Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 9

Page 161



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

BAME and migrant individuals in the area.

Sova have already commences this activity in the 17 local
authorities that make up the West Wales & Valleys region
and hope to be commencing the East Wales aspect of the
project in early 2017.

Sova will be procuring subcontractors to provide activities in
Cardiff (The Vale, Newport & Monmouthshire) and will be in
a position to publicise this new service to BAME & migrant
participants before the end of the CFF activity even if a
direct referral route cannot be opened at the time. We will
also (in agreement with participants) pass contact details
onto the subcontractor for them to offer support directly.

Religion/Belief

Sex Sova will identify appropriate referral routes dependent on
the needs of all participants.

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language

Generic Over-Arching Sova have agreed to identify appropriate referral routes
[applicable to all the dependent on the needs of all participants
above groups]

6. Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality
Impact Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your
Service Area’s Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

7.  Authorisation

The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each
Service Area.

Completed By : Dr Ceri George Date:10-11-16

Designation: Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and Partnerships

Approved By: Angela Bourge

Designation: Operational Manager — Strategy, Performance & Resources

Service Area: Social Services

7.1 On completion of this Assessment, please ensure that the Form is posted on
your Directorate’s Page on CIS - Council Wide/Management Systems/Equality
Impact Assessments - so that there is a record of all assessments undertaken
in the Council.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 10

Page 162




CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

For further information or assistance, please contact the Citizen Focus Team on 029
2087 3059 or email citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 11

Page 163


mailto:citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



CARDIFF COUNCIL N\

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

=
¢

Ry

CARDIFF

CAERDYDD

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title: Families First

New/Existing/Updating/Amending:

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function?

Name: Angela Bourge Job Title: Operational Manager — Strategy,
Performance & Resources

Service Team: Families First Service Area: Social Services

Assessment Date: 15/11/16

1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/
Service/Function?

The current Families First programme is due to finish in March 2017. This EIA relates to how
Cardiff will respond to a proposed new programme into 2017/18 in light of early indications
from Welsh Government on how the future programme will be shaped.

Welsh Government have highlighted a transitionary period is likely until at least October whilst
local authorities prepare for commissioning in line with the new guidance.

Whilst the decision paper released by Welsh Government in August 2016 advises that there
will be a future Families First programme, the early indications outlined within the Cabinet
Secretary’s decision paper highlights that certain elements of the programme will no longer be
supported with funding by the Families First Grant, namely:

e Debt/benefit advice/income maximisation/financial literacy

e Worklessness/employability/training

e Some health services, e.g. sexual health, substance misuse.

e Childcare services (except creche facilities)

Due to this, the proposal is to cease funding for those projects and/or programmes that fall
under the categories that Welsh Government have indicated will not be supported in the
future when current contracts come to an end in March 2017.

The projects and/or programmes that are intended not to continue funding beyond March
2017 are:
e the Sex and Relationships Education Service and Assist which fall under Healthy
Lifestyles, and
e the Sustainable Employment package,

We anticipate that the removal of funding for these packages has the potential to result in

negative impact for some protected characteristic groups and as a result, separate Equalities
Impact Assessments have been completed in relation to these individual services.

This Assessment relates to the future proposed remaining Families First programme.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 1

Page 165



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

2. Please provide background information on the
Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done
[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done
etc.]

Families First is a Welsh Government funded programme, which aims to provide more effective early
intervention support for families as part of the Anti-Poverty Agenda. The programme commenced in 2012.

In Cardiff there are 6 commissioned packages of services, namely;
e Early Years — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board
e Child and Youth Engagement — led by City of Cardiff Education Services
e Sustainable Employment — led by Sova
e Healthy Lifestyles — led by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board
e Emotional and Mental Health and Wellbeing — led by Barnardo’s
e Disability Focus — led by Action for Children

These services are underpinned by another service, the Team Around the Family, which is delivered by Tros
Gynnal Plant.

The below table is taken from the Anonymised Data report for 2015/16. The anonymised data report contains
data on fewer service users than the entirety of those worked with across Families First due to data quality and
collection. Whilst it does not relate to all service users it highlights the split of service users across each of the
themed service packages.

Name of Package No. of service % of service % of programme's
user records user records service funding
allocated to
package

1. Child & Youth Engagement 4,480 44.0 28.8

2. Early Years 1,631 16.0 15.4

3. Team around the Family 1,505 14.8 9.4

3. Emotional Health and Wellbeing 1,315 12.9 22.2

4. Disability Focus 780 7.7 7.7

6. Sustainable Employment 303 3.9 5.7

7. Healthy Lifestyles 170 1.7 10.8
Total 10,184

The proposal is to sustain the remainder of the programme for an interim 12 months whilst new commissioning
arrangements are put in place. This will serve the purpose of providing continuity of service for families during
this transitionary period, with minimum disruption on families and interdependent services such as Education
and Social Services, amongst others.

Referrers into the Families First programme are outlined below. Sustaining the programme in its current format
for an additional 12 months will ensure continuity of service for these referrers.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 2

Page 166



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Source of referral Total Source of referral Total Source of referral Tot
al

Schools and other Other primary care

education services 3744 services 158 Job Centre Plus 35
Self-referral 2883 Housing services 89 STAR Communities First 23

TAF (Team Around the
Third Sector 875 GPs 88 Family) 18
Child and adolescent

Health visitors 734 mental health services 85 Communities 4 Work 12
Children’s social services 628 JCP Alexandra House 66 Gingerbread 11
other 293 Police 63 ACE Communities First 10
Other employment 100
support services 183 JCP Charles Street 57 Total 55

During 2015/16 the Families First programme provided services to 22,681 individuals, with 97% of participants
reporting that they were satisfied with their service and 87.6% completing the intervention for which they were
referred.

Unlike other Welsh Government funded programmes, Families First covers the whole of Cardiff, the below table
highlights where participants come from, illustrating that the programme provides benefits across the city.

Neighbourhood 2014-15 2015-16 PP Difference

Partnership Area (Base = 9,585) (Base = 9,834) Base Diff = 249
City and Cardiff South 12.9% 12.6% -0.3
Cardiff South West 28.6% 25.9% -2.7
Cardiff West 12.5% 10.8% 1.7
Cardiff North 12.5% 14.4% 1.9
Cardiff East 17.8% 18.8% 1.0
Cardiff South East 15.7% 17.5% 1.8

3 Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics

3.1 Age

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative/] on younger/older people?

Yes No | N/A
Up to 18 years Positive
18 - 65 years Positive
Over 65 years

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 3

Page 167



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The extension of the current project, with those exceptions outlined in other Equality
Impact Assessments, will have a positive impact on those that have used the programme,
ensuring continuity of service whilst new arrangements are put into place.

The below table highlights the main age ranges covered by the Families First programme.

18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%

8.0%

6.0%

% of service users

4.0%

2.0%

Figure 5 - Distibution of All Package service users by age and gender

16.3%

14.4%

12.7%
11.4%

8.9%

5.9%
5.4%
4.4y 47% 4.8%

3.3%
2.6%

0.7%

4.6%

Oyrto4yrs Syrsto 8yrs 9yrsto 1llyrs 12yrsto 16 17yrsto2lyrs 22yrsto 25 Over 25yrs
yrs yrs

H Female ®Male

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.2 Disability

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential

impact [positive/negative] on disabled people?

Yes No | N/A

Hearing Impairment Positive

Physical Impairment Positive

Visual Impairment Positive

Learning Disability Positive

Long-Standing lliness or Health Condition Positive

Mental Health Positive

Substance Misuse n/a
Other

| 4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 4

Page 168




CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

Welsh Government have committed to continuation of the ring-fenced funding for
services and support for families with a disabled child. As such the proposal to sustain
funding for an additional 12 months will result in those families and individuals
receiving support, sustaining this at the same level.

Whilst data is not held on individual disabilities, the table below, which is taken from
the Anonymised data report, highlights the numbers of those affected by a disability
who have accessed Families First services. This may not include all service user
numbers, for example those who only contact looking for advice.

Response Number %
Disabled Child 929 9.6
Disabled Adult 293 3.0
Not Disabled 8,539 87.8
Total Service users 9,729

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.3 Gender Reassignment
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on transgender people?

Yes No | N/A

Transgender People X
(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have
undergone a process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex
by changing physiological or other attributes of sex)

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not an expected differential impact on transgender people.

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 5

Page 169



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership?

Yes | No N/A
Marriage X
Civil Partnership X

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not seen to be a differential impact in relation to marriage and civil
partnership as services across the programme are open to both married people and
those in civil partnerships, or single people.

Sustaining the current programme will ensure continuity for those that do access the
programme. Whilst there is no evidence collated via anonymised data, many of the
services on offer would be additional support for parents, whether they are single,
living together, married or in civil partnerships. As such, sustaining service provision
will ensure support is continued.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.5 Pregnancy and Maternity
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?

Yes No N/A
Pregnancy Positive
Maternity Positive

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The programme contains services providing targeted support for pregnant women and
women who have just given birth. Sustaining service will have a positive impact on
those who may suffer a loss in service if funding was lost.

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 6

Page 170



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.6 Race
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes No N/A
White X
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups Positive
Asian / Asian British Positive
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British Positive
Other Ethnic Groups Positive

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

The majority of services within the Families First programme are available to all
residents of Cardiff. The table below highlights the take up of service broken down by
ethnicity.

Ethnicity Total Ethnicity Total
White British* 6,639 Arab 140
White Other 440 Black British Other 101
Other? 372 Mixed White and Black African 90
Asian British Other 284 Asian British Bangladeshi 83
Black British African 270 Black British Caribbean 74
Mixed Other 265 Asian British Chinese 65
Asian British Indian 158 Mixed Multiple ethnic Groups 24
Asian British Pakistani 152 Gypsy/Romany/Traveller 19
Mixed White and Black 144 Total 9,320
Caribbean

However, there are also a small number of projects that provide additional targeted
support for families from other ethnic groups, including:
e Educational Support for EU Roma pupils
e Learning Together project, which works with parents who speak other home
languages to support their children in school

1 Note that this sub-category includes White British, White Welsh, White Scottish, White English, and
White Northern Irish.

2 Note that the ‘Other’ sub-category comprising all ethnic groups classed as other and 14 ethnicities
that reported 10 or fewer service users (below 0.1%)

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones | Page 7

Page 171



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

e An asylum seeker and refugee project

The continuation of these services will have a positive differential impact on the
families concerned.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential

impact [positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?

Yes No

N/A

Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Humanist

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Other

XX [X|X[X|X|[X]|X

evidence, if any.

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting

belief.

There is not expected to be a differential impact in the basis of religion, belief or non-

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.8 Sex
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on men and/or women?

Yes No N/A
Men X
Women positive
| 4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 8

Page 172



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

Whilst the programme is open to males and females, the anonymised data provides
evidence that more females than males access services across the whole programme
and significantly outnumber males in the 25+ age group: females in this age group
make up 16.3% of total service users while males make up only 4.6% (see graph
provided in 3.1 above). A small number of services within Families First are primarily
targeted at females, where this is linked to pregnancy and maternity. For this reason,
sustaining provision will have a positive differential impact in ensuring continuity of
service provision.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.9 Sexual Orientation
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?

Yes | No N/A

Bisexual

Gay Men

Gay Women/Lesbians

X | X | X [ X

Heterosexual/Straight

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

There is not expected to be a differential impact in relation to sexual orientation.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

3.10 Welsh Language
Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential
impact [positive/negative] on Welsh Language?

Yes No N/A
Welsh Language Positive
4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 9

Page 173



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting
evidence, if any.

Two projects within Families First are delivered through the medium of Welsh, and are
specifically designed to promote use of Welsh language in families. For this reason,
maintaining the services is likely to have a positive differential impact.

In relation to the wider programme, in 2015/16 only 2% of participants requested
services to be delivered in Welsh. However, providers are required to ensure that they
ask families what language they wish to receive the service in and to respond to their
language needs.

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact?

4. Consultation and Engagement
What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities
Groups?

Consultation has been held with the Lead Providers via initial stakeholder engagement
sessions and dialogue regarding the future directions of Families First. They have been
informed about plans for extending contracts for the majority of services. They have
also been offered the opportunity to provide information about potential impact on
service users of the plans.

Wider Stakeholder Engagement sessions have also been held advising of the change in
focus for the Families First programme. These have explored what has worked and
what has not worked so well with the aim of informing the next round of
commissioning.

Plans will be developed for the next round of commissioning during the transition year.
The proposals for changes made in services for the next programme will be the subject
of further stakeholder engagement and further ElAs.

5. Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above]
Groups Actions

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment

| 4.C.400 | Issue 1 | Nov 11 | Process Owner: Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 10

Page 174



CARDIFF COUNCIL

Equality Impact Assessment
Corporate Assessment Template

Marriage & Civil
Partnership

Pregnancy & Maternity

Race

Religion/Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language

Generic Over-Arching Whilst this Equalities Impact Assessment relates to the
[applicable to all the whole programme, there are elements which have been
above groups] recommended not to continue beyond March 2017. For

these elements separate EIAs have been completed and
mitigating actions have been identified.

6. Further Action

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality
Impact Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your
Service Area’s Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.

7.  Authorisation

The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified
Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each
Service Area.

Completed By : Dr Ceri George Date: 15-11-16

Designation: Improvement Project Manager — Prevention and
Partnerships

Approved By: Angela Bourge

Designation: Operational Manager — Strategy, Performance &
Resources

Service Area: Social Services

7.1 On completion of this Assessment, please ensure that the Form is posted on
your Directorate’s Page on CIS - Council Wide/Management Systems/Equality
Impact Assessments - so that there is a record of all assessments undertaken
in the Council.

For further information or assistance, please contact the Citizen Focus Team on 029
2087 3059 or email citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner: Rachel Jones | Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 11

Page 175


mailto:citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

CITY AND COUNTY CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6 DECEMBER 2016

CHILDREN’S SERVICES PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT INFORMATION:
QUARTER 2, 2016/17

REASON FOR THE REPORT

1.

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising
the performance of Children’s (social) Services. This report sets out performance
data outlining progress against the objectives aligned to the social theme for the
quarter ending 30t September 2016.

BACKGROUND

Revised Corporate Performance Reports

2.

The January 2016 ‘Wales Audit Office (WAO) Corporate Assessment Follow On
Report’ stressed the importance of the Council building on its capacity and
mechanisms for internal challenge and self assessment.

In response to the “‘WAOQO Corporate Assessment Follow On Report’ the Council
acknowledged that there is a need for more consistency around performance
management and benchmarking. The Council is of the view that the framework and
mechanisms for effective performance management and reporting have been in
place for a while; however, there is scope for further improvement — particularly in
terms of the scope for strengthening the relationship between the Central
Performance Team and Service Directorates.

To drive further improvement the Council recruited a new Head of Performance &
Partnerships in early 2016. Since his appointment he has been given the task of
refreshing the Council’s performance management approach and as a consequence
of this work, the Delivery & Performance Reports for 2016/17 are now presented in a
different format to the one which was presented for 2015/16. The new report is
designed to tie in with the Council’s new integrated strategic planning framework.

The Council’s integrated strategic planning framework to deliver its vision of Cardiff
as ‘Europe’s most liveable Capital City’ spans the City’s overall performance (via the
What Matters Single Integrated Plan and Liveable City Report); Council performance
via the Corporate Plan; Directorate performance via Directorate Delivery Plans;
through to individual performance via Personal Performance and Development
Reviews.

Page 177 1



It is accepted that final reports for Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees should always
contain confirmed information; however, it is felt that the reports that are used by
Senior Management Team can contain draft performance information, provided it is
flagged as such.

In light of recommendations made in the WAQO’s latest report, the Framework element
of the Performance Management Strategy has been updated to include guidance
around timelines that support current processes. The most significant aspect of this
refresh will be embedding it into the organisation’s culture. However, ensuring that
the Council’'s Performance Management Strategy is acknowledged, understood and
used will require the Central Performance Team to engage and work proactively with
service managers and performance leads.

This Corporate Performance Report is still under development and further minor
changes may be implemented as each quarters report is produced.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE QUARTER 2

9.

10.

11.

12.

The Council’'s Performance Management Framework includes the regular reporting of
Quarterly Performance by Directorate. The Quarter 2 Social Services Performance
reports, attached at Appendix A, and covers:

Council Overview Score Card
Directorate Performance reports

o Progress against performance indicators
Corporate Plan Priorities
Directorate Priorities
Key Challenges faced by Directorate
Key achievements

o O O O

The report provides the Committee with information on the Directorate commitments
as set out in the delivery plans together with the progress, issues and mitigating
actions that the Directorate has undertaken to ensure that the Quarter 2
commitments are achieved. Overall progress is highlighted through the use of the
red/amber/green status format.

The ongoing development of the Cardiff Performance Management Framework has
brought into line the monitoring and evaluation of progress against the key objectives
as set out in the Corporate Plan and the performance indicators set to assist in the
understanding of the overall performance position of the Council. This range of
performance data relating to Children’s Services is contained in Appendix B to this
report.

The performance report attached at Appendix B has been constructed to highlight
the progress made in delivering the key objectives, associated performance
indicators, and commentaries that help to identify progress, issues and actions
planned where the trend in performance is falling. To make the information in the
performance report clearer, each indicator is accompanied by an arrow, and in some
cases, a happy, indifferent or sad face.

Page 178 2



13. For your information, these symbols represent the following:

The face symbol shows whether performance is likely, unlikely to, or may meet
the target set for the year.

The arrow direction shows whether performance has declined, has been
sustained or improved when compared with an appropriate previous period.

14. At the meeting officers will be present to explain the performance information to the
Committee, to highlight performance issues, and to answer questions that Members
might have.

15.

The new Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 that came into force on 6th
April 2016 provides the legal framework for improving the wellbeing of people who
need care and support, and carers who need support, and for transforming social
services in Wales. The Council is working on the implementation of the Act and the
associated National Outcomes Framework during 2016-17. In terms of performance
management and monitoring, the implementation of the Act has 3 significant
implications:

a.

National Strategic Indicators (NSls) / Public Accountability Measures (PAMs)

It had been our expectation that all NSIs and PAMs would come to an end after
2015-16, but the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) has decided to
retain 2 Children’s Services NSIs / PAMs on a non-statutory basis for 2016-17.
The impact of this for Children’s Services will be minimal as both of these
indicators are also included in the new National Outcomes Framework.

Quantitative Measures

Children’s Services have 14 new performance indicators under the new
National Outcomes Framework and have agreed that a further 15 indicators
from the old national set are still relevant and will continue to be collected. A list
of the new national Children’s Services Pls is available at Appendix D. As
many of these Pls are new, it is not possible to set targets for 2016-17. Rather,
during 2016-17 we are working to establish a baseline position which will enable
a robust target setting methodology to be implemented. Where the National
Outcomes Framework Measures were previously NSls, PAMs or Service
Improvement Data, targets have been set for 2016-17 and 2017-18.

Qualitative Measures

A substantially greater focus on qualitative information and outcomes which
brings a new set of challenges in terms of capturing performance in this area.
The purpose of collecting this information is to provide a tool for local authorities
to secure service user voices in designing, developing and improving care and
support services.

Page 179 3



PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER 2: JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2016

16.

Performance is being reported against the following corporate improvement
objectives:

Looked after children in Cardiff achieve their potential
People at risk in Cardiff are safeguarded
People in Cardiff are supported to live independently

17. The Service has three main functions:

a. Promoting the welfare of children in need
b. Safeguarding children
c. Improving outcomes for looked after children

OVERVIEW OF QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE

18.

19.

20.

As a result of the changes to the performance indicator sets that were introduced in
April, it is difficult to provide a full overview of performance as there is limited
comparator data for the new indicators as this is only the second time that they have
been reported. In relation to indicators that have been carried over from the previous
set, performance during Quarter 2 is mixed.

For example, performance in relation to timeliness of initial and review child
protection conferences improved from 91% to 97% and 98% to 100% respectively.
However, the percentage of social worker vacancies increased from 23% to 25%.
For further information, please see paragraph 12a.

Work to progress the Directorate’s commitments in the Corporate Plan has continued
and key areas of progress include:

a. Corporate Parenting Strategy — The Corporate Parenting Strategy is due to be
launched in Quarter 3. In the meantime, feedback from looked after children
and young people includes a high level of satisfaction with the support they
receive, but notes some concerns in relation to housing, social work / personal
adviser support and finance. Admission to the looked after system has been
avoided for 22 children from 15 families by the preventative initiative Family
Group Conferences (FGC). The number of children supported by the Looked
After Children traineeship scheme is currently six, with an additional six
apprentices within the Council. In September alone, Children’s Services
endorsed 27 adoption recommendations which will lead to significantly better
outcomes for infants and substantial savings over the longer term.

b. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) - The Multi Agency Safeguarding
Hub (MASH) is now fully operational. Early evidence suggests that our
response to safeguarding children and adults is improving.

c. Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy — The newly established process for

dealing with a CSE concern and data gathered from CSE Multi Agency Strategic
Meetings is beginning to identifying trends - data is routinely reviewed.

Page 180 4



Cardiff will be working with the Welsh Government (WG) in relation to the
dataset, actions in the National CSE Plan and how Cardiff can contribute to
taking these important matters forward. Cardiff will also propose improvements
to the multi-agency training currently being rolled out by WG to ensure it reflects
the latest learning around CSE, trends, patterns and intervention. Work to
develop a properly supported victim participation group to better understand how
to prevent children becoming exploited is underway including discussions with
organisations best placed to facilitate this group.

The Prevent Strategy (part of the Government's counter-terrorism strategy,
CONTEST) is being implemented via a Cardiff Delivery / Action Plan and
discussions commenced regarding governance for Prevent to sit within Social
Services.

. Specialist training regarding the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales)

Act 2014 - Training in relation to the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act
2014 (SSWB) is ongoing — both in-house and with the third sector. Further in-
house training is planned for social workers and managers to support outcome-
focused practice. Opportunities for SSWB Act training sessions for elected
members were not taken up so members were offered e-learning training via the
Care Council website.

21. There has been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in the
Corporate Plan relating to:

a.

Recruitment and retention of children’s social workers - Work to refresh
adverts has been completed. Use of the Council’s social media platforms to
accelerate recruitment activity has had a positive impact with 12 offers of
appointment in July and August with anticipated start dates in Quarter 3.
Development of the ‘pool’ of additional social workers is to be accelerated once
all vacancies have been filled. A report to extend the notice period of social
work staff and managers has been prepared. In relation to retention, work on
the remodelling of services and the implementation of the Workforce Strategy
as identified in Quarter 1 is ongoing and will continue through Quarters 3 and 4.

Effectiveness of Transition - Work undertaken in relation to achieving the
Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) bid and subsequent implementation has delayed
the specific work on milestones previously identified for Quarter 2. The bid was
submitted in March and agreed in May 2016. A significant part of the bid was to
facilitate stronger links between Adult Learning Disabilities and the Child Health
& Disability team. Through the establishment of a complex needs Child Health
Team; comprising of Health and Social Services staff (including two adult
transition workers) and working in close collaboration with Education and the
third sector, it is hoped that more efficient and effective systems will be
established for the benefit of children, young people and their carers.

22. Inrelation to the Directorate Plan, there has been progress in relation to:

a.

Implementing Information, Advice and Assistance functions — Information
for children, young people and their families is available on DEWIS and via the
Family Information Service.

Page 181 5



Remodelling of services for disabled children, young people and young
adults — Intermediate Care Fund award for additional wrap-around services
enabled collaborative decisions on what services should be delivered regionally,
resulting in four regional pilot services being commissioned and operational from
the beginning of September:

Regional Parenting Support for Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)
and Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)

Independent Living Skills for ADHD and ASD

Transitional Services for ADHD and ASD.

Services for Parents with Learning Difficulties

Work has commenced on a new service specification and contract that will
enable Cardiff and the Vale University Heath Board (UHB) to deliver an
integrated children’s respite service within Cardiff. Additional consultation work
has been undertaken with families to inform the specification of services to be
delivered within this integrated model.

Regional Workforce Development Partnership — Communications Strategy
agreed and good progress made on development of new website — use of new
logo and branding has been incorporated in the design.

Health and wellbeing of the Social Services workforce — Team briefing
sessions in the context of agile / mobile working conducted with all staff affected,
by the Agile / Mobile Project Manager.

Bilingual Services - Exercise currently underway that will supplement responses
to the corporate linguistic tool received in 2015-16 by requesting more detail
regarding levels of skill and confidence of Welsh speaking staff to work in the
medium of Welsh. Information gained should enable the Directorate to map its
current capacity to deliver a bilingual service. Although approval is pending,
actions in the Directorate Welsh Language Standards Action Plan are being
implemented and progressed.

Agile / Mobile Working Strategy — Approximately 300 employees across Social
Services transferred to mobile working including Intake & Assessment, Children
in Need and Family Intervention & Support Services. Phase 2.2 commenced
during Quarter 2 for Looked After Children teams, Youth Offending Service and
Personal Advisers.

Collaborative working — The Regional Safeguarding Children Board and
business unit is progressing. Jobs have been evaluated and staff consultation
will commence in Quarter 3. Intermediate Care Fund bid has been successful
and the project plan has been signed off by the partnership board with key
elements of a multi agency approach to working with disabled children starting to
be delivered locally.

Benchmarking - Social Services’ benchmarking will continue to follow the
framework set out in 2015-16, with Welsh authorities likely providing the main
focus due to our shared legislation and circumstances, and councils and
organisations from further afield used as and when relevant to our work. All
Wales data for 2015-16 has been published and will be used for benchmarking

Page 182 6



as required.

i. Early Help Strategy — The Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) pilot is
ongoing and subject to regular monitoring and review; to date 18 members of
staff have completed the JAFF training.

j- New model for the delivery of children’s social services - Signs of Safety
planned incremental training programme for staff continues and engagement with
Team Managers commenced.

k. Joint working protocol between the Health Service and Children’s Services
— A psychologist in place and located with the Looked After Children teams,
providing helpful advice and information. A positive impact is felt by the teams
but being part-time their capacity is causing delays in children and young
people’s needs being met. As a consequence, costs for alternative therapy to
meet these needs is rising. Insufficient capacity in Child & Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS) remains problematic. There is a good shared
understanding with Health on documentation and processes to be used in
respect of the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and work on a joint
understanding of key priorities across the partnership continues.

l.  When | Am Ready Scheme - Training sessions are underway for foster carers
and support staff interested in the scheme as part of the rolling programme of
awareness.

23. There has also been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in
the Directorate Plan relating to:

a. Social Services Workforce Strategy — Ongoing progress for Children’s Services
Workforce Strategy; initial meeting set up to begin work on Adult Services Workforce
Strategy.

b. Budget and savings proposals - At month 5, Children’s Services are
projecting an overspend of £2.766m. This reflects the impact of continuing
demographic pressures on Children’s Services, notably an increase in the
number of external fostering placements for children. A number of preventative
measures in relation to early help have been introduced in Children’s Services
and there has been a continued focus on returning children placed in high cost
out of area placements to Cardiff that has successfully achieved savings in
excess of £700,000. In spite of this however, within Children’s Services, there is
a significant shortfall (£1.4m) against the £3.5m savings target set for the
service as part of the 2016-17 budget.

c. Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) — The interim Quality Assurance Officer
began the process of updating QAF with implementation through a task and
finish group - unfortunately the funding for this post was withdrawn during
Quarter 2 as part of a financial savings exercise. However, those areas of the
QAF already implemented around case work auditing will continue and a
permanent Quality Assurance Officer post is being created with a view
appointment in the new financial year.

Page 183 7



d. Social Services Business Unit - New Team Manager and senior posts have
been considered by the Job Evaluation (JE) team who require more information
ahead of reaching a decision on grades.

e. Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) - Recruitment commenced and vacancies
have gone back out to advert. Challenges regarding identified premises have
resulted in alternative premises being explored.

DETAILED COMMENTARY
A) PROMOTING THE WELFARE OF CHILDREN WITH CARE & SUPPORT NEEDS

24. Performance indicators relating to referrals (prior to April 2016), and initial and core
assessments is no longer available as these have been replaced with Wellbeing
Contacts / Referrals and Wellbeing Assessments.

25. Children’s Services received 7,950 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals in Quarter 2
(Contacts 1) an increase of 5% from 7,558 in Quarter 1. However, Contact / Referral
numbers must be treated with caution because we do not yet understand the
implications of the Act on the figures, and we only have two quarters of new data, so
it is too soon for new trends to be identified. A detailed breakdown of Wellbeing
Contacts / Referrals is provided at Appendix C for the Committee’s information. This
report shows the source and outcome of the 7,950 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals
received by Children’s Services during Quarter 2.

26. Performance in relation to the timeliness of assessments (SSWB 24) was 86.3% (527
/ 611) compared with 99.2% (470 / 474) in Quarter 1. The reduction in performance
in quarter 2 was anticipated - performance in Quarter 1 was distorted as the
assessments, which have a 42 working day timeframe, were introduced on 6th April,
so could not be out of time until June. Appendix C details the source and outcome
of the 491 Wellbeing Assessments that were completed during the quarter. Please
note that the figures for numbers of assessments does not match because the Pl
requires us to include provision of Advice and Assistance.

27. The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family (SSWB 25)
was 57.3% (942 / 1,643) compared with 59.0% (980 / 1,661) in Quarter 1. Of the
1,643 children with a Care and Support Plan at 30" September 2016, 942 were being
supported to live at home (i.e. were not being looked after).

28. The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the year
(SSWB 26) was 6.2% compared with 3.2% in Quarter 1. Of the 839 children who
have been looked after during the year to date, 52 have returned home. This Pl is
cumulative, and performance will improve as we progress throughout the year.

29. The latter two Pls are a welcome measure of the effectiveness of the Service in
supporting children and young people within their families.

Page 184 8



B) SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN

30.

31.

32.

% timely initial and review CP conferences

33.

34.

35.

The number of children on the child protection register at the end of Quarter 2 was
279 (from 336 at the end of Quarter 1) (CS CPR 4).

96.5% (111 / 115) of initial child protection conferences took place within the 15
working day timescale in Quarter 2 — improving from 91.2% (124 / 136) in Quarter 1
(SCC/014). 4 conferences for 3 sibling groups were late in Quarter 2, 2 as a result of
delays with paperwork and problems with the video link to dad in the United Arab
Emirates; 1 due to delay in notification for conference to be scheduled and 1 for an
unborn child that will be rescheduled closer to the estimated date of delivery. All late
conferences have since been held.

Timeliness of review child protection conferences was 100.0% (296 / 296) in Quarter
2 compared with 98.4% (301 / 306) in Quarter 1.

Timely Initial and Review Child Protection Conferences

100.0 995

100.0 1000 1000 1000 996
064 975 984 988 o979 970 966 97.0 992 1000 100.0 92 985 1000 996 gg,4 1000

100.0 - 922 93.0

889 91 922

864
M 823 | B
79.3

90.0
80.0
70.0 A
60.0
50.0 A
40.0
30.0 A
20.0

10.0 A

0.0 1

(o] (821 [sp] < < < < Te] w w wn [<e] (o] (o] © M~ M~
A B B R R N D A
— N [§] ™ (3] ™ [32] < < < < [[e] wn w wn [(o] (o]
= I e O A e e =
o o (] o o o o o (o] o o o (=) () o o o
N N N N N N N N N ~N N N N N N ™~ N
Q1 Q3|Q4|Q1|Q2|Q3|Q4|Q1|Q2|Q3|Q4|Q1|Q2|Q3|Q4|Q1]Q2

Quarter

‘ @Timely Initial CP Conference BTimely CP Reviews ‘

100% (279 / 279) of children on the child protection register had an allocated social
worker at 30" September 2016.

The percentage of re-registrations of children on the child protection register (SSWB
27) was 5.6% (5 / 89) compared with 3.2% (4 / 127) in Quarter 1. 5 of the children
registered during the quarter had been on the CPR within the previous 12 months.
The children are from 2 sibling groups.

The average length of time for children who were on the CPR during the year (SSWB

28) was 198 days (29,105 / 147) compared with 206 days (27,381 / 133) in Quarter 1.
This is based on children who were de-registered during Quarter 2.

Page 185 9



C) IMPROVING OUTCOMES FOR LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN

36.

Number of looked after children

37.

38.

39.

750 ~

The number of children who were looked after at 30" September 2016 (not including
those children being looked after as part of a respite care arrangement) was 701
compared with 678 at 30" June 2016 (CS LAC 3e). This represents a rate of 9.3
children per 1,000 in Cardiff, which is above the all Wales rate of 8.8 per 1,000 as at
31st March 2015. The recent fluctuation in the number of looked after children is
displayed in the graph below.

Number of Looked After Children

701
700 681

p23 048 B0 002 g4, Sl — e
°=0 o120 L | ||
600 seg 557 579 578 592 T | | | {401 [

s4p 551 208 560 53§ =T —
550 — T~~~ R R R
0 e T e I e I e I e I e I e I S I e I e I e N e e I e I e ) e I e e N e B e I S
e T e e I e I e I e I e e I e e I S e N e B e I e N e Y S N e B e I e I e I
T T e e I e I e I e I e I e I e I e I e I e O e e I e I e O e I e e N e B e I S
KT B e B e T e I e T e O e T e I e I e I e I e T e e I e I e e T e e N e B e B e
& T B e B e B e B e e I e e B e e B e B e B e B e B e I e B e B e B e B e B e N e
20+ t+~fFH-t+H4 -4t 9
200 4+t~ 4+t MMM MMM MMM MMM E
w4+ 1Y YN+-"T1Tr~1T 111111 HHHMHHHHHHH H
LI e e I e I e I e N e I e N e O e B e I e I e R e I e I S I e I e I e ) e e I e I e
o e T e R e e e R e T e I e T e I e I e T e L e I e e I e I e T e I e I e I s I
0

™~ ™~ o~ o~ 3] [32] [sp) (s < = = <r w w w w (s} [(e] [(s] o ™~ ~

e R I R A T A T T O T - T T O T O S . N S . BN S B+ N (Yo U (Y B I B (e

(o) (o) [e) [e) (o] (o) [e) [e) o (o] (o) o o (o) (o) o o (o) (o) (=) [e=) (o)

™~ ™~ o~ o~ ™ ™~ (o] ™~ (8] o™ (Y] (8] (8] ™~ ™~ [aN] (8] ™~ ™~ (o] [aN] ™~

Q1 Q2 | Q3 |Q4 | Q1| Q2| Q3 |Q4, Q1| Q2| Q3| Q4| Q1 |Q2,Q3, Q4 Q1| Q2 ,Q3|Q4|Q1]Q2

Quarter

74.0% (388 / 524) of looked after children were placed with independent sector
providers at the end of Quarter 2 (CS LAC 44), stable from 73.6% (391 /531) in
Quarter 1. The number of children placed in independent sector residential
placements has reduced to 50 from 54 at the end of Quarter 1.

60.9% (319 / 524) of children in regulated placements were placed in Cardiff at the
end of Quarter 2 compared with 61.2% (325 / 531) at the end of Quarter 1 (CS LAC
58). A further 83 children placed outside Cardiff were within 20 miles of their home
address. 6 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with relative carers. For
some children placement outside the authority is in their best interests, examples
include children placed with family members who live outside Cardiff, children placed
in specialist placements and some children who are placed in areas that are closer to
their home address than some parts of the city.

93.8% (499 / 532) of statutory reviews for looked after children were held within
prescribed timescales in Quarter 2, a reduction from 96.1% (492 / 512) in Quarter 1
(SCC/021) in the context of a 4% increase in the number of reviews due. Of the 33
reviews that were not held on time, 7 were held within a week, 6 within 2 weeks, 5
within 4 weeks and 8 within 7 weeks. 7 reviews were still pending at the time of
writing, four of them siblings as a result of further information leading to a major

Page 186 10



40.

change in the care plan. The number of late reviews in September was partly due to
sickness absence resulting in the reviews being reassigned to other Chairs in
accordance with their availability. 95.3% (507 / 532) of statutory visits were held in
accordance with regulations in Quarter 2 showing an increase from 94.1% (482 / 512)
in Quarter 1 (SCC/025).

All looked after children were allocated to a social worker at 30t September 2016.

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

The numbers of First Time Entrants (FTEs) to the Youth Offending Service (YOS)
has decreased during Quarter 2 to 24 (from 45 in Quarter 1). The 24 young people
committed 52 offences, averaging 2.2 offences per young person. In total (FTE and
others) during Quarter 2, 201 offences were committed by 84 young people (of whom
24 are the FTESs), giving an average of 2.4 offences each.

The YOS Annual Plan was agreed with the YOS Management Board during the
quarter and will be submitted to the Youth Justice Board (YJB) for approval in Quarter
3.

Work to finalise the YOS restructure exercise continues and re-location is scheduled
for Quarter 4.

Work on finalising the re-offending toolkit results for 2015-16 is ongoing following the
recent appointment to the YOS Information Officer post.

YOS contribution to the Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) was reviewed during the
quarter. As a result, and in the light of limited capacity, YOS will no longer be directly
involved, but will contribute services and interventions as required where children
have a history of offending behaviour, or are currently within the criminal justice
system.

46. The Emotional and Wellbeing Service operational — referrals to the service will be for
children and young people in contact with YOS.

STAFFING

47. The percentage of social worker vacancies in Quarter 2 was 24.8% compared with

48.

22.9% in Quarter 1 (Staff 1). Vacancy rates have increased this quarter primarily as
a result of two new social worker posts, created with Intermediate Care Funding.
Interviews took place in October and appointments are currently being made. Work
to refresh adverts completed. Use of the Council’s social media platforms to
accelerate recruitment activity has had a positive impact with 12 offers of
appointment in July and August with anticipated start dates in Quarter 3.
Development of the ‘pool’ of additional social workers is to be accelerated once all
vacancies have been filled. Report to extend the notice period of social work staff
and managers has been prepared. In relation to retention, work on the remodelling
of services and the implementation of the Workforce Strategy as identified in Quarter
1 is ongoing and will continue through Quarters 3 and 4.

The average number of days of sickness absence for staff in Children’s Services in
Quarter 2 2016-17 was 5.5, compared with 8.0 in Quarter 2 2015-16. Analysis of

Page 187 11



Children’s Services sickness patterns indicates that the increase over the quarter is
largely attributable to back problems, neurological and pregnancy related sickness.
More positively, there have been significant reductions in other areas. Further work
is underway to identify opportunities to mitigate issues concerning back problems
and other areas of growth.

49. 89% compliance with finalisation of objective sheets for 2016-17 had been achieved
at the time of writing. This has reduced from the 93% reported previous as a result of
new starters who have not yet finalised their objectives. Children’s Services are
currently undertaking a dip sample of PPDR objectives and the outcome will inform 6
monthly reviews.

WAY FORWARD

50. Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and to identify
any issues which require more detailed scrutiny.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

51. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend,
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or
without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to
Executive / Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf the Council must (a) be within
the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed
by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers of behalf of
the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements
imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly
informed,; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's
fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the
circumstances.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

52. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend,
but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in
relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any
modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Executive /
Council will set out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:
Consider the contents of the report and report any comments to the Cabinet Member.

Tony Young

Director of Social Services
3 November 2016

Page 188 12



uoyesiuedlo a\1 ss0J3e pala|dwiod Usaq aABY SMIIAISIU| YIOM O] UINIJY JO %06

swaw0iw om J=8e] _

91 141 a ot B

uos13d 194 1507 sAeq 314 - 22U3sqy SSAUNIIS

(214 006] - S5

{314 1£5] SPanosay

. (314 58] 35179 D

[314 065] SIPOYAS UON - UOIIEINP]
[314 00g's] Joayas - uoizeanpy
[314526] ~q w033

(314 080T] $3 ¥ H ‘swod

(314 Ze6l sdo Ao

(314 ¢vt01) 9)e0d00)

sdiysaoiuauddy apes) -

sdiysaouaiddy sieiodio) g sdiysanguaiddy Joiunf g

ST

ajdoad
8unoA yojsaiuniioddo yuawAojdwy

‘sAemy8iy pue SuisnoH

‘S]Y3uUsg Se Yans seale JIA0D pue pa| 31e10103JIp e
Yolym saaujesl zz aney AjJUaLINd am pue Jusys!|qeIsa
3y} uo sasnuaidde speiy ST Ajlua.Ind ale a3y

“Juawdojanap ui s3sod alow yym aded ug

Ajpuaiind ase ZT Jayjoue pue swayads ay3 pajajdwoa
aAey saonuaudde § ‘ST-4TOZ Ul PauUWWOD

awayas diyssoguaisddy sielodio) ays souls,

8E€ 40 1OYo3 [e30]

ON = 3QAEN g PBISAIBW| g

awuwedoid Jadeuey yipiej jo g sseyd
uj uonzesyijenb 7| jo uonajdwo)

Jussard 1e pSIONNB 10N @ PO|jOJUB ARUALIND &

Ajjiqisuodsal JuawasSeuew aul yum
Mo[aq pue / apein g aseyd awwesSold
133euep Yipied syl uo Juswjoiuy

(angeewnd) /19T 20w L1-9T 198kl g
0000008 0000002  000'000'9  000'000°S  000'000% 000'D00E  000°000'C 000000 -
_ _ _ _ .
_ 8EE'LET
| | (ybs) eauy (pusaIU| SSQU0 U vonINpaY |
_ _ 189's2¢ _
_ _
07E'8rY's
(3) Sopdeg 9sueuaiulel ul uoRINpPaY
000" o
|
wwq 971
{3)1507 Buiuuny (e10) U1 uogaNpay
| 000" oom T
oww.ﬁ.\w
y g (3) sid193ay {enden
oco_.n.om L

ulain/iaquy g P

"a3pwWiya jopupuly ybnol ayl UM 3)qouIDISNS
34D A3Y3 303 J3P10 U] 3503 PISNP3. D 1D SIINAISS ISP PUD ‘SOJIS IAIBS JO JAQUINU D SSOIID PAIINIP Aj3ual
~N3 21D 1DY4] SUORIUNS PUD $321A13S UBKD-3. ‘PUDWISP J5LI0ISNI SBDUDW PUD PUD]SIFPUN 15113G O] SI LD 53]

*[19uno) 3Y3 ssouoe sadjalas Aay Jo Suideysas sy3 azeljdey

01 sac1desd Buppiom dojanap pue saidojouyday Suljqeus 3o|dxD [jIMm SIIIALRS Suideysay

S30IAI13S Juideysay

udaln/iaquy § P

'S3)RI0PAIIP || SSOIIe UoYINPaIL
1500 pue A13A1jap 3A1YaYS Loddns 0} SauNseaw apIM-|1PUNo) ysijqelsa [im oljopiod siy)

S3JIAI3S SUlUOISSILIWO) 3 Suijgeuy

LT-9T0Z T 49HEND PJeIa103S MIIAIBAQ [IPUNO)

Page 189




Z JO1IEND) 10} PuUads 99e3us21ad U3 S1U9501d3] SA0GE 9]qe] 3y |

_— - she, : -
%S 76 01 %88 WDl MC_>O._QE_ wucm. 0z UM o3 UQ@C”QWM._ MC._OD %6 AwsSy m BwpnRAO W HESE
-1|dwod s15anbay uatiewssoju) ||eISA0 3y} Yum /€ 01 (TO) Sz woly swurejdwod : %00°CE %400°0Z %00°0T
Yum sisanbal yda pue 104 Yioq 4o} 2due U1 8582198p %ZT B UIasseyziapenp | | : : : {34 006 5
-11dwod Sy3 3seadul ue uaaq sey Ayl . sujejdwo) . (314 125] ssamosay
sisanbay uogew.loju) : (314 58] M35 189

(314 065] voizenpy

[31400z] A°Q U033

210J3q JeaA ay} poriad eTe [3L4 $22] (5991135 WD) Asq U003
awes ay3 Ja} 960°9TD‘T WoJj [314 080°T) S3 3 H ‘swiod
auljuo apew s3eq eJ1X3 / saipped Joj s3sanbal jo %6°5L dn s1 gaiym ‘A ayj ssoioe

ajsqam ay} 0}
SUSIA 941 JO % GS JOAC 30} JUNOIIE MOU SIAI( 19|qeL /3]IqOIN

[314 Z66) sdo Aud

aujjuo spew mou suoyearjdde ywiad Supjied Jc %1 T9 sqnH 3 Ateigi 01 SusIA AauaBy g swnIaAQ ‘s123png Yeis

€76'9ET'T oM a1BY) Je3h
N 3y} Jo Jfey 3sT ay3 Suungq |
YsjoM Ul uaaq aney %6°'T Lews A _ A 0| %0t %06 %08 %0L %09 %05 %0t %0E %07 %0T

U3y Yyum dn 33s s3unodde EE‘9 3yl JO

LT9TOZ |1yuoys s3uines paiasfosd Jo % m 219707 S3uiARS 0 % papalald g

SS
$32Unosay
WIS B9

‘qnH 2o1ApY 33ua) Ayp | SIS SERRESERESERIE SRR P
33 0] sjuald Joj sudwWaAINbal a8ensue) - ; : _ (sniag wioy) Aag L0337
A9Q uod3

Jejndod 3sow ayy ae (%5°T) Y23z uayy £ . ” : _ . : 1oL punos
pue (%) a1qely ‘ysijSu3 ueyl 1ay0 A " . ! qo

sdo AwD

91IS@3aM S,[I2UN0) Y] M3IIA 0] YIIYM
ul so8en3ue| seindod 350w 3y) aue

Jiqely pue ystjod s@ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ—. ~Umw—.__—._u
13png m uonfold g
SII€J [€303 33 8 = ] SHe | 00029t 000°0PT 000'02T 000°00T 000°08 000°09 0000t 000'0Z

40 %8°0 10} JUN022€ JZJ 01 5/(ed YS|IM : . : . : o

$32UN0S3Y

sagendue] Jowoisn)
SARSTIR9

l
_ L
= == _ 1 uonenpy
%98 : auil Juuoday Jseday N 100q@33e4 U0 S L8Y'L {sA19§ WoD) A3Q w033
PpApJ2€e3103uid @ S19MO||0p £2T°C _ Aaq U033
%00T - YSIPM %96 - Ystjdu3 : 3z 031 s19j|ed m Wwsendiod
e

[1PUNOJYIPIBD @ SIBMOI{O) TEL'ED .
I < 3 4 50

%66 : SqNH 01 SIONSIA JapimL _

20 S|9A37 uoydejsyes J3wWoisn) |\ . BIP3 |edos _ LT-9T0Z WN1NQ 123png pajosfod

LT-9T0Z Z 131en pJedalods M3IIAISAQ [I2Uno)




(v1) %08
squy’ _

(Lv) - L1-910Z 2D

3odau sy} uj papn|oul S103edIpu| 3JULWIOM Jsuiede 3ouewo)iad

(ot) %L1 (rT)%ee
Jquy/pay usain/iaquy

(09) - £1-910Z 2D

LT-9T0Z ue|d d1ei0di0) 3y} U} SJUBWIWWO) JsuleSe aduew.load

LT-9T0¢C Moday Iduewiojiod pue >.hw>__wh_ rd o

Page 191



Page 192



Performance RAG Status Matrix for Corporate Commitments

CONSEQUENCES

]
@]
o
b=
=
L
-
=

LIKELIHOOD CONSEQUENCES
A = Very Likely 1 = Major

B = Likely ' 2 = Significant

C = Unilikely 3 = Mode-rate

D = Very Low 4 = Minor

RAG DEFINITION

Some Issues. Delivery of the commitment is either delayed, or will not
achieve the all the desired outcomes. Issues can be managed with the

Directorate and does not require escalation.

Page 46 of 47

Page 193



Performance RAG Status Matrix for Performance indicators

The RAG definitions are based on an automated mathematical formula*:

RAG DEFINITION

r

: Amber - any indicator 0.1% - 10% off target

NB. There are some exceptions to this where Welsh Government have mandated a
threshold/RAG system and these would be exempt from the automated RAG process

Page 47 of 47

Page 194



LV J0 6€ 93ed

9yl Hoddns 01 |aA3| IUSWUIANO0L) YS|SM 1e 9dejd Supje} i uoilde ainsua o} pasN
‘dn u3)y el 10U SIqUIBW P31IB|D 10} SUO|ISSIS Bululel) 19y GMSS 104 sarunuoddQ :sanss)

S| Suiuieuy asnoy-ur JaYyun4 ‘10323s Iyl 8y} YIm pue asnoy-ui yloq — Sujo3uo
st (@MSS) YTOZ 1Y (S91e M) Buldg-|[9M 7@ SIIIAISS [E190S 3Y) 0] uoile|as ul Buiurel]

sdais IxaN/suol1dy BunediuN/sanss|

(sswooino

juawpwwod Sunejnsdesua) ssaidoid jo Azewwns aARd3[qO JuswaAcsdw)

sAep Bupjiom 7

Page 195

‘8T-/T0¢ 404 Buinas 19841 waojul 01 JesA oyl Sulinp paysi|qelsa aq [|Im auljaseq ulyum paisjdwod
Vv ‘pauiodal uaaq sey |4 SIyl 18yl Jeah 1s114 8yl St /T-9T0¢ Se patdde uasq sey Sunes oyy oN sauinbua
‘sAep Supjiom 7 uiyum paa|dwod a1am g ‘z 4aueny Sulinp sauinbud 05z 3yl 40 uoiraloid ynpe
"%.6 Sem /T-9T0Z T 49Meny 104 Ynsayl dd V/N Vv/N v/N ouljeseg] %9°/6 | 30 % - 8T ainseay
"8T-/102 40} Sunioas 19811 wuoyur 03 1eah ayl Bulinp paysi|qelsa aq [|Im auljaseq
Vv 'pawodai uaaq sey {d Siyl 1eyl 1eah 1saiy aya st ZT-9T70¢ se poljdde uaaq sey 3uijel oyy oN Ajlwey 219y1 ulyum
‘(13ye paxoo| Bu1dq 10U 313M *3°1) DWOY Je dAI| Suial utewas 01
0} panoddns Bulaq a1am 6 ‘9T°60°0¢ 1€ ue|d Hoddng 3 ale) e UM uaipiyd £¥9°T 9yl JO pavoddns uaipjiyo
_ "%0°6S SeM LT-9T0C T JdHUeny Joj ynsay|  dd V/N V/N v/N duljaseq| %E'LS | 30 % - ST 3INse’an
‘b pue € siauenp Yy3noJyl anu1uod ||im pue Suio3uo Si T Ja1eny ul payiluapl se A3anells|
22IOPII0AN 2Y3 JO uonieluawa|dw 3Y] pue SIDIAIIS JO Bul||SPOWAL Y] UO HI0M ‘UoIualaL
0] uolle[aJ u| .um:.mam:a uaaq sey sia8euew pue Jels }J0Mm [e120s Jo poliad d3110u 3yl pualxa
0} Hoday °paj|i} U3 SABY SIIJUBILA ||B 3JUO PIILIJ|IDIE 3] O] SI SIINI0M |e1D0S [euoIlIppe
40 ,jood, 3yl Jo uawdojana@ ‘¢ Japenp ul sajep uels paleddijue yum isndny pue Ajng swea} ||e
ul Judwiuiodde Jo s1ayo T yum 1dedwi aaiysod e pey sey AlAII0E JU3WIINIIBL 3)e13|DIDE Ul S9IIUBDEA YJOM
0} swuojie|d eipaw [B120S S |12UN0) 3y} Jo 3sM pa1d|dwiod SUBAPE Ysaijal 0110  dD %z'ze | %6Te %' TT %81 %8tz | |e1nos jo % - T yeis
o gw = o ~ ~
o o 5% 5 o |8« = J03e21pUY|
Aejuawwo) 3 < E m o m ogun |29 (o9 aouewnopadd
% 6R| ®| "R IfR | 8

papJengajes aJe Jipaed uisi 1e ajdoad 1°z :9A1393(qQ Juawanoidw /ajdoad ajqesauina Sunaoddns ‘gz Aysolad

$31}11014d ueld leiodio)

aJowis|3 9 JUIT SJ||D SISqUIDIA I3uIqe) 006 :(314) seahojdw3 Jaquiny

3unoj Auoj 10333210

S3IINIS |BII0S 1311012341
1oday aduewio4idd 9140133410 £T1-910¢ ¢ 1314enD




L 30 O 33ed

Y10T 1V (s91eM) Bulag-||am pue sad1aas |eraos ay3 Suipaedas awwesSoud Suiuiess 1sijedads e jo aseyd pu033s ay3 o 1no |joJ 919|dwo)

8T0C Yaue Aq Aud Ajpusiig euawaq pasiudodal e yipied ayew 01 4o

LT0T Y2JeN Aq sisunied yum uoieloqel|0d u A333e11s uoiieno|dx3 [enxas pjiyD JipJed 3yl Jo sauawad A3y Juawajdw)

LT0Z Yd1ey Aq %81

MO|3q SI3XJ0M [BII0S S ualp|iyd 1D} aled Aouedene sulejulew pue saaalyae [1puno) 3yl mc_hsm:w .m._wv_.h0>> |B130s S, Uaup|iyd O uoIjualal pue Juswinidsl Iyl w>O._QE_

910z dunr Aq

s|ed13)a1 BuiSeuew Joj sjuswsBuedte (HSYIA) qnH Suipsengages Aduady IHNN mau Sunuawsa|dw Aq wuey Juedsiyusis wouy ua4p|iya Bundalosd Joy walsAs ayy ancaduwy

(sue|d Asanijaq ui T Med) siuawywwo)

‘I2UN0) 3yl ssolde Jayuny Ino pajjoi 3q 0} Suluies] uoidweyd / spuali4 eluawaqg
"A8a3e11s 22100/ 4O uoireluaWA|dul pue SITIAIBS JO Sulj|apowWal uo YoM
‘pauayiduans

3q 01 pJeog uaip|ly) Suipiendajes |euoi3ay pue JuaN3Id YipJeD) Uaamiaq syur
's24n3anJ1s Suipien3ajes BullSIXS UIYNM JUBA3I JO dIYSIBUMO SIIIAISS |eldos

"1V GMSS Jo uoneiudwajduwn Suimoljoy sded Apnuapi o3 sisAjeue spasu Suiues|

"82110e4d PasNI04-3w0d1n0 3jowoid 01 $433}10M |e120s 104 Sututel} Jayund :sdags A3y 1xaN

‘ueld Auunwwo) Ajpuatiy elnuswag apim AND ay3 pJemioy anup o1 sdnois

-qns diysiauied pooyInoqysiaN JUeAs|as puale 01 SAJIAISS YNPY WOl SIAITRIUSAIdDY
"22ed ul pJeog | SILNOD Pue (d11D) 3|140.d |EI0T WISLIOII[-J3IUNO) HIpie)

‘ue|d JUsaAdid Jipied

9Y3 01 uoize[al ul AuIoyIny (307 pUe JUSWUISA0D YS|IM ‘DIPYQ dWOH usamiaq dn-uiof
‘12w du1aq s1 Alnp uanaid oyl

2Insus 01 sue|d uaide pue s31831e.1S UL AllIoyIne |edo| Hoddns pue 1531 03 J3PIO Ul
JaM3IA3I € Se S3TIAIAS S, uaIp|IYD ‘1030a1iQ Juelsissy Buipnut Jojid mainal 13ad 3d1y40 SwWoH
240M 35D aedapun 01 Loddns 130 01 JUBWIUIBAOCD YS[3M YUM 199

CIELELYY

[12uno) 3a1e) ay) elA Buluiesy ulules|-3 paiayo sJaquiaw pPa3Id|3 isuonde SuiteSnnn

"UoI1U91aJ pUB JUBWNNIIABL UG Ajjeaiydads S1ea1uaduod o) Aydeded Jo yaeq
‘ue|d (35D) uonenojdx3 [enxas pliyD |euoileN Y3 JO uoieuswa|dwi

Dacnno 10646

‘pajuswajdwi pue

poaide uaaq sey ue|d uoIdY AlUNWIWO) A|puali4 elaUBWAQ APIM AND Hpiedy ayy
"duinosdw sy synpe pue uaipjiya Suipsensages o} asuodsal ano 1eyy s1sa8sns
adouapiAa Alde] jeuonelado Ajjny mou si (HSYIAI) gNH SuipsenBajes Adualy 1nN ayy
‘Isngny pue Ainf ui apew asam sjuawiuiodde 4o siayo 7T

Pue paysaJyai usaq sey ugiedwed JUaWNIIAL JINIOM |BIDOS SIINAIDS S,UIP|IY) YL
'S9JIAIIG [BID0S UIYNM 1S 0} JUIADIJ 104 adueusanod SuipireSal pasuawiwiod
SUOISSNJsIp pue ueld uoildy / Aiaaiaq yipae) e eia pajuawadwi Suiaq st (1SIINOD
‘AB918415 WISII01131-193UNOI S, JUDWIUIBAOL) 3y1 Jo ued) ASa1ea1s Juanald ay)
"22112e4d pasnd0-aw03no 1oddns 03 sis8euews pue siay10m |e120s Joy pauueld

aUC LI

2Jows|3 @ JUIT S4f|D :SISqWIAN JBUIqe 006 :(314) sesAojdw3 Jaquiny

Sunop Auo] :uomaa1Q S3IAIIS [e120S ;31810133410
H0day 3dueWIO0LIdd 3)RI03I3HQA LT-9T0Z Z 49MenyD




L Jo T @8ed

*5150d J3}40M UOILISURI] OM] BY] O] JUSWINNIIDY :SINSS|

Buiuiea yum synpy pue spasn xa|dwo) yum uaip|iy) 104 piq (4J1) pun4 a1e) leipawialu] ayl

sda1$ PAN/suoidy Sunediiing/sanss|

*Ajjuapuadapui aAl| 01 pauoddns Jiped ul
9|doad £°z u0I1103s 93s asea|d d1epdn / suoiloe 104 ‘T9E Sem 7|
Jaueny 3 T Japeny Sulinp SJudwIssSassy si1ale) palrs|dwod Jo
Jaquinu |B10] 'SJ34ed 86T 'E JO 1IN0 GTG'T — SI3H0 Jo saquinn| dI

‘Ajiuapuadapul 1e al| o1 papoddns yipaed ut 3jdoad €7
uoI123s 995 aseald a1epdn / suonoe Jo4 ‘i01edipul dAleNWND)|  d) v

‘Ajpuapuadapui 1e 3l 01 papoddns

Hip1eD ul 9|doad €'z uo1123s 335 asea|d aiepdn / suoiydef
Jo4 'O Aq 1970300 Jo pua paysiiqnd a4 |jim Jaqwaidag
‘3sn8ny 13 Ain[ 10} Yynsau jeiled , "Joledpul aaienwn)l  dJ

Arejuswwo)

Source
RAG

8'9L

(sawono Juswnwwod Sunejnsdesud) ssaidoid jo Arewwuns aandalqQ Juswanosdw

9°'0¢

L'ev

St

viy

1edA ay) Suunp
JUDWISSISSY

saie) e palayo
9J3m Jey} synpe
Joj Buued aze oym
synpe 3|qi3i3

30 % - EZTOVIS

v/N

€€9

v/N

89

899

awdYas uswAed
133lig ay3

Buisn poddns pue
94e 40 pasu ul
synpe jo Jaqunu
[€101 3Y] - SZT1VOS

age 197

:7A

-

8’s

6T’

* CLC

JanoJo g/
pase uolye|ndod
000°T 42d suoseal
d4ed [e1J0S Joy
94EJ JO SI3jsuel)
paAejap jo ajes
9y] - 6T 3INsealN

Q1
2016-17

&

2015-16

Target
2016-17

o

2016-17

Jojednpuj
ajuewoysad

Apuspuadapui any| 03 palsoddns ate yipae) ul 3|doad €'z :aA10alqo 1uawanoidw) / ajdoad ajqesauina Sunsoddns -z Ajliougd

saijioud ue|d 3jerodio)

alows|3 '8 U] S| SIIqUISW JdUIqe)

006 :(314) saaAojdwi3 Jaquiny

Sunoy Auo] :10333.1Q

SIIAIIS |BID0S 21810333110
}10day Idjuew.ojiad 3les0333iig L1-9T0¢ ¢ 4131eny



L7 40 Zi 38ed

'|NJSS3IINS UG SeY SIY) I uollewjuod

guiyeme aje ap\ XIS 01 SMYD JNOJ WIOIY JBYHNY Wiedl 3y3 3aueyua

0} pawigns uaaq sey piq a4nssaid ¥ '01 paunIaal uiaq Ajzuanind

ale s3sod omy Jayuny y ‘sisod YD mau omi ay3 Jo Sululel) pue uoidnpuy
"J9ded |esjesdde suoizdo ue wioui

o1 ue|d uoioe ue yum 3uoje ‘padojansap Suiaq s|apow JuswAed 19941Q MaN
‘sjuawaguedte Juiyiom diysiauiied Japim su pue

sue|d uolldy D01 S,ISHI 2Y1 JO |Ie12P 3Y1 SSNISIP 03 JUSLLUIDAOL) YS|aM
‘dnoig $3JIAIS (105 pue Y1jesH UoISIAL] ‘Uoilesado-0) g diysiauiied
‘10132.1q Aindaq YA 193w 03 ueSioweD JO JjeA Y1 pue Yipied 10) ISHI
‘llig (s9jem) [eunquiL uoireanp3 pue (Nv) SPIaN Buluiea] |euolppy
9y} jo suoriealydun 3yl pue s|ooyds / sadlAISS YNPY YHUm Supjiom

1350|2 pue uollsues] SSNISIP 01 uoneINpl yum s3unaaiy :sdays Aay 1xaN

"JeaA 3y} SuLINp JUSWISSASSY S1JE) € PAIIYO 31aM Jey] synpe

40} Bulied ale oym siaied Ynpe 3|q1Si|a Jo 38ejuadsad ayi Sunoluopy
"LTOT Y21BA| ,(T€ |13UN Pansst 10e4U0D “J3pIacld Juawhed 19311Q
u3qWNdUL 3y} 01 pieme 123J1p e YliMm pa1a)dwos poday uoisida(g Ja3iyo
'S921/AI3S papuedxa

JO MU JO JUBWYSI|GRISD Y] 0} UOIIR|3] Ul ABMISPUN ST JUSWHNIDISY
'S59204d LOI}ISURI]) BY] UO 59|04 353Y] JO SSAUDAINIDYD / 1oedwi

pue suonedijdde [erqualod aseaudu] 01 ‘SYUOW ZT 01 9 WO PIPUIIXD
aq 0} s3sod uojusues 47| Joy poliad JuaWNNIIRY isuonde SuneSiun

‘Juauewssd apew aq ued s3sod sJUBWSSISSY Siate)

ainsua 01 3de|d ui s1 393pnq Sunsua pue $s3304d JUBWNNIISI SulIoNUON
‘pasojdxa

aje s|apow mau 3piym adejd ui ase syuawaSuelse ajeppdoidde 1ey) aunsua
01 A1eSSa23u 13e11U00 J9pIroid JuawAed 10311Q 1USQWINIUI O] UOISUB)IX]
"1sod ui a.e yjeis jiun edwy ul Aejap

Pa31e1205Se puk SIIYMILP JUBWUNIIAL 01 BNp ainupuadxa {)| ul aeddys

"T9¢E SI 1ep 01 1edA ay] 40} SIUDWISSISSY SID4e) pala|dwod

0 Jsquinu 3y %06 J0 1981€} |eNuUE pue %G Jo 1981e] Alsaenb ay) ysuede (s1a1ed gT'S

10} SI19JJ0 GTG'T) SIUBISSISSY SIBILD PAIBYO 2I9M $I3IED JO %' /{7 ‘D1ep 01 1e3A 3y} JO4 "PIJUBWIWIOD
(SMVD) 519310/ JUBWISSASSY 51918 JUIULW.ad JNoJ JO JUSWHNIIDI Y} PUE SUOIIEPUIWWOIAI

2y Juswajdw 0} ungdaq sey Y10 "paasde pue papn|dul asam Juauewad sisod sy} ew pue wes)
ay3 puedxa 0} suonepuaWWoI3l ‘133f01d Y1 JO SS3IINS BY] 01 ANP ‘SIUBWISSISSY SI3IED) 0] UOIIL[S U]
‘(uoissiwpe audsal

/ dWoy a1ed pue pasealap a19m SUOSE ulew Ayl ‘Ydlym J0) pasead zg pue sjuswAed 1alig PaMElH
9€ ‘z JoueNnYD 3uliNQ "3seqelep SISPIACIJ Y1 Ul PIPI0IAI BWAYIS Y3 spaemol Supiom ajdoadd)

99 Yum ‘g 1auenp Bunp awayds JuswAed 123J1Q 3Y) UO SIISN DIAIIS 8§59 3JaM 319y .__ucsou.u_

ay1 pue JapInoid Juaquinaul 3yl UaaM3aq sassado.ad snoidwi 0} pajuswajdwi usaq aney swalsAs
‘paiepdn pue pasAjeue ss3001d ay1 pue pamalaal U3 ey JudaWAed 19311(] JO [2POW JUBLIND 3Y |
'$S9201d UOIIEPI[EA BY] JO SSIUBAIIIYD 3] JO uoiiedipul daiusod e sapudi€.

Ya1ym ‘aep uolssiwqgns sy3 Suimo||os AjaA1103ds0l1a1 elep puawe 0} JaISIUIA 3y} Aq apew uaaq aney
s1sanbas oN "yuow snoiraid ayi 01 uosiedwod ul G Aq paseasdap Yipaed 1oy siaquinu parioday
'L6913M sD0| Q parodas uaym Jeah ise| poriad awes ayl ueyl Jamo| %ST St SIYL "YIuOW ui asealdu)
%1 € ‘78 01 1sn3ny ul paseasoul s;aquinu ()0 ) aJe) Jo siaysuel) pake|aq 1eyl paysodal pieog
diysiauped (DSHI) a1e) [e120S pue yjjeaH pajesSaju| uediowe|o Jo ajeA pue yipse) ay) -uoddns
pue aJed 31Inbas oym sudZIUI JO 31D ||RISA0 3Y] anoidwi] pue DO 2INPaJ 0} ABMISPUN S| 1BY] JI0M
31 JO MIIAIBAO 183)e.1S € dpiaoid 01 papuaiul i uejd ay| ‘siaupied yum paaiSe pue padojanap
usaq sey uejd uoilde [3A3| YSiy 1sa14 SWOH e (D01 Q) aJe) 40 s1ajsuel| paAejaq o1 uoliejai uj

'Spaau x3|dwod pue salljiqesip Suluies) 10y 9JIAIDS

o[ e pue 331A13s wisiine pajesdajul ‘sjapow ssasse 0} adieydsip ‘swieal adieydsip paiesdalul ‘ssadde
40 jurod 3j3uIs pue 10e3u09 JO Julod 1511 ‘SUOIIN|OS UOIIBPOWIIOIIE ‘UOIIUSAID pue UoIUSAI)UI
Ajiea Burioddns Buipnjaul ‘Suinuiluoa si 4J) 3y jo uonejuawajdw) "wesy Ayjigesiq 1§ Y1esH pIyd
ay1 pue salyjigesiqQ Buluiea] Ynpy usamiaq syul| J98uonls ajeljidey 0} paduawwod 133fosd sanjiqesiq

9I0WS[] '@ JUIT SJ|[D :SIAQWIA J2UIge)

006 :(31d) sasAojdw3 JaquinN

Junop Auo] :1033a1Q S3JIAIIS [R1I0S 19110123410

}10day ajuewWI0I3d 31eI01IdHQ LT-9T0Z Z 19MenD




LY J0 € 98ed

*sa4nssaid puewap djqededsaul jedinw 40 10edwi ay) 5103|404 puadsiano pardaiord ay] ‘Sa2AIBS SHNPY 10§ WGGH 2T pue

01 pue s3uiaes Jo Juawaadiyde poddns o sjesodoud S9IIAJBS S,Udlp|iy) 404 pariodal die wg9y/ g3 0 Spuadsidno ‘ainsiy Syl LIYHAN S YIUOW

ainssaud pue ymou3d pasedaud sey 103294 YL 1e SE WTZZ'SF JO puadsiano pauiquiod e pamoys 31e401331Q 3Y] - 193png aje10raa1q
suondy Sunesiiy

(oAl "xen) anoge pajou ueyl 13ylo — 91e4013341Q 40} saduajjey) Aay
SIUBWIAA3IYIY 1§ Sa3ua||eyd 13Y10

140]
0]

(£) %8z (0) %0 | 0 (2) %8t (1) %6
(2) %8 (0) %0 [ | 10 (1) %6 (z) %8t
u3319 f1aquy laquiy//pay | OvY . usaig fiaquiy Jaquiy /pay

9 ,SHNPY ‘S s,uaIp(Iy) S SUNPY ‘b
‘€T 1UlOf — 67 :[e10} (7 Med) Suolldy ssauisng 340D a1e032a4iq dsujede ssasdoud  S,uaipjiyd ‘g Iwor — T :|e1old (T Hed) siuawnwwo) uejd alesodio) ysutede ssardoud

JeaA suljaseq e uj ase Ydaiym (%8 ¢r) Sid € 104 PIPN[IUI 10U DY (1) %e vt
1eaA auijaseq e u1 a1e YIIYM (%8'Zr) Sid € 104 papnpul iou Ovy IRNEIEERENEN (1) % vl

+s31oN [NIONISESEIBN (oN) % saquiy

(1e101) sid ue|d a3e10dio)

Page 199

synpe Joj Sulied aie oym s131ed Yynpe 3|qi81|D ||B 01 WUBWISSISSY 51318 € 190

L10Z Aq 19V (s3]e/) Bulag-||9M pue SIIAISS [E190S dY1 YHM dul|
u1 spasau 110ddns pue a1ed yUM SJuUspIsal 3 Npe JJipJeD 104 a1ed Jo uoisiaoid 103J1p 01 SAIIBUIDYE UE Se sjuaiAed 19941J JO aye1dn 3y} aseasdur 01 anuiuo)

£107 Aq |eudsoy wouy (D0] q) 248D Jo 19)suel] paAejaq e souauadxa oym sjuapIsal JipJed JO Jaquinu [B103 Y3 3onpal o} siduped Y3 eay Jno Yyim YJopm

aaed |e1d0s ) npe
U1 SIJIAIDS 34eD |e190S pue yijeay Jo AsaAliap pue Juswaseuew 3y3 o) [apow pajesSalul ue jo Aljiqisea) ayl (gHN) pieod yyeaH AUsiaalun ayl yum alojdx3

pooyinpe Suiydeoidde uaipjiyd s|qesauina pue pajqesip 104 Loddns [PUOINSURI] JO SSBUAAINIBYD Y} anoiduw|

140)

(suejd A1aaiaq ut T 1ed) SUBWHWWOYD)

2J0WS|I B JUIT S4||D :SI2qWSN I8uUIqe) 006 :(314) s9oAojdwiz Jaquiny Sunoj Auo] :10333.1Q S3JIAJS [B120S :31e1013341Q

}10d3y 3juewopdd 3140333417 LT-9T0C T 121eny




L 40 bt 28eq

‘s1y31 SuIMO[|0} SWea] JIaY1 Y1IM SJUBLISSISSE HeUI3puUn
01 Addey a1am s1a8euew ayi Jo swos ‘dnoig Sunjop
12210 Y3 01 UBAIT 5EM UOISSIS MIIAIDAO YYS UY Hels
40 J3qUIaW [eNpIAIPU] UE JOJ BpeW 3 0] JUBWSSISSe
ysU e 10) Juswalinbau e uaaq sey 312yl a1aym Suluieny
9U0-0]-3U0 URLBPUN dARY S198BURW ANl 'SISeq
dno.3 pue auo0-031-3u0 e uo y1oq (YYS) SIUDWSSISSY
YSIY $5811S 3yenapun o} s198euew aul| SIIIAIG |RIDOS
Bujureu) uaaq sey JosiApy Alajes 1g Y} eaH S,2181030241Q

‘A0 YHM Ye1s 10} 3duepind yljeaH d1|qnd syl 01 SaIaype |1ouno)

3y 1ey1 aunsua o1 Adijod |edo| e Buidojanap aq ||Im SIS SHNPY HNS3I € Se pue yleaH
21|gngd wouy ddIApe 1ySNnos sey NO 3YL "AQ Suimol|oy sinoy z/ 104 1o aq 1snw saaA0jdwd
1ey1 sare|ndnis Adijod su pue yyjeaH aiqnd yum uoiusod ayy paigie)d Ajzuadal adinIas

ay1 40} (INO) 138euey [euoniesadQ 9y 'sadIAIas ale) Aeq pue awoy Aq sdnois a|qesauina
03 aJed |euosiad jo A1anap ayi 01 anp (A'2Q) Surliwon pue eaoyulelp Suidesuod

40 )isu ay1 Ajawieu ‘passnasip a1am sadiAIRS 13841 Buidey Ajpuauind sagusjjeya Jenaiued

. 9] 'sajesordaliq syl utyHm ssawais Suipsedas AaysuiH J0j12UN0) pue aAINIBX]
$314D 3y YUM 19W 53DIAIBS SHNPY Woly sia8euep |euollesddQ pue Jojuas - SSauXIIS

‘ssauaniladwod

Buiseasnul pue JududojaAIp SS3UISNG PUNOJR SIIIAISS
a1ed Aseljio1wop Jo siapinoid 1e pawie s doysyiom

9yl 'sa31AIaS Juawalndoad pue oddns Suapual

ut sasijerdads 1ey) uonesiuedio ue Aq paieyjde; aq

[lim 1ey} pauue|d st doysysom a1ed Auejjidiwiop Jayuny

V 1340100 Ul HipJe) ul payaune| Ajjenyo aq |jim leyy
(£LTOTZ Ya1eN 01 9TQZ 13G0100) ,uBredwe) Jase) e ag,
9y} 10} pasijeuly pue paaide uaaq aney uejqd awweisold
AlAIDY e1pap '3 uonedIUNWWO) pue ue|d 1301y

V ‘19jJew yipse) ayl ut yImoi3 a8einodua 0} SISPIACIY
9JeD Yyym g Jauenp Sulnp yipae) apisino pue apisul
aoe|d uaye} aAey suojssas Juawaedua Jo Jaquinu

g
g

.:o_mm&oan,
9Jed |e120s ay3 ul Supjiom 4o S11JauUaq 3yl dlowoid o pasinbal st uSiedwed mmw:mhmzmm
ue 103235 Jqnd pue ajealsd ay3 ur s3]0 J31ed Joj Aldde 01 3jdoad aiow aeinodua pue siyi |
SSaippe 0] “yipie) uj sia1ed pied Jo aZePOYS e 0s|e S| 319y “YipieT) sso1de sanssi Aydedesl

3.eJ [eJoud3 a1 313y — }3)Jew awoy aed Suisinu pue Aseqpiwop 3y jo Aupdely

mayc uUu

‘puewap Pipaid

d)ay 01 $301A12S5 S NPY UIYUM p|3Yy Blep [eueul
JUJ1NI ||B M3IABL 0] 3] |{Im 28e1s 1sa1y 9y "ASajels
je1aueuly 1eaA g e do[aAap 01 9JuUBUl] JO pESH pue
S3JIAIDS SNPY JO 1010341J WLISISSY YUM pay Suinesp
: ‘uejd jel1dueuly pue sadIAIIS
[e120S paleidalul 1esA OT-5 e Suiedaud sy 101da11q Ay

's1edA snoiaaud pue /T-9T0z 01 Bunie|as sduines paiadpng Jo W63 Yyl
1sute3e (w T3) s||ep0ys paroaload s199)431 osje SaIAIIS SYNPY Ul puadsiano ay) "198pnq
£LT-9T0Z 341 Jo Ued se 3duas 3yl Joy 195 1981e1 sBuines WG €F ay3 1suteSe (wp'T3) [jejuoys

uedIuSBIS € S) 313Y3 ‘SIIAIIS S,UBIP|IYD UIYUM “JBAMOY SIY3 Jo uds Ul ‘000’003 JO
$580X3 Ul s3uiAes paAalyde A|nyssadans sey leyl Yipie) 0} suawade|d ease-40-1no 1500 ySiy
ul pase|d uaspjiya Bujuinial uo SNJOJ PSNUITUOD B U] SBY DI3Y) PUE SIIIAIIS S,UIP[IY)

ul padnponul uaaq aney djay Ajlzea 01 uolIR|3L Ul SBINSEIW AAIIEIUIARId JO Jaquinu

V "34ed duisinu pue Aserpdjwop ajdoad 1apjo Joj s198pnq 3y uo ainssaid jeuoinppe osje S|
2I3Y] "paq 3uisinu e JO 3S03 PaUOISSIWLWIOD 3Y] 01 uone|as ur Ajzejnoiued ‘sadnas synpy
ul saunssaid Aseuoniejyul 51081331 Os|e puadsiano ay| "uaapjiyd 4oy syuawaded Suiaisoy
[BUI9IX3 JO JSqWINU 3Y] U 3sealaul ue pue 3jdoad Jap|0 10} 31ed ALel|IDIWOop 10} puewap
paseaiul Ajgelou ‘sadjaIag s,uaippy) pue synpy uo sasnssaid oiydesSowap Juinuiuod

aJows|g '3 JUT SJ||D :SISqWIBN J2UIqe])

006 :(31d) saaAojdw3 saqunn

dunoy Auo] :40333.1Q SIIIAIIS |e1d0s :33e1012341g
1oday 22urWI0}Iad 91€4030311Q LT-9T0¢ ¢ 1231eny




Lt 30 G 38ed

"sainseaj Alj1qelunoddy dJijgng pue si03edipu| J18a3e.]s {euoileN 3yl 01 UOIIe|aJ Ul S3JEAA Ul paAcidul 1SOW 3y} Sem JIpJeD ul S3dIAIRS
[81205 1ey3 paniodal (dyyd) 991Wwo) AulNIdS 33UBWIOHSJ 13 MIIARY AJI|0d a3 1e sdiysiauped 1§ 90UBWIOLI JO Pe3H AQ UOIIRIUIS3I - SIUBLLIOLIJ JUSWUISAO0D [€30]

* Juswanosdwi

104 seale Aue Ajiuapy 10u pip 9m pue uoidadsul Siyl 1e panssi 919m sadijou aduel|dwod-uou ON ‘3jels a4ed Jo aZpamouy Y3 pue papiroad 21AI3S 3Y1 Jo Alejuaun)dwiod Aan
a19Mm 321A195 ay1 Buisn ajdoaq “8a11ded UOWWOD S1e SJUBWISSISSE JUlof pue pIEOq Y1jEaH [EI0] 3Y] YUM ||2M SHJOM 3DIAISS 3Y], 1By} Papnjouod uoildadsul ay) “paysignd
Hoday uo113dsu) 000T 19V SPIBPUERIS (MISSD) 248D S9|epp S1el010adsu| S3IIAIDS |BID0S pue 1. - (SLYD) SWea] 32un0say AHUNWIWO) ~ 3IIAIBS 3JBIIWOH [IPUN0) JIpIe)

' |apouu swiaisAs-sjoym e 1o} suejd J1ay] Buisijeal 15j1ym ‘Do) g aseuew o} 19y31a8o} ||am Supdom

8Je s1suped, 1eyl papn|ouod ‘1O HPNY S3JeM Yl Aq 9T0Z 19quia1das pansst ‘Ajunwiwio) aJe) [e120S pue YieaH djeA pue Jipied - 31eD) JO sidjsuel] paAe|aq JO MIIAJY Y
‘porsad 9Tz 1snAny - Ainf ay1 ul /T 03 9T-GTOZ Ul ZZ Wolj pancsdwi sey SailoyIny (2207 YS|oM ZZ Y1 Suowe

Sunyues s ypied /T-9707 Isndny 01 judy yum 9T-G10Z 1sn3ny 01 jludy Sutzeduwiod usym suoseay ale) |e1d0S 10) 1. JO SI3jsuel] pake|aq ul UOIINPAI %/ € palyIuapl
sey podas Supjewyduaq 203l y "7 4934enp 104 )Ynsal [eiled ayl Joj pue T JauenD Y1oq Joy usais paddes sem 101edipu| aduewiopad —(J01q) 31e) Jo s3jsuel) pakejaq
{anly “xe) (s3$5330NG pue SMapN PCOD) STUIWIAIYIY AdY

"uoISI23p e Suilieme S| 31e10123.1Q YL

*Ajjny ssacoud siy1 poddns o1 pue 10y ay3 Aq paJinbai *9Uli} J3J1JJ0 0] UOI1L[3J Ul SISO |euolppe 9y} Se ||9m se (38eisod
Auoeded [euoilppe ay1 ssalppe 0] g 1aueny Suunp "8'3) sAaAins ay1 Buiyenapun 01 1502 [eldUBULY B OS|e S| 3J3Y] "Wwed} duew.oad ay) 1049
panwgns sem piq aunssaud y 'ssa301d 9y} Jo S1uawigd §SauIsng 2402 Jo seale J3y10 uo pardedwi sey yaiym Aydeded Jo o] e uaye} arey m>m>h=mm
u1enad jo 19adsas uf Loy Jo uoiieddnp aleulw|d ay] ‘sjuated u9yy pue /£ Jo 98e 3yl J9A0 UBIP|IYI 03 INO JUIS 34 {{IM SAJleuuollsanb 00T
01 0s 'op 01 ajeridosdde S|} 31aYM A[aAeIOqR|(0D | JBAO ‘SIIAIBS S,uaJpIYD Jo4 ‘Suluueid poddns pue ased ino o1 Suiiejas elep ssuewsopad
Supyiom ase yeis souewsopad sadiAIas s,uaIpyD | aairenjenb Jayies [Im yaiym ‘9Tz 12qo100 Ul Aaieuuonsanb JUSWUIBA0D YS[IM pIEpUE]S
pue synpy pue us)euapun aq o1 sAaains ayy Joj adeld 1UBA3|3J 3Y1 1uas 3q [Im ‘Buljdwes wopues Suisn paldalas ‘sIJIAIAS SINPY JO s1asn]
ur uejd 15nqoJ e S| 313y "1V 3y} Jo uolejuawa|dun 000'T 48AQ "u3jemspun 3ulaq SIANAIIS 5,UdIP|IYD pue SHNpPY SS01I8 ASAINS J3SN IIIAIDS
Iyl uoddns pue 21euipio0d 01 pajuiodde ulaq sey anizeyjenb ayl uo IOM YIM SSINSEIN SDUBLIIONIJ SIIIAIDS |BIIOS MIU Y} JO JUIWI|D
S8JIAIDS [BI20S S|qeuleIsns 04 103eUIpI00) [euoidal i | ASAINS |BUOIIEU BY] UO PaJUIWILIOD JYJOM — $T0Z PV (Sajem) Sulag-||9am 13 S321A136 |e120§
| "yimoud

JO seaue J1ay10 pue swajqosd }oeq Suiuiaduod sanss|
a1ediw 3M, saiunuoddo Ajilusapl 01 Aemiapun s| YJOM
*Adljod Buiaqgjiam 1 9auepuanly ayl yum aosuejjdwod
aJnsua 01 ‘ssaFeuew 03 sased sSaUXDIS W43l Suo) Joy
9J1Ape pue poddns S13)40 19YJI0AN 3SED YH "SISED SSaULS
ut Aja1e1pawiwi pue 33uasqe ,SY33M Jnoy JaYe S3Sed HIIS
wia] SuoT pajedojje Ajjedntewolne (YH) S3JAIBS 192414
10} $324N0S3Y UBWINY WOJY JIYJOM 3Se) pajedipag
"WIay} Joj sIy1 91e|1ey J0SIAPY A1djes

1 Yljeay ay1 49a4d pjnom Asyl 18y} paiels siayio pue

2J0owWs|3 13 JUIT S4||D :SIAqUIS|N JduIqeD) 006 :(3.14) sesAojdwz saquinn 8unoy Auo] :10323.41Q0 S3JIAI3S [B120S :9]1e103031(Q

110day 3djuew 04134 33e40323.417 £T-910Z T 1214enY




Page 202



Quarter 2

Indicator | Indicator Title | Reporte | 2007- |2008- |2009- (2010- (2011- [2012- [2013- (2014- |Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015- (Q1 Q2 Curren |Status | 2016- | _Level Comments
Ref dto: | 08 |09 10 1 12 13 14 15 2015- |2015- [2015- |2015- |16 2016- |2016- |t 17 T"'S'fﬂ;;'
16 16 16 16 17 17 Progre Target | Action
ss
Children are protected from significant harm and are empowered to protect themselves
Contacts 1 [Number of CS CMT |New New New New New for [New for [New for [New for [New for |New for |New for |New for |[New for | 7,558 7,950| Target | N/A | Target | Target |New indicator introduced for 2016-17 in response to
Local Pl |Contacts / Scrutiny |for for for for 2016- |2016- [2016- |2016- |2016- |2016- |[2016- |[2016- |2016- setting setting | setting |changes implemented as a result of the Social
Referrals 2016- [2016- |2016- (2016- (17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 not not not |Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.
Received 17 17 17 17 approp approp | approp |Contacts and referrals are no longer recorded
riate riate riate |separately - since 6th April 2016 they have been
recorded on a single "Contact & Referral" form.
CS CPR 4 |CPR caseload CS CMT 207 213 283 272 255 372 314 255 300 322 311 342 342 336 279| Target | N/A | Target | Target |Figure does not include 14 temporary registrations
Local PI Scrutiny setting setting | setting where case management responsibility for the
not not not |children is retained by their home authority.
approp approp | approp
riate riate riate
SSWB 27 |The percentage of [CS CMT 3.2% 5.6% |Baselin| W Baselin | Baselin |5 / 89
National  |re-registrations of |Cabinet e year e year | e year |5 of the children registered during the quarter had
PI children on local  [Scrutiny been on the CPR within the previous 12 months. The
authority Child children are from 2 sibling groups.
Protection No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
Registers first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
-U will be established during the year to inform target
Q) setting for 2017-18.
SQB 28 |Average length of [CS CMT 206 198(Baselin| 4 [Baselin [ Baselin [29105/ 147
Naif@yal |time for all Cabinet e year e year | e year |The average length of time on the CPR for the 144
PI children who were |Scrutiny children who we de-registered during Quarter 2 was
N  |on the CPR during 194 days.
o the year No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
w first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
will be established during the year to inform target
setting for 2017-18.
SCC/014 |The percentage of [CS CMT | 48.9%| 73.5%| 72.7%| 86.3%| 82.6%| 84.6%| 83.8%| 90.7%| 96.4%| 98.5%| 93.0%| 90.9%| 94.4%| 91.2%| 96.5% @ IS 90.0%| 81.0%|111/115
Local PI initial child Scrutiny 4 conferences for 3 sibling groups were late in Quarter
protection 2, 2 as a result of delays with paperwork and
conferences due problems with the video link to dad in the United Arab
in the year which Emirates; 1 due to delay in notification for conference
were held within to be scheduled and 1 for an unborn child that will be
15 working days of rescheduled closer to the estimated date of delivery.
the strategy All late conferences have since been held.
discussion All Wales average 2014-15 = 92.6%
SCC/034 |The percentage of [CS CMT | 98.9%| 99.2%| 99.5%| 99.2%| 98.5%| 98.0%| 98.5%| 99.8%(100.0%| 99.6%]|100.0%| 99.6%| 99.8%| 98.4% | 100.0% @ 'S 100.0%| 70.0% |296 / 296
Local Pl |child protection Scrutiny All Wales average 2015-16 = 98.0%
reviews carried
out within statutory
timescales during
the year

Children and young people are supported to live safely within their families with the lowest appropriate level of intervention

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page 10f 3

30/11/2016




Quarter 2

Indicator | Indicator Title | Reporte | 2007- |2008- |2009- [2010- |2011- (2012- [2013- |2014- |Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015- (Q1 Q2 Curren |Status | 2016- | Level Comments
Ref dto: | 08 |09 10 1 12 13 14 15 2015- |2015- [2015- |2015- |16 2016- |2016- |t 17 T"'S'fﬂ;;'
16 16 16 16 17 17 Progre Target | Action
Ss
SSWB 24 |The percentage of [CS CMT 99.2%| 86.3%|Baselin| ¥ Baselin | Baselin |527 / 611
National  |assessments Cabinet e year e year | e year |No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
PI completed for Scrutiny first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
children within will be established during the year to inform target
statutory setting for 2017-18.
timescales The reduction in performance in quarter 2 was
anticipated - performance in Quarter 1 was distorted
as the assessments, which have a 42 working day
timeframe, were introduced on 6th April, so could not
be out of time until June.
SSWB 25 |The percentage of [CS CMT 59.0%| 57.3%|Baselin| ¥ Baselin | Baselin |942 / 1,643
National  |children supported |Cabinet e year e year | e year |Of the 1,643 children with a Care & Support Plan at
PI to remain living Scrutiny 30.09.16; 942 were being supported to live at home
within their family (i.e. were not being looked after).
No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
will be established during the year to inform target
setting for 2017-18.
SS 26 |The percentage of [CS CMT 3.2% 6.2% | Baselin L Baselin | Baselin |52 / 839
Natidogkl  |looked after Cabinet e year e year | e year |Of the 839 children who have been looked after during
PI Q.) children returned | Scrutiny the year to date, 52 have returned home.
(@] home from care This Pl is cumulative, and performance will improve
() during the year as we progress throughout the year.
No RAG rating has been applied as 2016-17 is the
N first year that this Pl has been reported. A baseline
o will be established during the year to inform target
AN setting for 2017-18.
Looked after children experience the best care and support to help them recognise their abilities, have aspirations and achieve their full potential
CSLAC |LAC caseload (not [CS CMT 521 520 530 521 568 557 611 650 662 630 625 644 644 678 701| Target | N/A | Target | Target |Cardiff rate at 30.06.16 = 9.5 per 000
3e including respite [ Scrutiny setting setting | setting |Wales rate at 31.03.15 = 8.9 per 000
Local PI care not not not
arrangements for approp approp | approp
disabled children) riate riate riate
CS LAC |Percentage of CS CMT [New 61.4%| 64.8%| 67.0%| 65.6%| 62.2%| 62.0%| 60.7%| 60.4%| 61.6%| 60.9%| 62.5%| 62.5%| 61.2%| 60.9% @ <> 65.0%| 58.5% 319 /524
58 children in Scrutiny |for The PI counts only children placed within the LA
Local Pl  [regulated 2008- boundaries and excludes children placed in
placements who 09 neighbouring authorities close to their home area and
are placed in attending Cardiff schools.
Cardiff 16.3% (33) of children not placed in Cardiff are placed

within 10 miles of their home address.

6 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with
a relative carer.

Planning always takes account of placement location
for children. Some children need a specialist
placement that is not available in the city or need to
live away from families, communities or individuals
that could present risks for them.

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page 2 of 3

30/11/2016




Quarter 2

Indicator | Indicator Title | Reporte | 2007- |2008- |2009- [2010- |2011- (2012- [2013- |2014- |Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015- (Q1 Q2 Curren |Status | 2016- | Level Comments
Ref dto: | 08 |09 10 1 12 13 14 15 2015- |2015- [2015- |2015- |16 2016- |2016- |t 17 T"'S'fﬂ;;'
16 16 16 16 17 17 Progre Target | Action
Ss
SCC/021 |The percentage of ([CS CMT | 92.3%| 95.9%| 96.2%| 96.4%| 95.2%| 95.2%| 92.4%| 88.3%| 93.2%| 96.0%| 95.9%| 92.7%| 94.5%| 96.1%| 93.8% @ v 100%| 70.0% |499 /532
Local PI  |looked after Scrutiny There has been a small reduction in the percentage of
children reviews reviews held on time in the context of a 4% increase
carried out within in the number of reviews due.
statutory All Wales average 2014-15 = 95.5%
timescales during
the year
SCC/025 |The percentage of [CS CMT | 69.3%| 79.5%| 88.2%| 83.9%| 85.1%| 89.5%| 87.7%| 88.9%| 85.1%| 85.3%| 85.3%| 91.1%| 86.6%| 94.1%| 95.3% @ L 90.0%| 81.0% |507 /532
Local Pl |[statutory visits to [ Scrutiny All Wales average 2015-16 = 88.1%
looked after
children due in the
year that took
place in
accordance with
regulations
Cardiff is the destination of choice for committed social work professionals
Staff 1 Percentage of CSCMT [ 221% | 26.1% | 15.2%]| 14.7%| 15.9%| 14.5%| 20.8%| 27.2%| 23.5%| 21.4%| 21.6%| 22.2%| 22.2%| 22.9%| 24.8% ® v 18.0%| 19.8%(113/456.1
Local PI social work Cabinet 1&A = 35.3%
vacancies in all Scrutiny CIN = 25.2%
teams LAC = 14.3%
Vacancy rates have increased this quarter primarily as
'U a result of two new social worker posts, created with
QJ Intermediate Care Funding. Interviews took place in
(®) October and appointments are currently being made.
Work to refresh adverts completed. Use of the
@ Council’s social media platforms to accelerate
N recruitment activity has had a positive impact with 12
o offers of appointment in July and August with
ol anticipated start dates in Quarter 3. Development of
the ‘pool’ of additional social workers is to be
accelerated once all vacancies have been filled.
Report to extend the notice period of social work staff
and managers has been prepared. In relation to
retention, work on the remodelling of services and the
implementation of the Workforce Strategy as identified
in Quarter 1 is ongoing and will continue through
Quarters 3 and 4.
Children’s Services are provided on the basis of the most efficient and effective use of resources
CSLAC |Percentage of CSCMT | 56.4%| 56.6%| 58.9%| 62.0%| 64.2%| 68.6%| 67.4%| 71.8%| 70.3%| 70.3%| 70.0%| 72.0%| 72.0%]| 73.6%| 74.0% @ v 70.0%| 77.0%|388 /524
44 LAC placements  [Scrutiny Of the 388 placements with independent sector
Local PI with independent

sector providers

providers, 181 started within the last 12 months.

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted

Page 3 0of 3

30/11/2016




This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Wellbeing Contact / Referrals Quarter 2 2016/17

CS - CS - Move to
CS - Information Manager's Strategy CS - Signpost
CS - Contact to Received on Open |CS - JAF Authorisation |Discussion/Meetin |CS - No Further |to Early CS - Wellbeing Grand
Source / Outcome MHub Case Required Required g Action Intervention |Assessment NULL Total
CAFCASS 2 25 10 37
Central government agency 1 1 137 2 2 143
Family 2 15 3 10 340 9 33 412
Friend / Neighbour 2 4 47 4 3 60
Independent provider agency 7 3 3 1 2 16
LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 3 3 42 3 20 71
Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 1 31 30 154 3 37 256
Other Agency 1 89 2 15 573 12 74 2 768
Other Departments of own or other LA 40 46 338 5 28 3 460
Other individual 4 33 1 2 40
Police 13 927 2 1 99 2,629 16 69 37 3,793
Primary health / Community health 5 187 13 3 43 721 8 95 4 1,079
Probation 16 287 15 1 319
School 4 32 1 34 337 8 30 7 453
Secondary health 4 1 3 21 3 32
Self referral 1 2 1 4
UK Border Agency 6 1 7
Grand Total 26 1,360 16 10 292 5,695 67 413 71 7,950
U
Q
«Q
D
N
(@)
\]
Source of Wellbeing Contact / Referral Quarter 2 2016/17
4,000 3,793
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,079
1,000 768
460 453
>00 37 143 42 60 1 - 25 . 0 319 -
0 — - = - I - * ’
CAFCASS Central Family Friend / Independent LA Housing Local Other Agency Other Other Police Primary health  Probation School Secondary Self referral UK Border
government Neighbour provider Dept. or Authority's Departments  individual / Community health Agency
agency agency Housing own Social of own or health
Association  Services Dept. other LA




6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Outcome of Wellbeing Contact/Referral Quarter 2 2016/17

I:’EQI-'.

1,360

26

CS - Contact to MHub

413

67 71
.

292
16 10

CS - Information Received on
Open Case

CS - JAF Required CS - Manager's Authorisation ~ CS - Move to Strategy CS - No Further Action CS - Signpost to Early CS - Wellbeing Assessment NULL
Required Discussion/Meeting Intervention

80¢ abed

Source of Wellbeing Contact / Referral by Outcome Quarter 2 2016/17

NULL

M CS - Contact to MHub

B CS - JAF Required

B CS - Manager's Authorisation Required

B CS - Move to Strategy Discussion/Meeting

m CS - Signpost to Early Intervention

CS - Wellbeing Assessment

B CS - Information Received on Open Case

M CS - No Further Action




Summary of Wellbeing Assessments Quarter 2 2016/17

Needs can be met
Comprehensive [Manager's through Needs can only be met  [Protection of child There are no care and
Assessment authorisation Needs can be met |preventative through Care & Support |from abuse, harm or |Provision of Information; [support needs to be
Source/Outcome Required required by the individuals [services Plan neglect advice or assistance met Grand Total
Central government agency 1 1 3 5
Family 1 4 4 5 3 1 18
Family, friend or neighbour 1 3 2 1 3 10
Friend/Neighbour 1 1 1 1 4
Independent provider agency 1 1
LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 1 5 1 5 2 6 20
Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 4 12 2 9 3 1 2 33
Other Agency 4 16 9 8 15 2 6 10 70
Other Departments of own or other LA 2 1 3 2 2 5 5 20
Other individual 1 1
Police 1 6 26 18 7 10 6 7 81
Primary health / Community health 8 7 11 30 16 7 6 6 91
Probation 2 1 1 2 6
School 2 2 8 9 8 5 1 3 38
Secondary health 3 1 2 2 8
UK Boarder Agency 1 1 2
Self referral 0
&N/A 2 5 11 19 18 8 8 12 83
ﬁ‘r’and Total 28 48 920 102 84 46 35 58 491
'@A = Wellbeing Assessment did not originate / is not linked from/to Contact / Referral and there are no source questions on Wellbeing Assessment
N
o
(<
Source of Wellbeing Assessment Quarter 2 2016/17
100 91

90 81 83

80 70

70

60

50

38

40 33

30 18 20 20

20 10 8

10 > . 4 1 1 . 2 0

o | - — [ |
(A §\\ é \)l\ C\ . QQ Q\" d \Y‘ O'b\ A9 \‘{9 . OQ 00\ \‘{9 d {b\ \V‘
£ & & & £ & R & & O & & £ 5 & & & &
& & N ) bQ} CH & & <° & N ¢ > & N
& ) Q o N sS S 2
‘\Q@ bé . Qb\ &04\ \(\%V“ %e} S & ,&Q} & 000 S o
¥ & N Q 2 - S o & & &
X & X [ N (JO ) &
$ N & <® P %° \ N
& N g & & o &
(JQ/Q % 6Q,Q Q,Q \‘_)0 {\,@ \(g/
O Q -{\ﬁ Q’b d
.\Q% S N <&
R & < N
Qo ) L Q
O s o
Na \9@




Outcome of Wellbeing Assessments Quarter 2 2016/17
120
102
100
90
84
80
60 58
40 35
) .
0
Comprehensive Assessment Manager's authorisation Needs can be met by the Needs can be met through  Needs can only be met through Protection of child from abuse, Provision of Information; advice There are no care and support
Required required individuals preventative services Care & Support Plan harm or neglect or assistance needs to be met
Outcome of Wellbeing Assessment by source Quarter 2 2016/17
35 B Comprehensive Assessment Required
0
D
«
:3 B Manager's authorisation required
}A
o
m Needs can be met by the individuals
W Needs can be met through preventative services
m Needs can only be met through Care & Support Plan
m Protection of child from abuse, harm or neglect
I Provision of Information; advice or assistance
(JQ/

[ There are no care and support needs to be met




Appendix D

Children’s Services Performance Management Information Report
List of New Children’s Services National Performance Indicators

1. The percentage of assessments completed for children within statutory
timescales.

2. The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family.

3. The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the
year.

4. The percentage of re-registrations of children on local authority Child
Protection Registers.

5. Average length of time for all children who were on the CPR during the year.

6. The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or
employment at 12 months after leaving care.

7. The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or
employment at 24 months after leaving care.

8. The percentage of care leavers who have experienced homelessness during

the year.

9. The percentage of children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage
2.

10.The percentage of children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage
4

11.The percentage of looked after children who have had their teeth checked by
a dentist during the year.

12.The percentage of placements started during the year where the child is
registered with a provider of general medical services within 10 working days
of the start of the placement.

13. The percentage of children looked after at 31 March who have experienced
one or more change of school, during a period or periods of being looked
after, which were not due to transitional arrangements, in the 12 months to 31
March.

14. The percentage of children looked after on 31 March who have had three or
more placements during the year.

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6 December 2016

CORRESPONDENCE UPDATE - INFORMATION REPORT

Background

1. Following most Committee meetings, the Chair writes a letter to the relevant
Cabinet Member or officer, summing up the Committee’s comments and

recommendations regarding the issues considered during that meeting.

2. Committee letters and their responses are now included with the Committee
papers on the internet, to ensure that all documents relating to the Committee

meeting are accessible and public.

Issues

3. Committee letters are sent following discussions around the key points raised
in the Committee during the Way Forward section of the meeting, and are
linked to the formal minutes of the meetings. Responses received from
Cabinet Members and external withess, where appropriate, are also copied to
the papers for the relevant meeting Children and Young People Scrutiny
Committee papers and are evidenced in future reports or copied to Members
if requested. A summary of the letters sent and responses received is

attached at Appendix A.

Page 213


http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140

Legal Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters
under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out

any legal implications arising from those recommendations.

Financial Implications

5. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to note and review the summary of the
responses receive to the recent letters sent by the Committee, and refer any

questions or concerns to the relevant Cabinet Member or Director.

Davina Fiore
Director of Governance and Legal Services
1 December 2016

Page 214



GT¢ obed

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Correspondence Report summary 2016 - 17

Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date
27 Clir Merry Cardiff 2020 and | Details of the 30 Details provided along
September provisional organisations involved in | November | with floor plan for the
2016 school results the Cardiff 2020 launch | 2016 event
A copy of the West of Copy of report provided
England Head Teachers
report
Actions to achieve the Comments on actions
departmental sickness taken to reduce sickness
target by March
Analysis of Boy v Girl Analysis provided
performance across LAC
and FSM cohorts
Actions taken at KS2 to Comments on actions
address performance of taken at KS2 on
Boys performance of boys
included
27 Clir Lent as | Quarter one The Committee 12 Will ensure that that To continue to
September | Chair of the | Children’s recommends that your October issues raised will be Monitor
2016 Corporate services Advisor Committee 2016 considered by the performance
Parenting Performance investigates the reasons Corporate Parenting
advisory for the decline in Advisory Panel.
Cttee performance and

identifies actions to
improve performance
over the next year




9T¢ abed

Appendix A

Committee | Recipient Subject Response Required Response Response received Future Action
date date
18 October | National Annual Report Provided advice on 30 the required content of  Await next
2016 Adoption future annual reports November | the report is set out in annual report for
Service 2016 regulation. Performance |review
is reported against a
Performance
Management Framework
that was provided to
NAS by the Welsh
Government.
A copy of the framework
for adoption support was
provided
18 October | Regional Annual report Explanation and 22 Full response received  |Await next
2016 adoption clarification on: November | to all points raised annual report
service 2016

the narrative and data
on page 9 setting out the
numbers and time taken
around adoptions;

the reason for 6 children
listed as “plan uncertain”
on page 12

progress on the
development of a
service level agreement
in respect of access to
birth records or




/T¢ abed

Appendix A

intermediary service, at
Page 23

More details on the
plans being developed
to address priority 5 for
2016/17 To target the
recruitment and
assessment of adoptive
families to better meet
the needs of children
awaiting placements
within the region and
reduce reliance upon
external sources; and
Details of the number of
adopters still waiting for
an adoption and how
long they have been
waiting.

18 October | Clir Merry New delivery Schools need to become | N/A No response required N/A
2016 model for more community
children’s play focused, as some play
providers were unable to
access school facilities.
18 October | Clir New delivery Cabinet to ensure that 22 That lessons have been
Bradbury model for appropriate resources November | learnt for those groups
children’s play are available to support | 2016 who have already taken

groups

Keep ward members

over provision
Members will be fully
consulted with




8T¢ abed

Appendix A

informed of potential
interested groups

14 June Clir Hinchey | Corporate Requested an updated 10 Copy of latest report
2016 safeguarding report later in the year October attached to letter
Board’s Annual 2016 Recommendations have
Report Amendments to the been agreed and
report suggested incorporated into the
report
A copy of the training A copy of the training
video be provided for video has been made
Members to view available to Members
Follow up Clir Hinchey | Response to Members considered the
letter on 24 letter letter to be brief and did
October not highlight the
2016 changes made.
The annual report still
did not contain sufficient
information to provide
assurance.
Further report providing
information on
Performance reporting.
8 Clir Lent Child Health & Members recommended
November Disability that more formal regular
2016 Improvement meetings should take
Plan place.

Members were aware
that Ty Storrie was in




6T¢ abed

Appendix A

high demand. However,
there is a proposal to
‘Recommission of
Children’s Respite /
Short breaks Service,
saving £50,000
Committee sought
assurance that if this
proposal was accepted it
would not impact on this
valuable respite service.

8
November
2016

Rosemarie
Whittle
Head of
Operations
and Delivery
Community
Child Health
Directorate

Child &
Adolescent
Mental Health
Service.

Members highlighted
that further
investigations were
needed about:

* A potential gap in the
referrals process,
assessment and support
for early years, children
under the age of 6.

* The level of capacity to
meet the expected
increasing demand for
services.

» Of a more specific
phone number for “out of
hours referrals”




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Central South Education Consortium
	4 - Appendix A Estyn Report
	4 - Appendix B Progress Report Estyn
	Blank Page.pdf
	Minutes of the Meeting of the Welsh Purchasing Consortium’s Management Board hosted by Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council on Wednesday 20th April 2011 at 11:00 am. 
	County Borough Councillor Colin Mann 
	Mr Stephen. Johnston
	County Borough Councillor Derek Games 
	County Borough Councillor Phil. Murphy 
	Mr Stuart Smith
	Mr Vince Hanly
	 

	AGENDA ITEM 5 FINANCE REPORT.pdf
	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS.pdf
	 
	Balance Sheet
	Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment



	Governance Report.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM 6 
	MANAGEMENT BOARD 
	Day  Date                    Time               Venue 


	RJ report cover - Summary Reports 22nd June 2011 agenda 8.pdf
	NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
	1 Background 

	Agenda 220611RJ.pdf
	WELSH PURCHASING CONSORTIUM 
	 
	MANAGEMENT BOARD AGM 
	 
	AGENDA 


	Blank Page.pdf
	Minutes of the Meeting of the Welsh Purchasing Consortium’s Management Board hosted by Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council on Wednesday 20th April 2011 at 11:00 am. 
	County Borough Councillor Colin Mann 
	Mr Stephen. Johnston
	County Borough Councillor Derek Games 
	County Borough Councillor Phil. Murphy 
	Mr Stuart Smith
	Mr Vince Hanly
	 

	AGENDA ITEM 5 FINANCE REPORT.pdf
	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS.pdf
	 
	Balance Sheet
	Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment



	Governance Report.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM 6 
	MANAGEMENT BOARD 
	Day  Date                    Time               Venue 


	RJ report cover - Summary Reports 22nd June 2011 agenda 8.pdf
	NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
	1 Background 

	Agenda 220611RJ.pdf
	WELSH PURCHASING CONSORTIUM 
	 
	MANAGEMENT BOARD AGM 
	 
	AGENDA 




	5 Quarter 2 Performance - Education and Cardiff 2020.  A revised vision for Education and Learning in Cardiff - Performance Baseline September 2016
	5 - Appendix A Corporate Perfomrance Education
	5 - Appendix B Cardiff 2020 Baseline- Desired Outcomes
	5 - Appendix C Cardiff 2020 Baseline- Goals

	6 Effectiveness of School Governors
	6 - Appendix A Governor Update Report
	6 - Appendix B Response for CYP - June 2015

	7 Draft Cabinet Report - Families First transition arrangement and programme update
	7 - Appendix 1 - Families First Cabinet Report Recommissioning
	7 - App 1 - App A Future development of the FF programme - Cabinet Secretary d...
	7 - App 1 - App B EIA for SRE
	7 - App 1 - App C EIA for ASSIST
	7 - App 1 - App D EIA for Sustainable Employment
	7 - App 1 - App E EIA for remaining programme

	8 Quarter 2 Performance Management Information - Children's Services
	8 - Appendix A Corporate performance Children's
	8 - Appendix B - Quarter 2
	8 - Appendix C - Quarter 2
	Wellbeing Contact-Referral 
	Wellbeing Assessment Summary

	8 - Appendix D - Quarter 1

	9 Correspondence Report
	9 - Appendix A Correspondence Report




